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Scope of the Report
Introduction
The entity welcomes the opportunity to present its Integrated Annual Report for the year ending 31 June 2019. Now
into our fourth year of integrated reporting, we believe this report represents our continued efforts to improve the
quality of our disclosure as well as the robustness of our management of key sustainability issues. We do recognise
that room for improvement exists and we plan to build on the progress made in future years. To this end, we
welcome feedback which can be sent to info@pikitup.co.za.
This report is prepared and presented in accordance with the international Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC)
Framework of 2013, and guided by the King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2016 (King IV).
The entity has further applied, Section 121(3) (c) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) which states
that “The annual report of a municipality must include the annual performance report of the municipality prepared
by the municipality in terms of section 46 of the Local Government Municipal systems Act”. Section 121(4) (d) of the
MFMA further states that “The annual report of a municipal entity must include an assessment by the entity’s
accounting officer of the entity’s performance against any measurable performance objectives set in terms of the
service delivery agreement or other agreement between the entity and its parent municipality.”
The report examines the performance of the entity in relation to our Business Plan and Service Delivery Budget and
Implementation Plan, including the successes and challenges, for the 2018/2019 financial year as well as those likely
to form part of its future.

Reporting Princi ples
The reporting principles applied are in line with the following local and international best practices guidelines on
sustainability reporting. This report provides stakeholders with an integrated view of what we do and how we create
value, our strategy, opportunities and risks, our business model and governance and our performance against our
predetermined strategic objectives in a way that gives stakeholders a holistic view of the entity. The guidelines
applied are as follows:
c The IIRC’s Integrated Reporting Framework
c The King IV Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa
c MFMA Circular 63 Reporting Requirements
c The South African Statements of General Recognized Accounting Practices (GRAP)
c National Treasury Guidelines and Regulations

Supporting Documents
All documentation supporting the contents of this report is available for inspection at Pikitup offices.

Legislative and Policy Source for the Framework
c National Treasury Circular 63
c Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, No. 56 of 2003
c Section 46 (1) of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, No. 3 of 2000 (MSA)
c Joburg 2040 Growth and Development Strategy (GDS)
c Integrated Development Plan (IDP)
c Generally Recognized Accounting Principles ( GAAP)
c International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
c King IV Code on Corporate Governance (King IV)
c International Integrated Reporting Framework
c The Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) G4 Framework
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Assurance
The report contains Pikitup’s audited annual financial statements, the audit of predetermined outcomes or
organisational key performance indicators (KPI) and the Auditor-General of South Africa’s report.
All recommendations were taken into consideration during the preparation and performance review of this
integrated annual report and the necessary changes were made. In addition, the Board, assisted by the Audit and
Risk Committee, Service Delivery Committee and Human Resources and Social Ethics Committee reviewed the
associated annual financial statements and provided input to this IAR to ensure the principles of disclosure,
transparency, relevance, validity, accuracy, reliability, completeness and materiality of information herein.
The mitigation strategies on the assessment and outcomes of the entity’s 2018-19 annual integrated report in terms
of the Integrated Reporting Framework and Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) Circular 63 have been
incorporated and included as part of this report under section 4 of chapter 6, the Auditor-General of South Africa’s
(AGSA) audit findings.
These reports form an integral part of the entity’s combined assurance framework and principles, which are
independently assessed periodically by the Shareholder Group Governance Department and rated to ascertain
whether minimum disclosure requirements are consistently adhered to in terms of the following reporting principles
in Table 1.5.
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International Integrated Reporting Council’s (IIRC)
International <IR> Framework

MFMA: Circular 63 Annual Reporting Requirements

Organisational overview and external environment

Statements from:
c The Member of the Mayoral Committee
c The Chairperson of the Board

Governance

Governance:
c Governance structures
c Intergovernmental relations
c Public accountability participation
c Supply chain management, by-laws, oversight committees
c Risk management
c Anti-corruption and fraud
c Disclosure of financial interests
c Councillors and committee

Business model

The entity’s service delivery operating model has been updated
to respond to the ever-changing operating environment to
mitigate challenges of waste management.

Risks and opportunities

Organisational development performance

Strategy and resource allocation

Financial performance

Performance

Audited annual financial statements, service delivery budget
implementation plans, independent compliance reports
(landfill disposal permits and standards, GDARD Cleanliness
Index, etc.)

Outlook

In order to mitigate the threat of running out of landfill
airspace within the next five (5) years against the availability of
land the entity will be accelerating their integrated waste
minimisation and management programmes. Measures are
underway, to increase separation at source city wide,
implement a 1000 tons per day waste-to-energy plant,
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Chapter 1
Corporate profile
and Leadershi p

Section 1: Corporate profile and overview
Who are we
Pikitup Johannesburg Limited is a municipal entity, wholly owned by the City of Johannesburg (CoJ) as sole
Shareholder, and mandated to provide integrated waste management services to the residents of Johannesburg. The
Company’s strategic goals are linked to the Shareholder objectives through the Service Delivery Budget
Implementation Plan (SDBIP) and cluster plans whereby Pikitup is assigned to the Sustainable Services Cluster. In
addition, the relationship between the Company and Shareholder is governed through the Service Delivery
Agreement (SDA) which is reviewed from time to time.
Pikitup has ensured that it’s strategic and service delivery goals are aligned and supportive of other national
development plans and strategies, including the National Development Plan, the City of Johannesburgs’ IDP to
ensure that the City of Johannesburg is able to account to residents of Johannesburg on specific performance targets
expected from Pikitup.
Pikitup provides waste management services to approximately 1 182 997 formal households and 157 informal
settlement consisting of 249 819 units. The entity services the entire 1 646 km² across the CoJ 7 Regions, collecting
and disposing 1 149 650 tons of domestic waste generated annually.
c The mandate includes the provision of services to ensure the overall cleanliness of CoJ’s streets, central district
areas, open spaces, and certain public areas. Pikitup practically provides the waste collection service through three
categories in the main as follows:
c Level of service 1 (LoS-1) – provided with 240 litre wheelie bins and once a week waste collection service;
c Level of service 2 (LoS-2) – provided with multiple 85 litre plastic bags and once a week or more waste collection
service;
Level of service 3 (LoS-3) – provided with strategically placed 6m3 communal waste skips and bi-weekly to daily
waste collection service.

What guides our business?
Vision
To be the leading integrated waste management company in Africa and be considered amongst the best in the
world.
Mission
To provide sustainable and innovative waste management solutions that exceed stakeholder expectations.
Our Values
c Exceptional service ethics
c Environmental consciousness
c Respect for human dignity
c Good corporate citizenship
c Unity of purpose
c Results-driven
c Innovative
Our Mandate
Pikitup’s primary mandate is to provide sustainable integrated waste management services to all residential, formal
and informal areas, and business in the City of Johannesburg. The mandate also includes the provision of services to
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ensure the overall cleanliness of the City’s streets and open spaces and certain public areas. The cleaning of public
sector hostels, public sector housing estates as well as informal trading areas and taxi ranks do not form part of the
mandate but are activities performed by Pikitup at a cost. Additional to this mandate Pikitup needs to reduce waste
going to landfills by introducing waste minimisation projects including the roll out of separation at source and
alternative technologies such as waste to energy.
Pikitup provides two categories of services: council services and commercial operations:
Council services
CoJ mandated services: In terms of the Constitution the
municipality has sole mandate to collect domestic waste
from residents and this is paid through tariffs. Residents
cannot choose to use another service provider for
domestic waste collection.

Commercial operations Where we service businesses
(competing with other
Where we service businesses (competing with other
private companies) or where there are opportunities to
collect revenue through other mechanisms.

c Collection and disposal of domestic waste
c Street cleaning in the Inner city, Central Business District
areas, Outer City and Hostels –the activity ranges from litre
picking, street sweeting and lane flushing.
c Management and distribution of litter bins
c Collection of illegally dumped waste
c Collection and disposal of animal carcasses found in public
places
c Operation of garden sites
c Operation and management of landfill sites
c Cleaning of informal settlements
c Recycling activities

c Bulk collection services
c Dailies – collection of putrescible food waste
c Services for special events
c Private operators pay disposal fees for waste disposal at
Pikitup’s landfill sites

Our Strategy
The strategic focus adopted by Pikitup is to ensure waste prevention and minimisation and a community driven
approach to waste management in line with the NWMS, IWMP and GDS 2040 outcome 3: Enhanced, quality
services and sustainable environmental practices.
Growth and Development Strategy: Joburg 2040
The GDS is a fundamental, strategic decision-making instrument for the City, a long-term thinking model that has
been incrementally shaped over time, precisely to ensure that the community needs are realised.
The Joburg 2040 GDS aims to achieve an enhanced, quality services and sustainable environmental practices.
Currently Pikitup collects and handles approximately 1 101 088 tons of waste collected from RCR, illegal dumping,
litter picking and street cleaning Most of the litter goes to landfills, and as with many cities, landfill space is a definite
future challenge.
With the national imperative to inverting the waste triangle, CoJ committed to the Waste Minimisation Strategy, to
reduce waste to landfill to 20% by 2020 and thus a major shift in paradigm is required. The new paradigm will call
on varied interventions to divert waste from landfills across the value chain in the areas of reduction at source,
disposal and treatment methods, and converting waste to energy.
National Waste Management Strategy
The National Waste Management Strategy provides the strategy and action plans to deliver on the mandate to
reduce waste to landfills.
The NWMS shifts the focus of waste management away from disposal of waste to avoidance, reduction, re-use and
recycling before handling and final disposal. The strategy applies the principles of accountability, cradle to grave
responsibility, equity, integration, waste avoidance and minimisation in its action plans which aim to move away from
fragmented and uncoordinated waste management to integrated waste management.
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The Figure 3-3 below, which is drawn from the NWMS requires a fundamental change to the business model for
Pikitup. The NWMS, 2011 shifts the focus of waste management away from disposal of waste to avoidance,
reduction, re-use and recycling before handling and final disposal. The strategy applies the principles of integration,
waste avoidance and minimisation in its action plans which aim to move away from fragmented and uncoordinated
waste management to integrated waste management.

Integrated Waste Management Plan (IWMP)
The primary objective of Integrated Waste Management Plan is to integrate and optimise waste management
services, thereby maximising efficiency and improving the quality of life of all citizens while the associated
environmental impacts and financial costs are minimised (DEAT, 2000).
The IWMP was developed for City of Johannesburg in 2011 and includes an integrated plan for the City including
activities by all relevant departments and role players, of which Pikitup is one role player. Various proposed targets
and activities were included where Pikitup should play a role, such as:
c Waste Minimisation, Reuse, Recycling and Recovery
c Waste Treatment and Disposal
c Effective Service Delivery
c Capacity Building and Awareness Raising
c Compliance and Enforcement
c Pollution Control/Illegal Dumping/Littering
c Co-operative Governance
In line with the above mentioned strategies, Pikitup has identified five over-arching goals. These are:
a) Build an Effective and Efficient Waste Management Company;
b) Integrated Waste Management, Waste Prevention and Waste Minimisation;
c) Realisation of Value throughout the Waste Value Chain;
d) Effective and Efficient Waste Services; and
e) Partnerships and Stakeholder Involvement.

10
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Integrated Waste Management
Seeks to . . .

Has the following elements . . .

Involves the following steps . . .

c Improve waste management practices
c Create opportunities that move away
from landfills and focus on alternative
waste management solutions
c Highlight efficiencies and deficiencies
in current systems of waste
management
c Institute processes that minimise
waste at source and prevent pollution
c Manage the impact of waste on the
receiving environment
c Manage waste in a holistic manner

c Minimising waste generation
c Separation of waste enabling efficient
recycling
c Storage and collection of waste
c Transfer and transportation of waste
c Re-using and recycling of waste
c Disposal of waste as a last resort
c Stringent management of landfill
(general and hazardous waste)

1. Analysing the client’s current waste
process and legal framework
2. Making projections of future
requirements
3. Setting objectives
4. Developing projects and programmes
to reach set objectives underpinned
by solid environmental compliance
5. Developing and implementing an
integrated waste management plan
6. Periodically evaluating and reviewing
the plan to ensure objectives are
being met and new strategies are
put in place where needed

Pikitup is committed to continually improving its performance and to attaining its vision “to be the leading
integrated waste management company in Africa and be considered amongst the best in the world”. To deliver on
this vision, the entity linked its strategic focus to the strategic intent of the shareholder as articulated in the 2018/19
Integrated Development Plan (IDP).
The table below shows the objectives, projects and initiatives put in place to meet these strategic goals. It also shows
the key performance indicators (KPIs) which were approved by the Board in the 2018/19 Business Plan and SDBIP, to
measure and manage performance against these goals. The performance achievements are measured using a
balanced scorecard attached as annexure A.
Pikitup
strategic goal
Goal 1:
Building an
Efficient,
Effective and
viable waste
management
company

Objective
Objective 1.1:
To ensure sound
internal controls
and good
governance.

IDP Priority

Key performance
Indicator

Baseline

Target

Priority 7
Enhance our financial
sustainability.

Percentage (%) of
departmental
performance targets
achieved

42.3%

85% – 100%

Percentage (%) collection
from Pikitup’s commercial
customers

60%

80%-85%

Percentage (%) of
departmental operational
budget spent

96%

100%

Priority 1
Promote economic
development and
attract investment
towards achieving 5%
economic growth that
reduces unemployment
by 2021.

Percentage (%) Capital
Budget spent

99.91%

100%

Priority 7
Enhance our financial
sustainability.

Percentage (%) of
departmental repairs and
maintenance budget
spent

107.4%

100%

Percentage (%) BEE spend

76%

75%

Percentage (%) spend
women owned companies

37%

25%

Percentage (%) SMME
procurement spend

0%

5%

PIKITUP INTEGRATED REPORT 2018/19

11

Pikitup
strategic goal

Goal 2:
Integrated
Waste
Management,
Waste
Prevention
and Waste
Minimisation.

12

Objective

Objective 2.1
To ensure that
waste to landfills
are minimised.
Objective 2.2
To ensure
appropriate
infrastructure is
developed to
dispose of waste
in a sustainable
manner.
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IDP Priority

Key performance
Indicator

Baseline

Target

Percentage (%) of valid
departmental invoices
paid within 30 days of
invoice date

52%

90% of
invoices paid
within 30 days

Audit opinion obtained
from Auditor General
(AG)

Unqualified
Audit

Clean Audit
opinion
obtained from
Auditor
General (AG)

Percentage (%) resolution
of Auditor General
findings

65% (32/49)
of 2016/17

Resolve 75%
of 2017/18
AG findings

Percentage (%) resolution
of Internal Audit finding

74%
(102/138) of
2016/17

Resolve 80%
of 2017/18 IA
findings

Priority 6
Create a City that
responds to the needs
of citizens, customers,
stakeholders and
businesses

Percentage (%) Queries
Resolved in accordance to
Service Standards set
targets.

64.%

90% -95%

Priority 3
Create a culture of
enhanced service
delivery with pride.

Number of SHE audits
conducted quarterly per
site

4

4

Reduction in Disabling
Injury Frequency Rate
(DIFR

2.5

2.5

Average number of days
taken to resolve
disciplinary cases

35 days

32 days

Tonnes of green waste
diverted

35 615

40 000

Tonnes of builder’s rubble
diverted

29 482

50 000

Tonnes of dry waste
diverted through Pikitup
interventions (paper,
plastic, glass, cans)

29 258

32 550

Tonnes of waste disposed
at the landfill sites

1 389 121

Not to exceed
the baseline of
1 389 121

Number of garden sites
converted to Integrated
Waste Management
Facilities

5

10

Percentage (%) landfill
compliance to GDARD
regulations and permit
conditions as issued by
DEA and DWAF, related
to:
Robinson Deep
Ennerdale Landfill Site
Goudkoppies Landfill Site
Marie Louise Landfill Si

94.160%

95%

Priority 9
Preserve our resources
for future generation.

Pikitup
strategic goal

Objective

IDP Priority

Key performance
Indicator

Baseline

Target
5 000

Goal 3:
Realisation of
Value
throughout
the Waste
Value Chain

Objective 3.1
To use waste as
resource for
poverty
alleviation and to
create job
opportunities.

Priority 2
Promote economic
development and
attract investment
towards achieving 5%
economic growth that
reduces unemployment
by 2021.

Number of work
opportunities created
through Expanded Public
Works Programmes
(EPWP).

4 053

Goal 4:

Objective 4.1
To ensure
delivery of
effective and
efficient waste
services.

Priority 3
Create a culture of
enhanced service
delivery with pride.

Number of formal
households receiving
weekly waste removal
services

864 185

Priority 2
Ensure pro-poor
development that
addresses inequality
and poverty and
provides meaningful
redress.

Percentage (%) of all City
proclaimed informal
settlements provided with
integrated waste
management services

100%

100%

Priority 3
Create a culture of
enhanced service
delivery with pride.

Improved City cleanliness
levels in targeted areas
City-wide

Level 2

Level 2

Number of illegal
dumping spots eradicated

126

175

Priority 6
Create a City that
responds to the needs
of citizens, customers,
stakeholders and
businesses.

Annual Satisfaction Survey
conducted to measure
impact of Pikitup services
and waste minimisation
initiatives

Customer
satisfaction
levels (as per
CoJ Household
Survey of
2017),
Satisfaction
levels: 1 (poor)
– 10
(excellent) RCR
– 6.63
Landfill sites
– 4.98
Garden sites
– 5.99
Illegal
dumping
– 5.00

Annual
Satisfaction
Survey (To
achieve an
average
Satisfaction
Level of 6)

Effective and
Efficient Waste
Services

Goal 5:
Partnerships
and
Stakeholder
Involvement

Objective 5.1
Increasing
partnerships to
deliver and
ensure active
stakeholder
engagement that
ensures
consumer
behavioural
change.

Batho Pele
Pikitup subscribes to the principles of Batho Pele to enhance the quality and accessibility of waste management
services.
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Regional Footprint
Operations are distributed among 12 depot strategically located across CoJ’s seven regions. It manages 42 drop off/
garden sites, 6 sorting facilities/buyback centres, four operational landfill sites, and two closed landfill sites. In
addition, in the northern regions some waste is disposed of at two privately owned landfill sites (Mooiplaats and
Chloorkop). All landfill sites comply with permit requirements and are licensed and regulated by the National
Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA) and with respect to Pikitup the regulation has been delegated to the
Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural Development (GDARD).
Figure 1: Areas of Operation –
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Our Business Model

Infrastructure Geographic footprint with
appropriate facilities

The provision of Innovative Integrated Waste
Management Solutions for our clients

Financial Capital:
Appropriate budget and plans
for capex and opex

Profitable growth and financial
returns for our commercial business

Human capital A skilled,
diverse and motivated
work force

LEGAL
COMPLIANCE
Reporting

TECHNICAL
SERVICES
Waste
Classification
Research and
Development

INPUTS

WASTE
LOGISTICS

ON-SITE
SERVICES
Waste
Minimisation

COMMODITY
TRAINING

Environment We are
directly dependent on
natural resources and
our role as environmental
steward
Intellectual capital We require
intellectual capital to provide
waste management solutions
that are evolving

Client centricity with
long-term sustainable
relationships with our clients
which builds annuity income

SOLID AND LIQUID
WASTE TREATMENT

RESOURCE
RECOVERY
Recycling
Metals
Recovery

OUTPUTS &
OUTCOMES

Relationships Strong
relationships with
our suppliers, clients,
employees and
communities

WASTE DISPOSAL
AND FACILITIES
MANAGEMENT
Development
Operation and
Closure

Our people are
engaged, competent
and committed by
providing them with
personal growth and
career opportunities

A transformed economy
with diversity and
inclusion in the City in
which we operate
Sustainable development taking
into account economic, social and
environmental factors

Operational excellence with a mindset of
continuous improvement
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Outlook for 2019 – 2020
The economic climate continues to remain highly volatile and uncertain and affordability of our services remains a
concen. We expect an overall strong operational performance for 2019/2020.
At the core of our business model is providing efficient and effective service delivery to the residence of
Johannesburg. When making decisions on how to manage our business, we have a combination of resources, skills
and relationships that place us in a strong position to deliver value. We refer to these as our capitals.

Human capital

Social and
relationshi p
capital

Natural capital

Financial capital

Manufactured
capital

Intellectual
capital

The value of our capitals
Capitals

Utilisation of capitals

Reference

Financial Capital

Ability to generate cash flows and access to
well-priced debt and equity funding
determines our ability to fund growth.

Our Business Model
Service Delivery Performance
Chief Financial Officer’s Forward

Social and Relationship Capital

Quality relationships with our key
stakeholders is vital to long-term
sustainability. Building trust and credibility
with our stakeholders is key.

Stakeholder Management
Corporate Social Investment

Manufactured Capital

Significant focus is placed on the quality of
the
facilities.

Our Business Model
Service Delivery Performance

Intellectual Capital

Our intellectual capital is largely dependent
on our people and the development of
Integrated Waste Management Solutions.

Our Business Model
Service Delivery Performance

Human Capital

People are core to delivering our strategies. A
pool of qualified, trained and talented people
is required to deliver expectations supported
by empowered management and support
staff.
Employment development and engagement
remain focus areas to ensure we attract and
retain highest calibre of people to drive our
strategy.

Our Board of Directors
Our Executive Management Team
Human Resources
Transformation
Health, Safety and Environment

Natural Capital

Utilisation of natural capital is predominately
driven by our requirements for optimally
located facilities upon which we have
instituted environmental management
systems.

Our Business Model
Service Delivery Performance
Health, Safety and Environment

Our Value Creation
The Company’s strategy is premised on waste minimisation and prevention to remedy and minimise the negative
environmental impact caused by its operations to the environment. These programmes are also aimed at socioeconomic upliftment of communities as they are based on partnerships with community small enterprises and
cooperatives in the provision of these services.
a. Our external operating context
The environment in which we operate impacts our ability to create value. This includes rapid migration to
Johannesburg, increased waste generation trends, unemployment, community protests, operational challenges,
and increasing environmental regulatory requirements.
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b. Identify risks and opportunities
Our strategy is impacted by risks that could materially impact the delivery of value to our stakeholders. The main
purpose of risk management is to adequately position the organisation to understand and respond to the
potential risks that could materially impact the execution of our strategy and value creation.
c. Stakeholder engagement
We are reliant on being perceived as a credible stakeholder partner. Delivering value to stakeholders influences
our reputation. Our success and sustainability depends on the support of our stakeholders and it is essential for
us to understand and be responsive to their needs and interests.
d. Our strategy
Our strategy keeps us focused and sets a clear path to deliver sustainable value in the near, medium and long
term.
e. Our capitals
When making decisions on how to manage and grow our business, we take into account the resources and
relationships that are critical to our ability to create value. We refer to these as the six capitals. Inputs of each are
needed for the effective production and delivery of our goods and services, thereby generating value for all our
stakeholders.
f. Material matters
Material matters are those matters with the potential to affect our value creation and the achievement of our
strategy.
g. Top priorities
We live in an era of constant change. The world is changing and we must change with it to remain relevant and
competitive particularly in our commercial operation. In alignment with our strategy we formulate top priorities
for the short-term, which contribute to achieving our long term strategy.
h. Governance
We are a values-based organisation, committed to high standards of business integrity and ethics. Being
accountable and responsible to all stakeholders is a priority.
i.

Create superior value
Our purpose is to create superior value for our customers, shareholders and other stakeholders. We use financial
and non-financial KPIs to measure the achievement of our strategic targets over the short, medium and long
term.

Our Material Matters
Material matters are those issues that could substantially affect our ability to create value in the short, medium and
long term and result in us not being able to execute our strategy:

Advancing
sustainability

Growth momentum
of commercial
business

Safe and
environmentally
conscious operations

Effective human
capital management

Balance sheet
management

Our executive management is responsible for managing the material matters in a structured way and ensures that
they remain current and relevant. The Board Sub-Committees validate as part of their Charters and work plans, the
list of material issues.
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Pikitup Programmes and Benefits
Waste Separation at Source
The implementation of programmes such as the Separation at Source which recovers recyclable material from the
point of generation in collaboration with communities, is one of the initiative established by the Company to divert
waste from landfills and prolongs landfill airspace availability.
The City of Johannesburg is fast running out of landfill airspace, with the latest survey estimating the remaining
landfill airspace at an average of 5.54 yrs. On the other hand, the National Waste Management Strategy (2011) had
a goal of diverting 25% of recyclables by 2016, using a 2011 baseline; whilst the National norms and standards for
disposal of waste to landfill (2013) sets a target for garden waste diversion of 25% by 2018 and 50% by 2023,
using a 2013 baseline. In line with these targets and as a mitigating measure against the depleting landfill airspace,
Pikitup has introduced mandatory waste separation at source of dry recyclables at certain targeted households.
The separation at source (S@S) programme is part of the Pikitup’s overall strategy to change resident behavior,
reduce waste to landfills and establishing a recycling economy through separation at source and methods of
reducing, reusing and recycling waste.
It should be noted that the success and ability to meet the target is dependent on the availability of capital and
operational funding. Other considerations are the relationship and roll-out of Co-production/SMMEs, upgrading of
infrastructure (e.g. Garden sites and buy back centres), formalising the activities of pickers and mobile recycling
stations. It is noted that the relationship between Pikitup and the SMMEs (including household and reclaimers) is key
to the Separation at Source programme.
S@S has been rolled out in the following depots: Zondi, Central camp, Marlboro, Waterval, parts of Avalon (Orange
Farm, Lenasia), part of Randburg (Diepsloot) and part of Randburg (Zandspruit), parts of Midrand and Southdale.
Figure 2.7.1below depicts the percentage contribution from Pikitup depots and landfills for total tonnages diverted

PERCENTAGE CONTRIBUTION FOR TOTAL TONNAGES DIVERTED JULY ’18-JUNE ’19
Avalon
3%

Central Camp
5%

Landfills
25%

Marlboro
8%

Midrand
13%

Zondi
22%

Selby
3%
Waterval
13&

Southdale
1%

Norwood
6%
Randburg
1%

Roodepoort
0%

As indicated above, the readiness plan for implementation of mandatory separation of dry recyclables in areas where
separation at source has been rolled out, and garden waste in selected middle to high income areas, was developed
in 2017/18. Implementation was undertaken during the course of 2018/19 financial year.
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The graph below is gives an indication of the tonnages reported since the commencement of the Mandatory
Separation at Source. The black line indicates tonnages extracted from areas where mandatory separation at source
has been implemented.
Figure 2.7.2: Tonnages of dry waste diverted from July 2018 to June 2019
4000,00
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Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19

Jul-18
2536,41
2179,72
356,69
1097,89

Aug-18
2608,15
2201,44
406,71
1171,18

Feb-19
1807,58
1318,37
489,21
1222,97

Sep-18
1060,93
1060,93
411,06
996,52

Oct-18
3843,77
3415,45
428,31
1419,11

Nov-18
2611,38
2170,01
441,37
1247,82

Dec-18
459,83
459,83
470,37
376,67

Jan-19
2383,18
1976,46
406,72
376,67

Mar-19
1214,45
1063,71
554,34
1063,71

Apr-19
2752,86
2171,19
581,67
1828,04

May-19
2694,24
2082,95
611,29
1688.73

Jun-19
2019,19
1361,22
657,97
1908,26

Benefits
The methodologies used in the implementation of Separation@Source ensures that opportunities are extracted from
the waste value chain. Through the establishment of cooperatives and entrepreneurial development initiatives,
sustainable jobs have been created and new business established. This is a direct contribution to the IDP Priority 1 of
promoting economic growth and reducing unemployment. These programmes include the establishment of
cooperatives, training as well as ongoing support of the cooperatives.
Currently there are two private companies appointed and managed through Service Level Agreements with penalty
clauses for non-performance. The companies have their own caged truck with driver, plastic bags, sorting facility and
own labour. They procure their own bags, distribute bags, collect recyclables, sort, and sell recyclables for own
financial benefit and report tonnages to Pikitup as waste diversions and in return, Pikitup pays service providers on a
Rate per household basis.
It should be emphasised that collaboration with the private sector does not move away from Pikitup’s model of
supporting SMMEs and integrating reclaimers to roll out recycling in line with fulfilling the job creation imperative. To
date twenty five Cooperatives have been appointed and managed through an MOU, Pikitup provides caged truck
with driver, plastic bags, sorting facilities and the Cooperatives provides their own labour. Cooperatives distribute
bags, collect recyclables, sort, and sell recyclables for own financial benefit and report tonnages to Pikitup as waste
diversion.

Our Materiality Determination Process
A range of external and internal influences are taken into account, and a matter is considered to be relevant if it is
deemed worthy to the appropriate stakeholders, if it links to significant risks confronting the entity, or if it lies at the
heart of our strategies. Issues that could substantially impact our ability to create value and provide sustainable
integrated waste management services while shifting towards addressing the imperatives of the Growth and
Development Strategy (GDS 2040), the Integrated Waste Management Plan and the National Waste Management
Strategy in order to reduce, re-use and recycle waste streams, while extracting value from the waste stream along
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the waste value chain, these are also considered to be material. In addition to stakeholder consultations and
engagements, we conduct research into industry best practice
The process ends with a validation of the outcomes and confirmation of compliance with the requirements of the
relevant frameworks. We rely on existing, ongoing engagement mechanisms with stakeholders to gather feedback
for our integrated report content.
Our material issues emerges from the following three components, namely, our strategy, stakeholders and key risks
faced by the entity and stakeholders, evaluated in terms of probability and potential impact on our ability to create
value.

Strategic Goals
a) Waste minimisation
The company has continued with implementing waste minimisation projects in order to divert waste to landfill,
these include green waste diversion, separation at source, builder’s rubble and upgrading of four drop off
centres. The ultimate aim is to increase airspace. In addition, new Waste diversion programs currently underway
are being accelerated including interventions to implement alternative waste treatment technologies
(Implementation of waste to energy (WTE) project through a public private partnership (PPP) is at the
procurement phase following a recent appointment of a transactional advisor in line with the requirements of the
PPP process. To this end, a letter highlighting a budget shortfall forecast has been finalized by Pikitup and
submitted to EISD as the project owner.
Furthermore, a bio digester project for the processing of biodegradable waste to biogas as a fuel for metro buses
is at an advanced stage. Plant design and layout documents for the procurement of Engineering, Procurement
and Construction (EPC) contractor is expected to be concluded in the 1st quarter of 2019/20.
b) Extracting value from waste
In order to address waste prevention as well as the minimisation of waste, there is a need to create value from
waste throughout the value chain. The company contribution included ensuring that a recycling economy is
established in the City of Johannesburg where communities and entrepreneurs are enabled to manage and
benefit from recycling activities and waste was used as a resource to produce various products. At the center of
this intervention was the continued support and establishment of various community based co-operatives and
entrepreneurs to take responsibility for collecting and managing recycled waste through the separation as source
programme and green waste diversion.
c) Service delivery
Whilst investigating and implementing new projects that will result in waste minimisation, efficient services need
to be delivered to residents. During the period under review, in line with its mandate, the company serviced 1
182 997 formal households, receiving Level of service LoS-1, serviced and maintained 157 recognized Informal
Settlement areas at multiple days per week, these areas consist of 249 819 units, 422 communal skips (Level of
Service, LoS-3), rudimentary cleaning services has also been provided to approximately 22 Hostels within the City,
which comprises of litter picking, clearing of Illegal dumping, bulk container removal and domestic waste
collection depending on the requirement of each hostel and 107 055 waste disposed and diverted for the year to
date.
Monthly clean-up campaigns such as A Re Sebetseng in partnership with key stakeholders were implemented
across the CoJ seven regions, 34 illegal dumping spots were eradicated and rehabilitated into food gardens,
parks, recreational centres etc., a total of 32 598 wheelie bins to formalized areas were distributed.
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d) Financial sustainability
In order to be a leading company the financial position of the company needs to be sustained, the entity only
manage to achieve a 59% collection from its commercial customers, efforts to address the revenue collection
shortages have made with COJ RSSC unit on a weekly basis and further interventions for improved collection are
continuously explored.
e) Partnershi ps
Key to the successful achievement of waste prevention and minimisation is the change of citizen behaviour.
Behaviour change by citizens will impact on the success of the initiatives related to waste minimisation and to
improve quality of service rendered. In the year under review a total 60 stakeholders were identified and
meaningful relationships and engagements were formed and executed respectively. The stakeholders were
engaged on a variety of issues impacting both the stakeholder and the organisation. Some of these engagements
resulted in the formation of beneficial partnerships, and involvement of stakeholders in programmes and
initiatives that supports Pikitup’s vision and mission.
Joint programmes were initiated and driven successfully with stakeholders availing their resources and expertise
that derived value for both Pikitup and its partners.
Various activations in the promotion of the Mandatory Separation at Source programme and responsible waste
management practices took place in the 2018/2019 financial year, these included the door to door campaigns in
communities and businesses, environmental education and awareness in schools, environmental education
awareness and training for community members, cooperatives and environmental forums.
c 38 Door to door campaigns to promote Separation@Source were carried out in different areas within the city
of Johannesburg. Businesses were also visited through the door to door campaigns.
c Environmental education and awareness campaigns with key messages on the three Rs Reduce, Re-use and
Recycle were carried out in 151 schools and 66 894 learners benefitted from the presentations.
c Capacitate and support the environmental Forums, Cooperatives and other organisations to advocate and
campaign for the S@S programme. In total, 38 Organisations such as Environmental Forums, Cooperatives and
Churches were capacitated to help Pikitup divert waste from the landfill sites.
c Environmental Day, National Clean Up and recycling Week were celebrated and Pikitup participated in these
programmes through educating and creating awareness about the best waste management practices and
recycling.

Intergovernmental Relations
Key to the successful achievement of waste prevention and minimisation is the change of citizen behaviour and the
partnership with other government departments and spheres of government. Behaviour change by citizens will
impact on the success of the initiatives related to waste minimisation and to improve quality of service rendered. In
the year under review a total 60 stakeholders were identified and meaningful relationships and engagements were
formed and executed respectively. The stakeholders were engaged on a variety of issues impacting both the
stakeholder and the organisation. Some of these engagements resulted in the formation of beneficial partnerships,
and involvement of stakeholders in programmes and initiatives that supports Pikitup’s vision and mission.
Joint programmes were initiated and driven successfully with stakeholders availing their resources and expertise that
derived value for both Pikitup and its partners.
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The linkages and alignment between these various elements are depicted in the table below:
Material issues

Strategic goal

Capital

Risks

Waste
Minimisation.

Integrated waste management,
waste prevention and waste
minimisation.

Natural capital

c D
 epletion of available landfill
airspace
c Misalignment of human
resources to business
objectives

Extracting value from
waste.

Realisation of value throughout
the waste value chain.

Intellectual capital (knowledgebased intangibles, tacit
knowledge, systems,
procedures and protocols)
c Human capital (our people’s

c M
 isalignment of human
resources to business
objectives

competencies, capabilities and
experience, and their
motivations to innovate)
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Service delivery.

Effective and efficient waste
services.

c Social and relationship
capital (the institutions and
relationships established
within and between
communities and
stakeholders to enhance
individual and collective
wellbeing
c Manufactured capital
c Intellectual capital (systems,
procedures, protocols and
intangibles associated with
the brand and reputation)
c Human capital

c S trike action
c Failure to secure Full Fleet
Maintenance Lease (FML)
contract for fleet and plan.
c Misalignment of human
resources to business
objectives

Financial sustainability

Building an efficient, effective
and viable waste management
company.

Financial capital

c Information security and
cyber threats
c Fraud and corruption
c Inadequate business
intelligence and data to
inform business decisions
c Modified audit opinion on
performance information
c Inability to maintain and
grow the current revenue
base and profit margin

Partnerships

Partnership and stakeholder
involvement

Social and relationship capital
(the institutions and
relationships established within
and between communities and
stakeholders to enhance
individual and collective
wellbeing)

Failure to change public
behaviour towards the
handling of waste.
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Section 2: F oreword by the Member of the Mayoral
Committee
While the challenges to the organisation in the first half of the year have been
arduous, major consideration for the entity was to remain commited to
improving the services we provide our customers and to also strenghthen our
efforts in ensuring waste is minimised.
I would like to commend Pikitup for honouring the Mayoral Priorities and
Diphetogo during the current financial year. The entity’s strategic focus for
2018-19, in line with the IDP strategic outcome, was to ensure that efficient
and effective services delivery to the residents of Johannesburg was provided.
I am grateful for the exceptionally hard work the operational teams at Pikitup
Nico de Jager
MMC

undertook throughout the year, but particularly during the various community
protests that occurred during the year. Safety of our teams is critical, and the

fact that services continued to be rendered is greatly appreciated.
Pikitup in partnership with various entities in CoJ as well as private institutions, successfully carried out a Clean-up
Day campaigns which aimed to rid CoJ of illegal dumping hotspots and to promote a Clean City vision for a
litter-free Johannesburg, with an aesthetically attractive environment and with effective waste removal services.
Pikitup also held a number of the waste management campaigns during the year where government, business,
private sector, amongst others, shared ideas and proposed solutions to address the challenges in the waste sector.
I have to stress that today’s increasingly resource constrained world requires us to collectively safeguard the
environment and manage potential environmental impacts in order to become a sustainable society. I therefore
would like to applaud Pikitup in ensuring that within this financial year, the delivery of waste management services
to the communities and businesses within CoJ was done so in the interest of protecting the environment and leaving
a sustainable legacy for future generations. The 2018/19 financial year also set the scene for our adoption of
mandatory separation at source in the 2018/19. This project will be critical in the upcoming years as we move to
majorly reduce waste being sent to landfill sites, preventing an increase in both costs to Pikitup and knock on rates
and tariff increases to residents. In line with the CoJ strategic objectives of reducing waste away from the landfill
sites and to inculculate a culture of recycling in our local communities, in November 2018, I had the previlledge of
opening four garden sites which were upgraded, namely Ashbutron, Victory park, Babiana and Ballyclaire. These four
sites have been upgraded into integrated waste management drop-off sites.
I have however noted with great concern the company’s performance and I would like to appeal to the Board and
management of Pikitup to put the necessary measures in place to address the challenges identified and to work
tirelessly to improve the company’s performance and achieve the set targets for 2018-19. We urge the management
to equally work tirelessly towards making Pikitup a friendly work environment for all, an environment that is
characterized by and imbues teamwork, collegiality and a caring attitude to both its staff members within the entity
and towards its clientele – the citizens of the City of Johannesburg.

Councillor N de Jager
Member of the Mayoral Committee for Environment, Infrastructure and Services Department
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Section 3: Chairperson’s Foreword
On behalf of the Pikitup Board of Directors, it is my privilege to present
the Company’s Integrated Annual Report and the Annual Financial
Statements for the financial year ending 31 June 2019.
This Integrated Annual Report incorporates the entities Financial
Performance, as contained in the Audited Annual Financial Statements
(AFS), as well as its overall performance pertaining to the achievement of
the pre-determined objectives, as set in the approved Business Plan. The
aim of this report is to promote accountability to stakeholders and
communities for decisions taken by Pikitup. The two central points of the
Ms N Mkhize
Chairperson

report are the Audit Report and the Audited Annual Financial Statements,
which are a fair representation of the financial position, financial

performance and cash flow of Pikitup; prepared in conformity with the framework for the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements, as well as the Generally Recognized Accounting Practice Standards.

Board Performance
During this reporting period the main focus had been on the review and repurposing the strategic direction of
Pikitup to ensure that there is alignment between the Pikitup strategy and vision to the political priorities of the
City of Johannesburg. The Board has also had a keen focus on ensuring that Pikitup successfully achieves its
2018/2019 key performance targets.

Company’s Performance
The Board has however noted with disappointment the underperformance of the entity in key performance
areas as outlined in the 2018/19 Service Delivery Budget and Implementation Plan (SDBIP). The performance
during the 2018/19 financial year has demonstrated continuous poor progress. We have ensured that the
management puts in place controls to ensure that in the next year (2019/2020), performance is improved for
the better. The lack of property plant and equipment that supports the strategy of the business and service
delivery has to be addressed and filling of critical leadership vacancies is also noted as a concern and the Board
intends to expedite the appointment of the Chief Operations Officer and Managing Director in the first quarter
of 2019/20.
The challenges that confront Pikitup are at both strategic and operational levels including but not limited to
Capex spend, diversion of builder’s rubble, dealing with illegal dumping, limited landfill airspace and
implementation of mandatory separation at source. I amplify some of these challenges hereunder:
Another major challenge that Pikitup faced in the successful delivery of services was the unreliability of fleet.
The delay in fleet procurement by the City of Johannesburg has disabled the entity in its provision of efficient
and effective waste management service throughout the City, increased overtime expenditure, has seen a
significant loss of commercial clients.
Another long term concern of the Board is the depleting landfill airspace, for which various waste diversion
efforts are being intensified, albeit not at the desired pace.
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Healthy and safety issues
During the period under review there has been a vast increase in the number of injuries within our operations, 219
of disabling injuries within our operations were recorded. The high numbers of incidents reported was a contribution
of multiple factors such as:
c More employees absorbed with less training given of how to perform the tasks effectively and safely
c Aged fleet with mechanical failures and poor maintenance
c General staff negligence and lack of consequence management, and an ageing workforce
Driver training is another initiative that must be fully implemented to curb vehicle related incidents. An initiative that
has been implemented to assist in the reduction of vehicle related injuries is training of drivers on advanced driving
which was conducted in March in partnership with the Road Accident Fund (RAF). A total of 283 Pikitup drivers were
trained. A more permanent driver training programme and new driver monitoring technology will be introduced in
future.

Strategic Direction
A shareholder compact and the 2019/2020 Business Plan has been signed between the Board and the City of
Johannesburg as its shareholder, which sets out key performance measures and indicators to be attained in the next
financial year. These documents are the basis for the performance monitoring of Pikitup by the shareholder, and
against which the political leadership of the Member of the Mayoral Committee for Environment Infrastructure
Services, Nico de Jager holds the Board accountable.

Acknowledgements
On behalf of the Board of Directors I would like to pay special recognition to all our staff members for their
commitment in executing their duties with the due diligence and care. I would also like to thank the Board for the
full support and guidance that it continues to give to the Pikitup leadership team.

Ms N Mkhize
Chairperson: Pikitup Board on behalf of the Board

PIKITUP INTEGRATED REPORT 2018/19

25

Section 4: Managing Director’s Overview Report
The 2017/18 Integrated Annual Report provides a holistic and integrated overview of the entity’s performance in
terms of its operations, finances, governance and sustainability.

Year to date performance highlights
Service Delivery:
While the challenges to the company during this year have been difficult we remained committed to improving the
services we provide our customers.
The major challenge that the company faced is behavior patterns from our residence regarding illegal dumping and
littering. The number of illegal dumping spots increased from 2 066 in the previous year to 2 962 and a total of
291 751 tons was collected, the average sites cleared and/or cleaned was 10 892 which cost the entity R60 million.
It is worth noting that the total waste diverted away from landfills in the current year has decreased when compared
to the previous year’s achievement of 94 344 tons to 83 104.32 tons in the 2018/19 financial year, which is 67.8%
of the annual waste diversion target of 122 550 tons. The underperformance in this regard was significantly
influenced by the low diversion in builder’s rubble due to frequent breakdowns of builders’ rubble crusher machines,
out of 6 crusher machine only one was operating for the better part of the year.
Below is a breakdown of the achievements by waste stream:
c The combined builders rubble diversion for the four quarters of 2018/19 is 8 224 tons, which is 12% of the
annual diversion target of 50 000 tons. The annual target of builder’s rubble diversion was therefore compromised
significantly.
c The total green waste diverted for the 2018/19 is 50 958.35 tons against the adjusted target of 40 000 tons. This
represents approximately 127% of the annual target.
c Dry waste recycling achieved for the year is 25 991.97 tons which is 78% of the adjusted annual target of 32 550
tons.
Landfill status
A landfill survey to determine the remaining airspace was conducted in June 2019. In determining the remaining
landfill airspace, the surveyor took into consideration the landfill final recommended heights, landfill slope profile of
1m vertical to 3m horizontal (1:3) and feasible landfill footprints for each operational landfill. Also taken into
consideration was the waste disposal rate at each of the operational landfill sites, The total remaining landfill
airspace is 4.54 years overall remaining landfill airspace as at the end of June 2019.
The City of Johannesburg is still facing a crisis regarding landfill airspace capacity, although it is disposing 973 951
tons and diverting approximately 83 104, 32 tons. The following interventions are being implemented on a phased
approach to mitigate the depleting airspace to prolong the existing design capacity:
c Exploring landfill height and lateral extensions by conducting permit/license amendments to increase the existing
landfill capacity is in progress;
c Construction of clean Material Recovery Facilities (MRFs) and Transfer Stations at Marie Louise; Kya Sands and
Linbro Park landfill sites will assist to reduce waste disposed at the landfills, implementation will be phased in line
with resource allocations;
c In the medium to long-term, exploration and the possible phasing-in of the waste by rail system to a privately
operated landfill in Delmas.

26

PIKITUP INTEGRATED REPORT 2018/19

Recycling optimization
Performance against the Separation at Source significantly improved towards the end of the fourth quarter, the
improved performance in dry waste diversion was partly due to the improved participation in waste separation at
source in middle to high income areas serviced by the private sector. The total number of households serviced in
Midrand depot is 48 376, Norwood depot is 27 952 and Avalon is 17 960 respectively. Participation rate in Midrand
depot area increased from 70,8% in Q1 to 78,5 in Q4, in Norwood, participation rate increased from 59% in Q1 to
72% in Q4, whereas in Avalon, it increased from 46% in Q1 to 53% in Q4 (Figure 5.2.2). Figure
Quarterly average separation at source partici pation rate in Midrand,Norwood and Avalon depot areas.
CHART 3.2.2. QUARTERLY AVERAGE PARTICIPATION
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In the next financial year, the entity has planned to roll-out separation at source to 50 000 additional households in
the Randburg and Roodepoort depot and increase the participation rate in Midrand, Norwood and Avalon areas
Implementation of waste separating at source and collection system in City owned and occupied buildings across all
occupied City facilities throughout the seven (7) regions. Pikitup will implement waste separation at source and
collection service of recyclable office waste in three hundred (300) facilities. Train and support cooperatives to
undertake waste sorting and collection at the facilities, incubation of cooperatives, SETA accredited training will be
explored.
The entity will be upgrading seven existing garden/drop-off sites into Integrated Waste Management Facilities (IWMF
will include a range of activities. This will provide facilities for all types of waste, i.e. garden waste, recyclables,
builder’s rubble, e-waste and others; it will provide sorting facilities where recyclers can sort recyclables further and
where waste collected from street cleaning and other areas may be sorted; it will also provide for buyers to buy the
recyclable waste; where scales and other infrastructure to ensure that tonnages can be monitored will be placed.

Engagement with stakeholders
The focus for Pikitup during 2018/19 was to ensure the efficient and effective services delivery to the residents of
Johannesburg. The success to achieve this outcome required the participation of all residents and businesses and
therefore particular focus on stakeholder engagement and partnership was enhanced, making sure that there is a
collective effort from all stakeholders. Pikitup managed to secure 63 partnerships, these partnerships assisted with
the eradication of an illegal dumping sites and clean up campaigns
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Financial Performance
The entity realised/recorded an annual net-surplus for the year amounting to R90 600 813 (2018: R171 163 428) in
terms of the unaudited annual financial statements. The increase is mainly due to budget cut implemented through
the mid-year adjustment and the implementation of the general valuation roll effective from 01 July 2018.
Tariff for the service charges is linked to the property values, hence the increase in revenue. City cleaning levy
increased marginally compare to comparative period due to revenue forfeited through the increase in property
exemption rebate implemented effective from 01 July 2018. The exemption was increased from property value of
R200 000 to R350 000.
The Net-asset position also improved from R147 070 621 (restated) recorded for comparative period to R237 671
434 as at 30 June 2019. Payroll cost represent 49.81% of the total expenditure from 44.73% recorded in
comparative period, an increase due to the absorption of former 2010 and J@W employees.
The entity is in a financial stable position based on the unaudited financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2019. We are confident that the financial statements fairly states the financial affairs of the entity for the period. All
transactions incurred by the entity are valid, accurately and completely recorded.

Acknowledgments
Our staff members remain a key contributor to our endeavours to put service delivery top on our agenda.
In this quest, we will continue to engage with organised labour in a constructive manner, to ensure that we continue
to uphold the ideals of unfettered service delivery to all the citizens of this world-class African city. Targeted
roadshows and communication with all staff took place during the year to reiterate our vision and focus and to
ensure all Pikitup members work collectively towards the goals and objectives.
I thank the Auditor General for the audit of Pikitup. The necessary consequence management will be implemented
to ensure an improved audit outcome for 2019/2020. Piktiup’s audit outcome was certainly not worse than that of
2017/2018, as the entity sees another unqualified audit with far more areas that have improved than in prior year,
particularly that business performance information and evidence was available for audit unlike in prior year, and
compliance levels have seen improvement from prior year.

Mr S Malahlela
Acting Managing Director
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Statement of Responsibility and Confirmation of Accuracy for the Annual Report
To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that all the information and amounts disclosed in this Annual
Integrated Report are consistent with the Annual Financial Statements of Pikitup, audited by the Auditor-General of
South Africa. The report is complete, accurate and is free of any omissions.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the Guidelines on the Annual Report as issued by National
Treasury. The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) Standards applicable to Pikitup.
In our opinion, this Annual Report fairly reflects the Review of Operations, the Performance Information, the Human
Resources Information and the financial affairs of Pikitup for the financial year ended 31 June 2018.
Yours faithfully

Segala Malahlela

Nompumelelo Mkhize

Acting Managing Director

Chairperson of the Board

30 June 2019
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Chapter 2
Corporate
Governance

Section 1: Corporate Governance
Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, controlled and held to
account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s enabling legislation, corporate governance
with regard to public entities is applied through the precepts of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) and
run in tandem with the principles contained in the King Code of Governance Principles and King Report on
Governance (King IV).
Pikitup applies the governance principles contained in King IV and continues to further entrench and strengthen
recommended practices in our governance structures, systems, processes and procedures. The Board of Directors and
Executives recognise and are committed to the principles of openness, integrity and accountability advocated by the
King IV. Through this process, shareholders and other stakeholders may derive assurance that the entity’s is being
ethically managed according to prudently determined risk parameters in compliance with generally accepted
corporate practices. Monitoring the entity’s compliance with King IV, forms part of the mandate of the Audit
Committee.
The entity has complied with King IV in all material respects during the year under review.

Board of Directors
The Board is accountable to the CoJ in terms of the Companies Act and the local government regulatory framework,
and contractually in terms of the Service Delivery Agreement and Shareholder Compact concluded with the CoJ. The
Board provides effective leadership based on a principled foundation and high ethical standards. Responsible
leadership, characterised by responsibility, accountability, fairness and transparency, has been a defining characteristic
of the entity since Pikitup’s establishment in 2000.
Pikitup adopted a new Board Charter during the reporting period. Pikitup’s service standards were restated and a
new Service Delivery Agreement was entered into with the CoJ. The foregoing was consolidated to enhance
accountability at Board level and a separate Shareholder Compact was entered into between the Board and the CoJ,
Pikitup’s shareholder.
The revised Pikitup Memorandum of Incorporation (MOI), which was approved by the shareholder at the annual
general meeting held in February 2018
Non-executive Directors contribute an independent view to matters under consideration and add to the depth of
experience of the Board. The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are separate, with responsibilities divided
between them. The Chairman has no executive functions.
Directors have unlimited access to the Company Secretary, who acts as an advisor to the Board and its committees
on matters relating to, inter alia, compliance with Company rules and procedures, statutory regulations and best
corporate practices. No conflicts of interest were identified in respect of the Board and the Managing Director.

Composition of the Board
The entity has a unitary Board, which at year-end was comprised of two executive directors and nine non-executive
directors, all of whom are independent of Pikitup (i.e. no non-executive director has any business relationship with or
shareholding in Pikitup). The Board was chaired by B Shongwe until December 2018, between January and April
2019 the board was chaired by Professor F Netswera and in the last quarter by N Mkhize.
The standard term of appointment for Board members is one year. Board members are eligible for re-appointment
for a further two terms. The Board is required to meet as often as the business of Pikitup requires, but at least four
times a year.
The Executive Management team is appointed by the Managing Director after consultation with the Board. The
Executive Management is employed on the basis of a fixed-term contract. The maximum duration of fixed-term
contracts is five years.
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Board Members:
Changes to the Board
The Board of Pikitup comprised of 7 (seven) non-executive directors and 1 (one) executive director: V Mathebula, F
Netswera, B Shongwe (Chairperson), C Mayne, L Brenner, N Kana, J Snyman, S Bogatsu and S Malahlela (acting
Accounting Officer).
B Shongwe resigned from the Board of Pikitup on the 31st December 2018. F Netswera was appointed the
Chairperson of Pikitup from January 2019 to April 2019. S Segala was the acting Accounting Officer of Pikitup
Johannesburg.
The Shareholder at its Annual Shareholder General Meeting (AGM) held on 17 April 2019, retired F Netswera and N
Kana. N Mkhize (Chairperson), L Brenner (reappointment), T Mafanya, S Bogatsu (reappointment), Prof J Snyman
(reappointment), C Mayne reappointment), T Zwane, L Verveen, V Mathebula (reappointment) were appointed as the
Board of Pikitup at the AGM of 17 April 2019 . The Pikitup Board comprised of the following nine (9) non-executive
directors and one (1) executive director.
L Matsila (Chief Financial Officer) is an ex-officio member of the board, and C Louw is the Company Secretary of the
Board

Board Profile

Race:

Gender

Black: 60%
White: 33%

Male: 33%
Female: 33%

Nompumelelo Mkhize
Chairperson
Expertise and Experience
Leadership development, Strategy formulation
Qualifications
BA Psychology Degree, Master of Business Administration, Management
Advanced Programme Certificate, a Diploma in Financial Accounting, and a
Certificate in Change Management

Litshani Matsila
Chief Financial Officer
Financial Director
Expertise and Experience
Financial Management, Financial Reporting, Supply Chain Management, GRAP
standards, Financial Internal Controls and Strategy, Internal and External Audit
Qualifications
B Comm Accounting
B Comm CTA, CA(SA), Registered Auditor (RA)
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Tholeka Mafanya
Non-Executive Director
Expertise and Experience
Environmental management
Qualifications
MSc in Geohydrology
Certificate in Advanced Project Management

Vongani Mathebula
Non-Executive Director
Expertise and Experience
Environmental Management
Qualifications
B-Tech Mining Engineering
Financial Management certificate, Management Development Programme,
Government Mine Managers Certificate of Competency

Louis Verveen
Non-Executive Director
Expertise and Experience
Labour Law/Employment Law involves the following: Litigation in the
Labour Court
Qualifications
BPROC. Degree, Advanced Labour Law Diploma as well as an LLM degree in
Labour Law

Lionel Brenner
Chairperson of ARC
Expertise and Experience
Financial Management/Consulting, Financial Reporting, Financial Internal
Controls and Strategy, Internal and External Audit
Qualifications
BComm, Bcompt Honours CA (SA)

Jacques Snyman
Non-Executive Member
Expertise and Experience
Environmental Engineering: Solid Waste Management and Environmental
Impact Assessment and Management
Qualifications
PhD Civil Engineering
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Thulani Zwane
Non-Executive Member
Expertise and Experience
Financial Management, Financial Reporting, Supply Chain Management
Qualifications
Bcom (Acc) Honours degree (CA (SA)

Setshego Bogatsu
Non-Executive Member
Expertise and Experience
Designing and Implementing Cost Model Financial Management, Financial
Reporting, Internal and External Audit
Qualifications
B.Com and MBA

Colin Mayne
Non-Executive Member
Expertise and Experience
ICT solutions, 19 years CEO experience in private sector
Qualifications
BA Hons degree in English Literature

Board Sub Committees
The Board delegates certain responsibilities to well-structured Board Committees without abdicating accountability.
The delegation is formal in terms of Board-approved Terms of Reference for each Committee. The Shareholder
appoints the members for the skills required to effectively provide strategic direction to Pikitup, as well as monitor
and oversee its activities. The Board receives reports and minutes of each Committee meeting. The Board has
established a framework for the delegation of authority to the Managing Director and Executive Management, which
also sets out the material decisions in respect of which it has reserved the decision-making authority. The
composition and mandate of the various Board Committees contribute to the effective discharge of the Board’s
duties and responsibilities to grow and protect value for our stakeholders.
The Board and its sub-committees underwent a change in quarter 4 of the year under review. Pikitup started the
year with 5 board sub-committees, namely, the Audit and Risk Committee, the Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee, the Social and Ethics Committee, the Operations and Service Delivery Committee and the Information
and Communication Technology Committee. Following the Annual General Meeting of 17 April 2019, the board
sub-committees were reduced to only 3 (three). The sub-committees and the membership below is reflective of how
they were made up before and also how they were made up after the AGM.
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Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee assisted the Board in overseeing Pikitup’s integrated reporting (incorporating financial
statements, sustainability reporting); the independence of external auditors; the scope and effectiveness of the
external audit; the effectiveness of Pikitup’s internal controls and internal audit function; and compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements that have an impact on the financial statements and the accounting and financial
reporting systems of Pikitup. Material matters the committee has added value to:

Social and Ethics and Human Resources Committee
The Human Resources, Remuneration Committee and subsequently the Social and Ethics and Human Resources
Committee directed the governance of remuneration by setting the direction of how remuneration is approached
and addressed within Pikitup. It assisted the Board in ensuring that employees are remunerated fairly, responsibly and
transparently by implementing affordable, competitive and fair reward practices to promote the achievement of the
Pikitup’s strategy. This includes approving material human resources policies, the principles of the mix between
guaranteed and variable components of remuneration and annual salary adjustments.
The committee further monitored the ethical conduct of the company, its executives and senior officials, and
monitored the strategies, policies, performance and implementation of the SHE policy, substantive SHE risks and
liabilities, monitored Pikitup’s key safety indicators and ensures there is a systematic approach to prevent their
recurrence. The material matters the committee contributed to:

Service Delivery Committee (SDC)
The Committee evaluated and monitored Pikitup’s information and technology (IT) risk management and control
environment. Monitoring of Pikitup’s operational performance was conducted by the committee. This contributed to
the following material matters:

Audit and Risk Committee (ARC)
Lionel Brenner (Chairperson)
C Mayne
J Snyman
R Buys
W Hattingh.
The ARC met 6 times during the year under review.
The Board confirms that the Committees discharged its mandate during the period under review.
As of the 17 April 2019 the new Audit and Risk Committee was constituted with the following members Lionel
Brenner (Chairperson), T Zwane, S Malope, R Buys and W Hattingh, however no meeting was held by the newly
formed Committee for the financial year 2018/19.
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Social and Ethics Committee (SEC)
Setshego Bogatsu (Chairperson)
Fulufhelo Netswera
Nomso Kana
Colin Mayne.
The SEC met four times during the year under review.

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (HRRC)
Fulufhelo Netswera (Chairperson)
Setshego Bogatsu
Bheki Shongwe
Colin Mayne became the member of the Committee post the resignation of Bheki Shongwe.
The Committee met four times during the year under review.
In the last quarter of the financial year, the Social and Ethics Committee and Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee were combined to form the Social, Ethics and Human Resources Committee (SEHRC).

Social and Ethics and Human Resources Committee (SEHRC)
Louis Verveen (Chairperson)
Setshego Bogatsu
Colin Mayne
The Committee met once during the period under review.

Information and Communication Technology Committee (ICTC)
Nomso Kana (Chairperson)
Colin Mayne
Jacque Snyman
Lionel Brenner

Operations and Service Delivery Committee (OPSCO)
Bheki Shongwe (Chairperson)
Fulufhelo Netswera
Jacque Snyman
Nomso Kana
The OPSCO met four times during the year under review.
Jacque Snyman was appointed the Chairperson of the Committee upon the resignation of Bheki Shongwe.
After the AGM of 17 April 2019, the OPSCO and ICT Committee were combined to form the Service Delivery
Committee (SDC).

Service Delivery Committee (SDC)
Tholeka Mafanya (Chairperson)
Prof Jacques Snyman
Vongani Mathebula.
No meeting was held by the Committee for the period under review.
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Board and subcommittee activities for the period under review
The Board confirms that the Sub Committees have discharged its mandate during the period under review.
An adhoc task team was appointed by the Board of Pikitup to attend to the Public Protector findings, and the
findings of the Public Protector report have been attended to satisfactorily.
In Each Board and Sub Committee meeting members are offered the opportunity to declare interests, and during the
year under review there were no conflicts of interest identified. The attendance and declaration of records are kept in
one register and are open for scrutiny.
For the year under review the following key items were considered and approved by the Board: Risk Management
Policy, Risk Management Plan, Combined Assurance Policy, Combined Assurance Implement’ Plan 19/20, Compliance
Risk Management Policy, Business Continuity, Revised SCM policy, Fraud Risk Management Policy, Fraud Prevention
Strategy, Long Service Award Policy and the overtime Policy.
The Board provided quarterly reports on its performance and service delivery to the Parent Municipality as prescribed
in the SDA, the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 56 of 2003 and the Local Government:
Municipal Systems Act, 32 of 2000. The Board therefore ensured that management complied strictly with the
relevant sections of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 56 of 2003 with specific reference
to Chapter 12 and preparation of the annual financial statements. The annual financial statements together with the
annual integrated report and company’s performance results were delivered to the Parent Municipality and the
Auditor General two months after the close of the year, namely on 31 August 2018.
The Board via its Service Delivery Committee encouraged the development of innovative solutions for waste
management. Pikitup intends to continue to leverage its expertise and strong customer relationships to develop new
ways to improve service delivery and the identified needs of our customers and continue to thoroughly analyze new
technologies and opportunities informed by projected demand for our services.
The Board’s succession planning responsibilities were exercised for the purposes of continuity following the
resignation of the Pikitup Managing Director, Mr Lungile Dlamini in December 2018, and appointed Segala Malahlela
to act as the Pikitup Managing Director.

Meeting Dates and Attendance
The charters of the Board and its respective Committees sets out the meeting requirements. The Board and each
Committee are required to meet at least once per quarter. An annual calendar is prepared in advance of the financial
year and meeting (apart from special meetings) are also arranged in advance. A temporary Board Task Team was
established to deal with the public protector report, the ad-hoc committee met once on the 23 November 2018. The
COJ meetings comprise of the Chairperson’s Quarterly meetings, Group Audit Committee meetings, Mayoral Budget
Lekgotla which are attended by the Board Chairperson and Audit Committee Chairperson.
The Board of Pikitup and its sub-committees are attended by the MMC, COJ Group Governance, other Pikitup
officials relevant for purposes of the discussion of the Board and its sub-committees.

Board &
Committee
Structure

Strategic
Planning

Oversight
Dashboard

BOARD
GOVERNANCE
Board SelfAssessment
Policies &
Procedures
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Attendance of meetings and other engagements held during the year were as follows:
During the period under review the following meetings were held:
Board

ARC

SEC

HRRC

ICT

OPSCO

Board
Workshop

SEHRC

13 July
2018

6 July
2018

5 July
2018

5 July
2018

6 July
2018

9 July 2019

18 February
2019

12 June
2019

31 August
2018

29 August
2018

09 October
2018

09 October
2018

08 October
2018

5 October
2019

19 February
2019

12 October
2018

08 October
2018

07 January
2019

07 January
2019

11 January
2019

9 January
2019

06 November
2018

28 November
2018

03 April
2019

03 April
2019

08 April
2019

8 April
2019

30 November
2018

11 January
2019

20 December
2018

08 April
2019

14 January
2019
15 April
2019
15 May
2019
24 June
2019

*In the last quarter of the year under review, the Pikitup board reduced its Board sub-committees to 3 (three)
namely, ARC, SEHRC and Service Delivery Committee.
The Annual Shareholder meeting was held on the 17 April 2019
Meeting Attendance
Descri ption
Number of meetings

BOD

ARC

ICT

SDC

HRR

SEC

SEHRC

11

6

4

4

4

4

1

2

4

4

1

6

4

Bogatsu S

10

Brenner, L

10

Buys, R
Dhlamini, L

AGM

1
1

2
6

Hattingh, W

4

2

2

4

4

2

4

Kana, N

9

Mafanya, T

2

Malahlela, SP

4

4
1

2

2

2

1

Malope, S
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Mathebula, V

2

Matsila, L

8

6

1

Mayne C

11

6

4

Mkhize NP

2

Netswera, F 1

9

Shongwe, B

6

3

Snyman, J

10

6

Verveen, LG

2

Zwane, T

2
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2

2
2

4

1
1

1
1

4
2
4

4

1

2

4
1

1
1

Board Member Remuneration
Pikitup remunerates the non-executive directors and independent audit committee members in accordance with the
policy and in the amounts determined from time to time by the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality,
acting in its capacity as the sole shareholder of Pikitup. The foregoing position was reaffirmed by special resolution at
the 17 April 2019 Annual General Meeting.
The table below reflects the gross or cost to company amounts paid by Pikitup in relation to non-executive directors’
and independent audit committee members’ fees.
Member’s Remuneration
Surname

Original Date of appointment

Date of Changes

Total Meeting Fee

SR Bogatsu

Appointed 18 March 2015

Reappointed 17 April 2019

274 000

L Brenner

Appointed 14 April 2011

Reappointed 17 April 2019

255 275

T Mafanya

Appointed 17 April 2019

Appointed 17 April 2019

NF Kana

Appointed 25 March 2015

Retired 17 April 2019

VL Mathebula

Appointed 16 March 2017

Reappointed 17 April 2019

24 000

CD Mayne

Appointed 16 March 2017

Reappointed 17 April 2019

267 000

N Mkhize

Appointed 17 April 2019

Appointed 17 April 2019

FG Netswera

Appointed 16 March 2017

Retired 17 April 2019

227 000

BJT Shongwe

Appointed 16 March 2017

Resigned 30 December 2019

222 000

J Snyman

Appointed 16 March 2017

Reappointed 17 April 2019

194 000

LG Verveen

Appointed 17 April 2019

Appointed 17 April 2019

24 000

Zwane T

Appointed 17 April 2019

Appointed 17 April 2019

24 000

24 000
223 000

12 000

Independent Audit Members
RW Buys

Appointed 02 October 2012

Reappointed 17 April 2019

10 000

W Hattingh

Appointed 11 March 2008

Reappointed 17 April 2019

20 000

S Malope

Appointed 17 April 2019

Appointed 17 April 2019

Total

1 800 275

Organisational Structure
The new organisational structure of Pikitup was approved in June 2018 and because of the anomalies which were
picked up in the new approved structure, Pikitup’s Board of Directors mandated the management to align the
structure to the strategy, and the s was approved in April 2019.
The management structure depicted in Figure 2.8 relates to those managers deemed to be appointed in terms of the
provisions of Section 56 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 32 of 2000. The General Manager:
Communications and Stakeholder and the Manager Business Planning and Performance are not on fixed-term
contracts (Section 56).
Three executive posts were advertised and filled in 2018 and 2019 respectively, namely Executive Manager HR,
Executive Manager: Legal, Governance, Risk & Compliance and the Chief Financial Officer. The two Executive
Manager positions were filled in 2018 and the CFO position was filled in March 2019 with an internal candidate. It is
notable that during the year, the majority of the executive positions remained vacant. The posts of both the
Managing Director and the COO became vacant in December 2018 and January 2019 respectively and recruitment
processes for these two posts are underway.
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Organisational Structure

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

MANAGING
DIRECTOR

EXECUTIVE
SECRETARY
CHIEF AUDIT
EXECUTIVE
OFFICE
MANAGER

Chief
Operations
Officer
(Vacant)

Manager:
Business
Planning &
Performance
Monitoring

Executive
Manager:
Corporate
Services
(Vacant)

Executive
Manager:
Legal &
Compliance

Chief
Financial
Officer

Executive
Manager:
Human
Resources

GM: Comms &
Stakeholder
(Vacant)

Executive Management
Our executive management team has substantial experience and the business experience of our executive team
enables us to pursue our strategy. Our executive management team is supported by a strong operating management
team.
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Name and Surname

Position

*Segala Malahlela

Acting Managing Director

Litshani Matsila

Chief Financial Officer

*Mzukisi Tshem

Acting Chief Operating Officer

Reena Budree

Executive Director: HR

Derold Selepe

Chief Audit Executive

Charlene Louw

Executive Director: Legal, Governance, Risk and Compliance and Company Secretary
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R731 684,00

R1 170 936,00

*Litshani Sydney
Matsila

*Mzukisi Tshem

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R85 461,15

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

Bonus

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

Cell Phone
Allowance

R28 112,11

R117 948,75

R25 401,06

R263 308,52

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

Acting
Allowance

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

178,894.60

242,698.63

Leave Pay-out

R240 000,00

R216 666,64

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R166 250,00

R132 000,00

R179 142,00

R49 226,09

Loco Allowance

*Segala Malahlela acting MD January 2019 to June 2019
*Abigail Ndlovu acting COO from January 2019 till April 2019
*Litshani Matsila acting CFO from June 2018 till February 2019 (salary and benefits paid from July 2018 till June 2019 included)
*Mzukisi Tshem acting COO from May 2019 till June 2019 (salary and benefits paid from July 2018 till June 2019 included)

R0,00

*Nombusiso
Ntombizandile
Abigail Ndlovu

R590 108,32

Litshani Sydney
Matsila

R0,00

R1 088 367,36

Reena Budree

*Segala Peter
Malahlela

R866 443,69

R1 288 941,96

Lefufisha Derold
Selepe

Charlenne
Kearabetswe
Louw

R1 018 672,98

R738 090,70

Salary

Lungile
Townsend
Dhlamini

Christa
Petronella Venter

Name and
Surname

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R0,00

R25 309,02

R29 527,19

Medical Aid

The table below provides the information related to remuneration of the executive management reporting directly to the Managing Director

Senior Management Remuneration

R103 350,00

R69 465,92

R0,00

R0,00

R43 224,96

R117 579,92

R75 639,41

R104 082,96

R132 138,12

R64 416,24

Pension
Contribution

R9 761 495,07

R1 542 398,11

R1 135 765,31

R25 401,06

R263 308,52

R718 794,43

R1 205 947,28

R1 108 333,10

R1 525 024,92

R1 355 262,12

R881 260,22

Total

Section 2: C
 ompliance with Laws, Rules, Codes and
Standards
Statutory Requirements
The compliance department of Pikitup ensures that the business adheres to external rules and internal controls and
works to ensure that the company meets key regulatory objectives. The compliance department ensures that there is
identification, prevention, monitoring and detection, resolution as it relates to the compliance risks that Pikitup faces
and advises on how to avoid or address them. The department further monitors and reports on the effectiveness of
controls in the management of the organisations risk exposure.

Legislation
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the entity complies with the law and applicable codes, standards and
best-practice directive. Compliance is the basis for the management of ethical conduct across all spheres of Pikitup’s
activities and interaction with internal and external stakeholders. To this end, Pikitup has a clear Compliance
Management Policy supported by a procedural framework.
Whilst relevant and appropriate, the value that can be derived from measured Compliance Management Policy
becomes reduced in the face of limited resources as a result the compliance risk management function will mature
over time as adequate resourced become allocated. To enhance the measurement of compliance, Pikitup utilizes the
compliance management software to govern and improve compliance with Pikitup’s internal control framework.
Compliance monitoring activities commenced in the first quarter of the financial year 2018/2019 and are conducted
and reported on a quarterly basis. The significant highlight from compliance management perspective is the approval
of Compliance Management Policy.
Based on the compliance monitoring activities conducted, Pikitup compliance level deteriorated by 6% resulting to
an overall compliance level of 70%. The key contributing factors to non-compliance are:
c Non-compliance with Section 65 (2) (e) of MFMA, relating to 30-day supplier payment requirement.
c Non-compliance with Code of Conduct in terms of Schedule 2 of Municipal Systems Act in relation to Annual
Declaration of Interest.
c Non-compliance with MFMA Circular 68. MFMA Act. No. 56 of 2003 (“UIFW”), Unauthorized, Irregular, Fruitless
and Wasteful Expenditure.
c Management confirmed that all tax matters are in order and the process to obtain the SARS tax clearance
certificate is been concluded.

King IV Application
Pikitup complies fully and materially with the 16 principles of King IV. Pikitup has sought legitimacy through a
dedicated focus on roles and responsibilities of the Board, and Executive, strategic direction, policy and planning,
accountability, and lastly oversight and monitoring.
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Antici pated legislation
Scheduled national landfill bans
In terms of the National Norms and Standard for the Disposal of Waste to Landfill, the following materials will be
banned from landfills from 23 August 2018:
c Reusable, recoverable or recyclable used or spent solvents;
c Polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) containing wastes (>50 mg/kg or 50 ppm); and
c Waste tyres (quartered).

Environmental compliance
Landfill management
The National Environmental Management: Waste Act (Act 59 of 2008) states that no person shall establish, provide
or operate any disposal site without a permit/licence. The permit holder is primarily responsible and accountable for
the landfill and any impact it has on the environment. This entails constant or periodic monitoring of the activities
undertaken at the landfill sites. Pikitup (Pty) Ltd is the permit/licence holder of Ennerdale, Robinson Deep,
Goudkoppies, Marie Louise, Kya Sands and Linbro Park landfill sites within the City of Johannesburg boundaries.
As the licence holder of the landfill sites, the organisation is required by law to manage the sites according to
legislations, regulations, ordinances and by-laws. To ensure that the landfills are in compliance with the landfill site
permits and licenses an external auditor was appointed in June 2019. The operational landfills and closed landfills
audit trend from the 27 June 2015 to 30 June 2019 is depicted in the table below. The Operational landfill site
compliance status has decreased by an average of 0.34%. This was mainly due to the road and storm water
drainage construction works at Robinson Deep landfill site. The construction works were completed in July 2019.
Furthermore there are sections of the perimeter wall which have collapsed at Marie Louise landfill site due to
sinkhole development as a result of illegal mining activities.
Score
2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Change
(2018/2019)

Ennerdale

93.30%

94.00%

95.58%

94.56%

94.39%

-0.17%

Goudkoppies

88.80%

90.50%

94.58%

92.90%

93.54%

0.64%

Marie-Louise

88.50%

91.20%

94.95%

94.56%

94.05%

-0.51%

Robinson-Deep

90.00%

93.80%

94.25%

94.63%

93.33%

-1.3%

90.15%

92.38%

94.84%

94.16%

93.83%

-0.34

Kya Sands

58.90%

66.50%

83.40%

83.40%

86.76%

3.36%

Linbro-Park

80.30%

80.40%

91.50%

89.55%

96.04%

6.49%

69.60%

73.45%

87.45%

86.47%

91.40%

4.92%

Landfill

Operational Sites Average

Closed Sites Average

A landfill survey to determine the remaining airspace was undertaken and completed at the end July 2019. The
methodology used to determine the remaining airspace/lifespan of operating landfill sites entails the undertaking of
physical topographical survey. The outcome of the topographical surveys were compared with the weighbridge data
and computed to determine the difference from the final footprint size of each site.
The total remaining landfill airspace is further depicted by the table hereunder, indicating 4.54 years overall
remaining landfill airspace as at the end of June 2019.
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Below provides trends of the landfill airspace to date

TOTAL REMAINING LANDFILL AIRSPACE
10,000,00

6

9,000,000
5

8,000,000
7,000,000

4
YEARS

6,000,000
5,000,000
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4,000,000
2

3,000,000
2,000,000

1

1,000,000
0
 Remaining Years
Total Remaining Airspace (m3)

Feb 2017

June 2018

Dec 2018

June 2019

6,1
8,803,936

5,22
6,521,306

5,2
6,021,848

4,54
4,785,468

0

The table below outlines the remaining airspace projections for each of the operating sites.
Landfill Airspace Projections
Landfill Site Name

Remaining Airspace (m3)

Remaining Lifespan (Years)

Estimate Closure Date

Robinson Deep

943 433

4 years and 2 months

August 2023

Goudkoppies

3 073 348

10 years and 7 months

January 2030

Marie Louise*

149 857

4 Months

October 2019

Ennerdale

618 830

6 years and 7 months

June 2026

*There is landfill airspace optimisation being implemented at Marie Louise landfill site and this will increase the landfill lifespan to a
period of 21 months. The optimisation involves the following activities:
c Diversion of waste to the nearby Goudkoppies landfill site during weekends;
c Relocation of gas collection system to allow disposal of waste on such areas; and
c Landfilling on banks to ensure that there is 1:3 (vertical: horizontal) slope across the landfill.

In order to perform a comprehensive audit, there are various environmental legislation, regulations, standards and
requirements administered by the Municipal, Provincial and National stakeholder departments that were taken into
account during the audit. Most of South Africa’s waste management law and principles are regulated by legislation
with the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, the National Environmental Management Act (NEMA) 1998,
the National Environmental Management: Waste Act (Act 59 of 2008) and the National Water Act being the
cornerstone of waste management law. The fundamental legislation, guidelines, standards and regulations that
guided the auditing process are discussed and listed below:
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Applicable Legislation and Standards
Name

Applicability

The Constitution of the Republic of
South Africa

Section 24 of the Constitution of South Africa guarantees basic human rights
and provides guiding principles for society. The environmental rights in the
constitution states:
“Everyone has the right –
a)	to an environment that is not harmful to their health or well-being; and
b)	to have the environment protected, for the benefit of present and future
generations, through reasonable legislative and other measures that –
(i) prevent pollution and ecological degradation;
(ii) promote conservation;
(iii)	Secure ecologically sustainable development and use of natural
resources while promoting justifiable economic and social
development.”
This section of the Constitution ensures that landfills operation should not
cause harm to human beings.

National Environmental Management Act
(Act 107 of 1998)

The National Environmental Management Act (Act 107 of 1998) as amended
in 2014 is the overarching environmental legislation in the country. It provides
for cooperative environmental governance by establishing principles for
decision-making in environmental matters. It imposes a duty of compliance to
everyone who is responsible for implementation an activity to which decision
was guided by the legislation as supporting policies and guidelines. It imposes
a duty to everyone who causes, has caused or may cause significant pollution
or degradation of the environment to take reasonable measures to prevent it
occurring, continuing and recurring. The National Environmental Management
Act also provides conditions of compliance to the management of landfill sites
to which the licence holder and the contractor has duty to comply.

National Environmental Management:
Waste Act (Act No. 59 of 2008)

The Act requires all waste management activities identified in terms of the Act
to be licensed in line with the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations of
the National Environmental Management Act 107 of 1998. The landfill is
permitted and compliance requirements must be adhered. In addition, landfill
activities must comply with the following regulations.
c National Waste Management Strategy, 2011
c Waste Classification and Management Regulations (GNR 634 August 2013)
c National Norms and Standard for Assessment of Waste for Landfill Disposal
(GN R. 635 of 23 August 2013)
c National Norms and Standard for the Disposal of Waste to Landfill (GN R.
636 of August 2013)
The audit for the landfill will also verify or investigate if these regulations are
being adhered to.

National Water Act (Act No.36 of 1998)

In terms of the National Water Act, waste include any solid material or material
that is suspended, dissolved or transported in water (including sediments) and
which is spilled or deposited on land or in water resources in such volume,
composition or manner as cause or to be reasonably like to cause, the water
resource to be polluted
The following waste related activities are defined as water uses in terms of
section 21 of the National Water Act, 1998 (Act 36 of 1998)
c (f)	Discharging waste or water containing waste into a water resource
through a pipe, canal, sewer, sea outfall and other conduit
c (g)	Disposal of waste in a manner which may detrimentally impact in a
water resource
c (h)	Disposal in any manner of water which contains waste from, or which
has been heated in, any industrial or power generation process.
Section 19 of the Water Act requires the owner of the facility or person in
control of land on which any activity, process is or was performed undertaken
or any other situation exist which causes, has caused or is likely to cause
pollution of water resources, take all reasonable measures to prevent any such
pollution from occurring, continuing or recurring
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Name

Applicability

The National Environmental Management:
Air Quality Act (Act No.39 of 2004)

The main objective of the Air Quality Act (NEMAQA) is the protection of the
environment and human health, in a sustainable (economic, social and
ecological) development framework, through reasonable measures of air
pollution control. In terms of Section 21 read with Section 22 of the Air
Quality Act, 2004 (Act 39 of 2004) (NEMAQA), no person may undertake an
activity listed in GN R 248 published in terms of NEMAQA of 31 March 2010
without atmospheric emissions licence should waste related activities be
associated with any of the processes in the ten categories of listed activates

Occupational Health and Safety Act 85
of 1993

The act aims to provide for the health and safety of persons at work and for
the health and safety of persons about the use of plant and machinery; the
protection of persons other than persons at work against hazards to health
and safety arising out of or about the activities of persons at work.

Minimum requirements for waste disposal by landfill
Landfill facilities must also comply with the Minimum Requirements for Waste Disposal by Landfill,
(Second Edition 1998) as published by the Department of Water Affairs and Forestry (DWAF). The approach to the Minimum
Requirements is based on the Integrated Environmental Management (IEM) approach.
This promotes, inter alia, the proactive control of pollution, by integrating environmental aspects into the planning of
developments.
Regulation and Requirements
The following regulations are applicable to landfill construction, operation and closure and as such the
requirements in these documents were considered during the audit:
c Standards for extraction, flaring or recovery of Landfill gas of 2013;
c Construction regulations of R14 of 2014;
c Asbestos Regulation, 2014
Provincial and Municipality Policies and By-laws
c Solid Waste By-law;
c Gauteng Provincial Integrated waste management policy; and
c Waste Information Regulations, 2004
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Section 3: Corporate Ethics and Organisational Integrity
Anti-Fraud and Corruption
Fraud represents a significant potential risk to the entity’s assets, service delivery efficiency and reputation. As such,
Pikitup will not tolerate fraudulent or corrupt activities, whether internal or external to the entity, and will vigorously
pursue and prosecute any parties, by all legal means available, which engage in such practices or attempt to do so.
The anti-fraud hotline (080 000 2587) remains in operation and all reports made thereon, is reported directly to the
Internal Audit Department and the ARC for consideration.
During the financial year, Pikitup made requests for six investigations to Group Forensic Investigation Services (GFIS)
as shown in the below table.
Table 3.7 Details of investigation request made to GFIS
Investigation

Descri ption of the investigation

Date investigation
referred to GFIS

Progress

1

Weighbridge investigation

8 June 2018

Execution stage

2

Ad-hoc fleet investigation

2 October 2018

Execution stage

3

Landfill investigation

2 November 2018

Execution stage

4

Jozi at Work investigation

8 November 2018

Execution stage

5

UIFW investigations

27 February 2019

Execution stage

6

Investigation on the use of Regulation 32

16 April 2019

Not yet commenced

Ethical Leadershi p & Management
In keeping with King IV principles and outcomes related to an ethical culture, good performance, effective control
and legitimacy, Pikitup has developed an Ethics Management Programme which is supported by the Codes of
Conduct prescribed by the MSA. The foregoing is amplified by clear direction on the annual declaration of financial
interests by all directors and staff, a policy on the declaration of possible conflicts of interest together with an
Ant-Fraud and Corruption Policy. The latter enhanced by stakeholders being able to report, anonymously if necessary,
any matter of suspicion through Pikitup’s anti-fraud and corruption hotline. As explained in more detail elsewhere in
this report, the Board reconstituted the Social, Ethics and Human Resources Committee, which Committee, with a
fresh mandate and under new leadership closely monitors and guides Pikitup’s management of ethics and leadership
development.

Good Corporate Citizenshi p
Pikitup considers the legitimate interests and expectations of stakeholders in all its decision-making, and regularly
communicates with stakeholders. Pikitup conducts public meetings with various communities and partners with ward
councillors to foster a healthy relationship with communities it services. These public meetings aim to provide
communities with a platform to voice concerns with regards to levels of service, service improvement
recommendations. These also offer Pikitup an opportunity to educate and create awareness regarding good waste
management practices, and share operational challenges with communities. Service delivery concerns by
communities are by and large attributed to the poor condition of Pikitup Fleet, and refuse collection rounds (RCR) in
communities are often delayed as a result. Such delays are in the normal course communicated to communities via
their ward councillors.
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Section 4: Risk and Internal Controls
Risk Governance
We are committed to effective risk management in pursuit of our business objectives, with the ultimate aim of
growing value sustainably for all stakeholders, by embedding risk management into key decision-making processes
and day-to-day activities. Risk management is inextricably linked to our strategy and is an essential element of sound
corporate governance, as well as a key enabler to derive benefit from opportunities. We understand the risks
associated with our business and we manage them proactively and effectively, within our Group risk appetite and
tolerance levels and as guided by our Enterprise Risk Management Framework, to optimise business returns.
In terms of Principle 11 of King IV, the governing body, the board, should consider the need to receive periodic
independent assurance on the effectiveness of risk management. Internal audit is required to express an assessment
of the system of internal controls, internal ﬁnancial controls and risk management to the audit and risk committee.
Our risk management process
Our top risks are identified with due consideration of both our external and internal operating context, which are
ever-changing. During 2018, in support of good corporate governance and King IV we strengthened the link
between our strategy and top risks.
Risk Management is an integral part and an essential element of good corporate governance. The Board of Directors
is accountable for ensuring that effective risk management is practised at the entity. The Board achieves this through
its sub-committee, Audit and Risk Committee that meets quarterly to provide oversight over the governance and
management of risk. While Pikitup’s management is responsible for managing risks within our approved risk appetite
and tolerance levels in order to provide greater assurance to all our stakeholders and enhance the probability of
achieving business objectives as well as the associated performance targets.
Pikitup have reviewed its risk management policy in which the Board of Directors expresses its commitment to
implement risk management and embed a culture of risk management within the entity.
Risk is about the effect of uncertainty on objectives and maximisation of opportunities. An enterprise risk focus is not
intended to identify every risk facing an organisation but to identify those that are most significant to its ability to
achieve and realise its core business strategy and objectives supporting value creation. The Risk and Compliance
Department advises the business on risk management approaches, methodologies and systems, monitors that risk
management is persistently and consistently exercised across the company, and in turn reports to various constituted
board sub-committees, City of Johannesburg risk governance committees and forums on entity’s risk profile and
progress on implementation of risk mitigation actions.
Management conducted a strategic risk assessment to identify and assess risks which might threaten the
achievement of the Pikitup’s strategic goals and performance targets for the 2018/19 financial year, which was
followed by the Board conducting a Risk Workshop in which it considered risks identified by management and
identified its new risk as well. Eleven strategic risks were managed and reported on during the 2018/19 financial year
Technology and information governance
The Board is accountable for IT governance and its Executive acknowledge the critical role technology plays in
business in terms of competitiveness, information and security. IT oversight is played by both the Service Delivery
Committee and the Audit and Risk Committee, with the Audit and Risk Committees’ focus being mainly on IT
governance. The charters of both these Committees take all aspects of governance into account as well as the
performance and sustainability objectives of the Pikitup. The Charters have defined the decision-making rights and
accountability framework for IT.
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Oversight of technology and information management is currently exercised by the acting Managing Director. A
number of key projects were completed during the year which included security enhancements to the exchange
server to protect the Company against spam and malware. The Company has in the year under review continued to
plan for an upgrade of its SAP system. Although key IT risks are integrated into the enterprise-wide risk governance
and management process, further assessments to be done include risks related to business continuity, information,
statutory compliance.
Pikitup has as part of its risk management processes, identified several material matters. These are issues that have
the potential to impact, both positively and negatively, our value creation in the short, medium and long term. These
material matters are aligned with our risks. Managing them effectively could support or hinder our ability to execute
our strategy and remain competitive.

Advancing
sustainability

Growth momentum
of commercial
business

Safe and
environmentally
conscious operations

Effective human
capital management

Balance sheet
management

Advancing sustainability
Why this is important
Pikitup commits to contributing towards a sustainable society.
We aim to reduce and mitigate the impact of our activities on
the environment, continue to play a role in the socioeconomic development of Johannesburg and South Africa,
and sustainably grow shareholder value. Environmental, Social
and Governance matters affect Pikitup’s reputation, financial
performance and sustainability.

Short to medium-term actions
c Pikitup commits to sustainable business practices.
c Develop landfill airspace roadmap
c Implement alternative waste disposal technologies
Long-term actions
c Continue to improve the way we operate to identify,
minimise or avoid adverse environmental and social
impacts while creating inclusive stakeholder value.
c Ensure greater positive impacts for our poor communities
and the economy and encourage investment in waste as
a commodity
c Invest more in waste management education and
awareness

Growth momentum
Why this is important
Our value-based strategy positions us for a sustainable future.
Delivering effective and efficient services to the residents of
the City is an essential enabler of our strategy, and further
strengthening our strategy is our diversion efforts of various
waste streams.

Short to medium-term actions
c Drive performance management to deliver on project
implementation, operations and improved service delivery.
c Position the Pikitup Commercial Business for growth
Long-term actions
c Improve service delivery efficiency
c Further strengthen our reputation and value proposition
c Explore further opportunities for and revenue generation
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Safe and reliable operations
Why this is important
Safe operations are critical to value creation, supporting our
strategy. We strongly believe that good safety is good
business. We work to build a strong, safe culture and strive to
reduce risks and minimise the potential impact of any
incidents.

Short to medium-term actions
c Increase productivity and ensure incrementally greater
service delivery standards
c Foster a culture where employees are engaged, inspired
and focused to ensure safe and reliable operations.
c Simplify and enhance customer interfaces
Long-term actions
c Leverage PPE and mobile technology to reduce safety
incidents
c Improve operational productivity across our operating
units
c Develop digital solutions to monitor assets and processes
allowing for improved predictability and greater
automation
c Culture of engaged and motivated employees.

Effective human capital management
Why this is important
The diverse knowledge, talents, skills, abilities, experience and
character of our people are central to driving the sustainability
and growth of our business. Without the effective
management and deployment of our people, our strategic
objectives, goals and targets will never be realised. Motivating
and inspiring our people is at the heart of our culture –
including embracing and living our values, working together
as one Pikitup and developing a leadership style that supports
an engaged workforce to deliver on our top priorities.
Safety is a core value and a top priority for Pikitup and is
integral to our culture. Our approach to ensuring a safe
workplace is built on a strong foundation of clear policies and
procedures. We believe zero harm is possible through singular
focus and disciplined teamwork. Any fatality is unacceptable.

Short,medium and long-term actions
c Realise an organisational culture shift to deliver our
value-based strategy
c Create an environment which inspires and motivates all
employees to perform at their best.
c Underpinned by our corporate values and code of
conduct we will continue to promote high ethical
standards, combat corruption and promote respect for
human rights.
c Manage safety, health and environment risks and provide
assurance that causes of high-severity injuries are
understood and learnings assimilated and embedded as
part of our Health and Safety programme to avoid repeat
incidents
c Ensure that all our employees acknowledge their
responsibility and authority to stop unsafe work; continue
with our daily safety talks and safety moments to
reinforce our safety rules and behaviours.

Balance sheet managemt
Why this is important
Careful management of the balance sheet ensures that
Pikitup can withstand macroeconomic volatility, have sufficient
cash to run our business optimally.

Short to medium-term focus
c Manage balance sheet’s risk prudently by means of our
financial risk management framework
c Continued review by the Board of the health of the
balance sheet, including solvency and liquidity
Long-term focus
c Continue to optimise our Commercial Customer Business
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Table 3.8.1-The Eleven (11) strategic risks identified for 2018/19 are depicted below according to their risk
ratings:
#

Pikitup Goals 2018/19

Risk Title

Ih

Rr

Integrated Waste Management, Waste
Prevention and Waste Minimisation

Depletion of available landfill airspace

25

25

Integrated Waste Management, Waste
Prevention and Waste Minimisation

Failure to change public behavior towards
the handling of waste

20

20

Building an Efficient, Effective and viable
waste management company

Information security and Cyber threats

20

20

Building an Efficient, Effective and viable
waste management company

Inadequate business intelligence and data
to inform business decisions

20

20

Integrated Waste Management, Waste
Prevention and Waste Minimisation

Misalignment of human resources to
business objectives

20

20

Effective and Efficient Waste Services

Strike Actions

25

19

Integrated Waste Management, Waste
Prevention and Waste Minimisation

Poor projects and contracts management

25

19

Effective and Efficient Waste Services

Failure to secure the Full Maintenance Lease
(FML) contract for fleet and plant

25

19

Building an Efficient, Effective and viable
waste management company

Fraud and Corruption

15

15

Building an Efficient, Effective and viable
waste management company

Modified audit opinion on performance
information

16

12

Building an Efficient, Effective and viable
waste management company

Inability to maintain and grow the current
revenue base and profit margin

10

10

The continuous scanning of the external and internal environments in which we operate allows for the early
identification of emerging events or risks that may pose opportunities or threats to our current and future business
and or activities.

Combined assurance
Combined Assurance is a system of coordinating and integrating assurance activities within an organisation with the
ultimate purpose of issuing an enhanced overall assurance to the Board concerning the company’s key risks and to
enable an effective control environment, supporting the integrity of information for internal decision-making and of
the organisation’s external reports.
Pikitup’s combined assurance model has three (3) defined levels of assurance with the first level being Management;
followed by Internal Assurers placed at second level of defence and the third level is Independent Assurers. To take
forward the implementation of combined assurance within the organisation, the Board approved a combined
assurance policy and plan during the current financial year.

Risk appetite and tolerance
In order to optimise financial performance and commitments to our stakeholders we understand and proactively
manage risks within set risk appetite and risk tolerance levels. We define risk appetite as the extent and type of risk
we are willing to take in order to meet our strategic objectives. It is inextricably linked to expected financial returns.
We define risk tolerance as the level of uncertainty we are prepared to accept and can cope with. It identifies the
maximum boundary, beyond which we are unwilling to operate.
Review of risk appetite and tolerance metrics considers the following:
c
c
c
c
c

Changes in business conditions
Changes to economic environment
Evolving strategic priorities
Credible risk scenarios
Changing competitive conditions in our commercial business
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Section 4: Stakeholder Management and Corporate Social
Investment (CSI)
Stakeholder engagement and partnershi ps
STAKEHOLDER GROUP

MATERIAL ISSUES
Governance, Policy direction, execution of
mandate ROI, Serwce Delivery

Excutive Authority
Shareholder

Buy-in and support, execution of mandate
community mobilisation, service delivery

Regional Directors
Section 79
Pikitup Employees &
Leadership

Working together, consultation, service
delivery, communication, clean city
Recognition, support, good working
conditions, Fit for purpose organisational
structure

Civil Society

Business/Private Sector

Partnerships, Leverage Resources, Meeting
our commitments

Suppliers

Guidance and support, economic benelits,
development, opportunities

Customers

Communities

Industry

Councillors & Ward
Committees

PIKITUP ENGAGES ITS STAKEHOLDERS IN ORDER TO

Effective & efficient servace,
communication and support

INFORM

PARTNER

CONSULT

COLLABORATE

INVOLVE

Execution of mandate, consultation, active
citizenry and participation

Innowtion, Research and Development,
Partnerships and Joint ventures
Execution of mandate, consultation, active
citizenry and participation. service delivery

Stakeholder Management
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Corporate
governance,
Shareholder,
Board and
Executive

Capex Projects

Balance sheet
management

Sustainability
and
Environmental
Social and
Governance

Strategy

Safety

Board
reappointments

Cost overruns and
adequacy of
controls

Affordability of
capital projects
and ability to
service debt

Landfill airspace
sufficiency

Business
transformation
and improved
service delivery

Employee Safety
performance

Performance
related incentives

Project
management and
accountability for
project delivery

Project financing
Capital allocation
Entity viability

Rehabilitation or
construction of
new Landfills

Increased
performance
excellence

Fatalities

Governance and
internal controls

Project progress
and scheduled
milestones

Operations’
environmental
impacts of waste

Waste to Energy
Implementation

Disabling
Frequency Injury
Ratio

Outcome of Board
Effectiveness
Assessment

Timeous payment
of invoices and
cash flow
generation

Employment
opportunities

Biogas Digestion
Project
Completion

Occupational and
Environmental
health
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Shareholder and providers of capital
Engagement:
c Regular engagement through invites to Board and Board Committee meetings, one-on-one meetings.
c Meetings with executive management and Non-executive Directors when appropriate.
c Information released on website and media.
c Email alerts.
c Attendance at Shareholder oversight committee meetings.
Customers
Engagement:
c Dedicated Call Centre.
c Through our dedicated key account management programme for commercial customers
c Customer services team and communication on queries relating to bin orders or other calls logged and deliveries.
c Site visits through RCR.
c Education and awareness campaigns, and exhibitions.
c Perception surveys.
c Community forums.
Employees and Organised Labour
Engagement:
c Employee onboarding and induction sessions
c Continuous line management engagement
c Performance management process including reviews, personal development and training
c Leader and management engagement sessions
c Perception surveys
c Intranet, internet, newsletters, electronic alerts and social media
c Recognised trade union partnerships and bargaining council
Regulatory Authorities
Engagement:
c Comply with and report transparently on relevant legislation and regulations.
c Prioritise safety of our people and service providers in all our business activities.
c Manage operations in an environmentally responsible manner.
c Creating employment opportunities
c Support local communities
c Promote sustainable development
c Support national agenda, including alleviation of poverty and inequality

Corporate Social Investment
As part of giving back to the communities within which Pikitup operates, the company implemented five projects in
the 2018/19 financial year. Albeit without an allocated budget, the unit managed to execute five projects and these
were done in collaboration with the various partners who generously contributed their resources as part of the CSI
programmes. The following projects were undertaken.
Somelulwazi Primary School in Freedom Park
On Friday, 16 November 2018, Pikitup, held its maiden CSI Day Event at Somelulwazi Primary School in Freedom Park
in collaboration with its partners and employees. On the day we planted 20 fruit trees that were donated by our
sister entity City Parks. Food and Trees for Africa contributed herbal plants and gardening tools such as hose pipes
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and shovels to the school. Qhubeka, a Non-Governmental Organisation (NGO) involved with environmental
management among other things, donated 5 bicycles, which are now utilised by the school’s Eco-Rangers to patrol
and guard against pupils who litter inside and outside the school premises. Our Education and Awareness Officers
educated the learners about the importance of recycling and best waste management practices.
Amazing Grace Children’s Home
On the 20th November 2018, Pikitup launched an Employee Volunteerism programme which entailed the collection
of non- perishable items for a Children’s home in Region G, South of Johannesburg. Using Internal Communication
channels such as posters and emails, employees were mobilised and encouraged to donate non- perishable food
items to the Amazing Grace Children’s Home. A substantial amount of groceries were collected and handed over to
the Children’s Home during the event which took place on Thursday, 13 December 2018, the CSM Team together
with the SEC Chairperson Ms. Bogatsu, handed over the groceries and planted fruit trees which were donated by
our partner the Green Development Foundation.
Door of Hope
On 29 March 2019 Pikitup visited the Door of Hope in Glenvista to hand-over the non-perishable foodstuff for
babies which was generously donated by Pikitup employees. The Door of Hope is an NGO which cares and houses
the abandoned babies. They provide stable environments for the abandoned children so that they may grow up to
be people that have a positive effect in South Africa and the world.

Rehabilitation and Conversion of illegal dumping site
Pikitup in collaboration with its partners, held various clean up campaigns which coincided with the Mayoral A re
Sebetseng Programme. The events ware focused around the clean-up and conversion of illegal dumping sites into a
Parks and Food Garden for the Community. The projects were supported by the following partners: Johannesburg
City Parks and Zoo, Adcock Ingram, Avis Fleet, City Parks, Coca Cola, Levis Trio Engineering, Shoprite, Social
Development Department and WESS who collectively donated resources towards the rehabilitation of the sites. Avis
Fleet availed a TLB’s, grading machines as well as a “no illegal dumping” sign.
As part of the days programme, WESSA educated learners drawn from the surrounding High Schools about the
wetlands ecology and environmental management. Shoprite in collaboration with Food and Trees for Africa,
contributed vegetable seeds and Training to the Environ mentors, (a co-operative) that has committed itself to the
overall maintenance of the Food Garden. Food Resilience, a unit of the Social Development Department, also came
on board and donated seedlings and gardening tools for the establishment of an additional garden. City Parks and
Zoo played a fundamental role in the success of this project through their donation of grass, 20 ornamental trees,
park benches, a JoJo tank, palisade fencing as well as signage for the park. Adcock Ingram provided the Community
with an outdoor gym. Levis Trio Engineering, paved and erected a double carport which will be used as a car wash
facility.
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This facilities created jobs for young people who assist with the safeguarding of the now rehabilitated sites.
Activity

Area

Rehabilitated
illegal
Dumping
Site

Diamond
street
Eldorado
Park

Rehabilitated
illegal
Dumping
Site

Diamond
street
Eldorado
Park

Rehabilitated
illegal
Dumping
Site

Diepkloof
Zone 4
Makhura
Street before
and after pic
Final Touch
up

Rehabilitated
illegal
Dumping
Site

Diepkloof
Zone 4
Makhura
Street before
and after pic
Final Touch
up

Rehabilitated
illegal
Dumping
Site

Diepkloof
Zone 4
Makhura
Street before
and after pic
Final Touch
up

Before

After
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Chapter 3
Service Delivery
Performance

Section 1: 2018/19 Performance Highlights
c The entity Handled and collected 1 101 080 tonnes for the 2018/19 financial year compared to 1 122 659 tonnes
of domestic and business waste in the previous operational period, of which 1 973 951 was disposed at the
Pikitup landfill sites and private landfills and 83 104. 32 tons diverted.
c 1 182 997 formal households with the city of Johannesburg seven regions were serviced on a weekly basis and in
line with the service standard agreement (i.e. level of service, LoS-1)
c 157 Informal Settlement areas were serviced at multiple days per week, these areas consist of 249 819 units, (i.e.
Level of Service, LoS-2 plastic bags and 80 communal skips provided and serviced at various informal settlements
(Level of Service, LoS-3),
c Cleaning services was provided to approximately 22 Hostels within the City, which comprises of litter picking,
clearing of illegal dumping, bulk container removal and domestic waste collection
c In addition, 8 580 commercial customers and 1 153 bulk customers were serviced including 9 000 kilometers of
pavements, open spaces and public areas cleaned.
c A total of 32 598 wheelie bins were delivered during the operational period under review

Section 2: Summary of performance
The core business of Pikitup is to ensure domestic waste is collected and disposed in an efficient and effective
manner to the City of Johannesburg residence. This includes waste management in informal settlements and hostels
as well as the clearing of illegal dumping. Service levels are agreed with the shareholder in terms of a Service Level
Agreement. In order to ensure compliance to permits and to ensure a healthy and safe environment, Pikitup is also
responsible for the management and operation of 4 landfill sites.

Solid Waste Management Services
During the fourth quarter the Operations Department together with ICT undertook a process of verifying the number
of formal households through the Geographic Information System (GIS) since the model of using the Land
Information System as a source of data was not effective and the information was not easily accessible due to
dependence from the City’s Group Finance. Information was retrieved from the GIS and is informed by the 2016
Statistics SA Community Survey (CS). The Statistics SA results indicated that 1 506 households in the municipality
with 94.5% received weekly refuse removal from the City of Johannesburg, however it should be noted that the
survey results included informal dwelling/shack in back yard and informal dwelling/shack not in back yard; e.g. in an
informal/squatter settlement or on a farm, the information was then filtered by GIS coordinator to only reflect formal
households.
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Table 3.11.1: Formal Households per Depot serviced by Pikitup
Number of Formal
Households

COJ Region

Depot

E

Norwood

99 827

E

Marlboro

125 342

B

Waterval

66 803

A/B/C

Randburg

95 383

D

Central Camp

F

Southdale

93 271

F

Selby

42 213

D/G

Avalon

76 483

G

Orange farm

44 833

D

Zondi

149 147

C

Roodepoort

143 840

A

Midrand

140 742

Total

Service Provided

105 113
Weekly kerb side collection, within 7 days,
through RCR

1 182 997

The table below provides details of the waste management services and budget allocated to provide services to the
households in the City of Johannesburg.
Table 3.11.2 solid waste management service provided to households
Households – Solid Waste Service Delivery Levels Below the minimum
2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

Actual No.

Actual No.

Actual No

Total formal households

1 182 997

982 000

890 162

Solid waste removal

Once a week kerb side
collection

Once a week kerb side
collection

Once a week kerb side
collection

Households below minimum
service level

98% of LoS

98% of LoS

98% of LoS

Total households

249 819

249 819

Solid waste removal

Daily

Daily

Daily

Households below minimum
service level

100% service provision of
between LoS 2 and LoS 3

100% service provision of
between LoS 2 and LoS 3

100% service provision of
between LoS 2 and LoS 3

Using communal refuse
dump

422

Other rubbish disposal

N/A

Descri ption
Formal settlements

Informal Settlements

422
N/A

183 757

422
N/A

Service delivery was compromised by poor vehicle availability of Pikitup owned vehicles as a key factor for completion
times that exceeded the targeted completion time of 17h00 and completion rate of 100% respectively.
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Illegal Dumping
The current mode of the cleaning and removal of illegal dumping, be it a hotspot or otherwise, remains
unsustainable, the City has a total number of 2 926 illegal dumping spots across the seven region and approximately
60 million was spent in the current financial year just on cleaning and clearing.
Table 3.11.2.1: Number of Illegal Dumping Spots per Depot for 2018/19
Depot

Number of Illegal dumping spots
per region

D/G

Avalon

838

D

Central Camp

323

E

Marlboro

197

A

Midrand

E

Norwood

6

A/B/C

Randburg

129

C

Roodepoort

127

F

Selby

1 000

55

Southdale
B

9

Waterval

120

Zondi

158

Subtotal

2 962

Figure 3.1.5.2 above illustrates the prevalence of illegal dumping per depot. The top four with a high prevalence of
illegal dumping are the depots in the South and North of the City: Avalon, followed by Central Camp, Zondi, and in
the North part is Midrand. The depots with the least prevalence is Norwood, followed by Southdale and Selby.
The table above illustrates the average number of visits carried out to clear and clean these spots due to
reoccurrences.
Number of Illegal Dumping Spots Cleared per Depot during 2018/19
Depot

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Avalon

306

407

223

195

Central Camp

279

301

296

156

Marlboro

323

323

323

323

Midrand

196

210

588

600

Norwood

324

287

163

386

Randburg

348

348

266

189

68

121

223

238

395

401

261

398

Southdale

45

51

60

48

Waterval

149

82

201

124

Zondi

158

272

149

88

2591

2803

2753

2745

Roodepoort
Selby

Quarterly Subtotals
Annual Total

10 892
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More efforts is required to intensify a continuous education and awareness program coupled with by-law
enforcement. In the next financial year the entity plans to forge partnerships and stakeholder engagement to gear
up their efforts in partnering with Pikitup to manage the scourge of illegal dumping in a concerted effort.
In addition, new strategies to curb illegal dumping are being phased-in in the new financial year. These include over
and above intensified and consistent awareness creation and education, identification of various appropriate sites
(preferably city owned), approximately four (4), where consent of use can be obtained and controlled dumping of
building rubble can be encouraged to confine it to one place where Pikitup can collect for processing into alternative
landfill cover and or access roads maintenance material at the landfills.
Restoration and maintenance of mobile rubble crushing equipment, augmented with primary crushing and or
screening equipment is pivotal to the sustained management of discarded building rubble in and around the City
which has to be initiated in the 1st quarter 2019/20. Scheduled collection of bulky waste in targeted areas with
prevalence of illegal dumping is one other intervention that is being intensified.

Inner City
More efforts had been put in place to ensure the improved cleanliness level in the inner-city such as the
implementation of revised shift system to ensure continuous cleaning; maintaining a level however still proves to be
a challenge especially in high density areas within the inner city. Various initiatives have been proposed that will assist
in improving the cleanliness level, in May 2019 a contractor was appointed in order to replace underground bins,
monthly mayoral clean-up campaigns where held. Various engagements were held with informal trader’s associates
within the inner-city, the interaction with the informal traders was mainly on formulating a partnership which will
lead to regular engagements and joint education and clean-up campaigns and developing mitigating strategies on
how to keep the inner city clean.
For the next financial year, the entity has identified hotspot areas across the inner city and a monitoring plan has
been put in place to ensure the weekly tracking of the cleanliness levels and progress will be reported on a quarterly
basis, In addition more stakeholder engagements and public awareness, and getting the communities involved to
maintain the required cleanliness levels.

Tonnages of waste handled and collected
Illustrated by the table below are consolidated waste tonnages which were collected during the period under review.
Depicted hereunder is a decrease of 1 101 080 tons when compared to previous year 1 122 659. The tonnage
decrease represent a waste generation decrease of 6.42%.
Total tonnages of waste handled and collected by the entity
Waste
Disposed Per
Activity

Total for
2013/14

Total for
2014/15

Total for
2015/16

Total for
2016/17

Total for
2017/18

2018/19
Quarter 1

2018/19
Quarter 2

2018/19
Quarter 3

2018/19
Quarter 4

YTD
2018/19

RCR

646 019

741 967

665 923

673 845

668 315

136 039

154 582

152 578

169 619

612 818

Street Cleaning

87 135

111 820

115 077

89 713

87 075

20 013

21 383

18 991

22 452

82 839

Illegal Dumping

229 709

276 806

312 503

303 006

238 459

65 879

77 036

70 528

78 308

291 751

825

2 852

3 288

3 395

3 072

931

1 606

1 035

1 127

4 699

Recognized
Informal
Settlements

29 629

40 367

31 655

21 788

21 269

10 639

19 287

10 699

11 086

51 711

Garden Sites

132 110

145 429

123 384

107 988

101 397

25 010

6 117

11 948

14 187

57 262

1 125 427

1 319 241

1 251 830

1 199 735

1 122 659

258 511

280 011

265 779

296 778

1 101 080

Hostels

Total
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Waste minimization targets for diversion targeted green waste,builder’s rubble and dry
recyclable waste stream:
The total waste diverted to date is 83 104, 32 tons against an annual target of 122 550 tons. This represents 67,
8% of the annual waste diversion against the annual target, see table 3.10.5.
Figure 3.10.5.1: 2018/19 Quarterly Waste Diversions for Dry Recyclables, Green Waste and Builders’ Rubble

CHART 3.2.1. QUARTERLY DRY RECYCLABLE WASTE DIVERTED OVER A PERIOD
OF THREE YEARS (2015/16-2018/19)
TONS OF DIVERTED WASTE STREAMS (000)

60000

50000

40000

30000

20000

10000
0

 Green Waste
 Builders’ Rubble
 Dry Waste
 Total Quarterly Waste Diverted (Tons)

2015/
2016
Q4

2016/
2017
Q1

2016/
2017
Q2

2016/
2017
Q3

2016/
2017
Q4

2017/
2018
Q1

2017/
2018
Q2

2017/
2018
Q3

2017/
2018
Q4

2018/
2019
Q1

2018/
2019
Q2

2018/
2019
Q3

2018/
2019
Q4

11 426
13 892
7 624
32 942

13 673
10 992
9 082
33 747

13 932
15 696
8 192
37 820

11 036
5 536
12 085
28 657

10 368
30 304
10 253
50 925

11 482
24 698
8 673
44 853

14 074
–
6 404
20 478

5 346
1 856
6 722
13 924

4 713
2 928
7 457
15 098

9 329
2 432
6 205
17 967

10 072
–
6 915
16 987

11 646
1 568
5 405
18 619

19 912
2 154
7 466
29 532

Notwithstanding the garden waste off-take challenges, the garden waste diversion by the end of June 2019 was
265% of the target (i.e. 19 911, 6 tons against a target of 7 500 tons). A request for an Expression of Interest for
the revitalization of the decommissioned Panorama Compost plant is planned for 1st quarter of 2019/20 to address
current ad hoc off-take challenges. Panorama composting plant has the capacity to handle and treat 17 000 tons of
green waste per annum into compost.
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In addition, procurement of a panel of service providers to shred and collect green waste at three green waste
processing hubs, namely Ballyclare Drop–Off Centre/Garden Site; Panorama Drop-Off Centre/Garden Site as well as
Robinson Deep landfill site will be initiated during the 1st quarter of 2019/20.
Builder’s rubble tonnages diverted performance had not improved during the year under review. The low diversion in
builders’ rubble is primarily due to frequent machine downtime because the crusher equipment is unsuitable and not
fit for the purpose of crushing unscreened builders rubble with inconsistent and large rock size mixture. In addition,
there is a lack of trained builder’s rubble crusher operators at landfills to operate crusher equipment and plant.

Table 3.10.5.2: 2018/19 Annual Waste Stream Performance

Waste
Stream

Target

Actual

Target

Actual

Target

Actual

Target

Actual

Ytd
Total

Annual
Target

%
Achieved
of
Annual
Target

Green
waste

10000

9 329,30

15000

10 071,90

7500

11 645,55

7500

19 911,60

50 958,35

40 000

127%

Builders
rubble

10000

2 432,00

12000

-

13000

1 568,00

15000

2154,00

6 154,00

50 000

12%

Dry waste

10000

6 205,48

12000

6914,97

5275

5 405,22

5275

7 466,30

25 991,97

32 550

78%

Total

30 000

17 966,78

39 000

16986,87

25 775

18 618,77

27 775

29 531,90

83 104,32

122 550

67,3%

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

Landfill Tonnages
The table below reflects waste tonnages received at each of the operating landfill sites from 2015/16 to date.
Table 3.10.6.1: Waste disposed at the operational landfill sites
2018/19 Landfill disposed tonnages
Waste Disposed
at Landfill Sites

Total for
2015/16

Total for
2016/17

Total for
2017/18

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

2018/19
Total

Robinson Deep

667143

572 800

450353

83102

15066

90711,66

89236,392

278116,052

Marie Louise

373051

407 576

363216

55414

84 902

16839,7

9799,84

166955,54

Goudkoppies

266034

341 285

341145

42271

115 482

92393,94

63530,573

313677,513

Ennerdale

101168

104 102

83760

18829

20 033

81114,4

83105,682

203082,082

1 407 396

1 425 763

1 238 474

199 616

235 483

281059,7

245672,5

961 831

Total
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There has been a decreasing trend over the years of waste disposed at all operational landfill sites as depicted in the
above table on tonnages disposed year on year (2016/17 to 2018/19), The factors contributing to the decreasing
rate are amongst others that:
c The increase in the roll out of separation at source program which promotes the recycling of dry waste in
residential areas. Furthermore separation at source was made mandatory in parts of the city from 01 July 2018
and this contribute to the reduction of waste disposed of at landfill sites.
c The diversion of green waste away from landfills to garden sites is also a contributory factor to the decrease in
waste tonnages disposed of at landfill sites.
c There is a decrease in the disposal of waste requiring destruction certificate at landfill sites and such waste was
mostly collected by commercial division.
Below is graphical depiction of the waste disposed, and the landfill airspace savings from 2014 to date.
WASTE DIVERTED PLUS WASTE DISPOSED VERSUS LANDFILL AIRSPACE SAVING
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1400000

Dec
’16
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’17
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’17

Sep
’17

Dec
’17

Mar
’18

Jun
’18

Sep
’18

Dec
’18

Mar
’19

Jun
’19

13 673 19 932 11 036 10 368 11 482 14 074
5 346
4 713
9 329
10 072 11 645 19 912
10 992 15 696
5 536
30 304 24 698
–
1 856
2 928
2 432
–
1 568
2 154
9 082
8 192
12 085 10 253
8 673
6 404
6 722
7 457
6 205
6 915
5 405
7 466
404 573 357 852 331 101 332 237 329 863 310 033 292 543 306 045 199 616 235 483 281 059 245 673
438 320 395 672 359 758 383 162 374 716 330 511 306 467 321 133 217 583 252 470 299 677 275 205
1 425 763

1 238 474

961 831

1 576 912

1 332 827

1 044 935

Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP) Performance
In our endeavour to address the issues of poverty within the City local communities, the entity in partnership the CoJ
department of Economic Development implemented waste clean-up campaigns, the partnership ascribes to the
principles of the EPWP iii (2014/15- 2018/2019) Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP). The EPWP beneficiaries
participated in a number recycling activities i.e. separation at source, street cleaning including in the informal
settlements and hostels as well as clearing and eradicating of illegal dumping spots in identified areas.
During the 2018/2019 financial year, a total of 5002 EPWP participants were appointed at various depots to render
waste management services.
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Capital Projects
During the year under review the entity implemented a number of capital projects to the value of R74 300 024,62
against the budget of R86 217 000,00 million this translates to an achievement of 86% against a target of 95%.
The non-achievement of the target was mainly delays in procurement process and none availability of internal audit
supports for the probity reports. The entity is addressing this challenge through appointment of audit service
providers to support SCM committees on audit requirements on a continuous basis.
All capex projects that are on acquisition for implementation in the 19/20 financial year has been procured and will
be implemented timeously to ensure that SDBIP targets are met.
The expenditure break down per capital budget category is reflected in the table below.
2018/19 budget

Expenditure end
of June 2019

% expenditure

6 067 000.00

4 914 351,12

81%

37 450 000.00

31 454 971,87

84%

0

43 643,84

0%

Landfill – Robinson deep New waste collection

1 000 000.00

845 570,78

84.5%

Waste Bulk Container

5 000 000.00

4 989 258,50

99.7%

New Plant and Equipment

1 000 000.00

-

0%

34 700 000.00

31 470 129,99

90.6%

1 000 000.00

669 386,20

66.9%

86 217 000,00

74 300 024,62

Category
Separation at Source facilities and equipment
Buyback and sorting facilities including drop-off
centres
Garden Sites and EIA

Pikitup Facilities renewal, upgrades and new including
branding and signage
ICT Hardware and software
Total

Completed Projects
In the 2018-19 financial year Pikitup has managed to complete a total of 9 projects. The total capital budget spent
on these projects was R39 128 618.48.
Projects completed during the year under review
Accumulative
Expenditure at
30 June 2019

Construction of a new guard house, access
ramp and storage compartment at
Strandloper drop off centre.

R2 770 541,11

R1 770 536,74

Construction of a new guard house, access
ramp and storage compartment at of
Ballyclare Drop off centre

R2 517 251,25

R2 118 351,17

Construction of a new guard house, access
ramp and storage compartment at Ashburton
Drop off centre

R2 608 996,68

R1 602 843,00

Construction of a new guard house, access
ramp and storage compartment at Babiana
Drop off centre

R2 901 524,33

R1 873 200,91

Contract Number

Project descri ption

1

PIK071/2017

2

3

4

64

Total Project
Budget

Item
No

PIK068/2017

PIK070/2017

PIK067/2017
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Total Project
Budget

Accumulative
Expenditure at
30 June 2019

R7 816 120,70

R2 778 033,60

R12 959 565,16

R4 989 258,50

Construction of stormwater management
system at Robinson Deep Landfill Site

R8 473 843,78

R5 534 901,65

Consulting services for construction of
stormwater management system at Robinson
Deep Landfill Site

R2 826 823,78

R964 042,17

Construction of a new 450 seater hall, wash
bay, upgrading of existing parking area and
refurbishment of offices at Southdale Depot

R22 127 658,29

R14 906 508,67

Consulting services for the Construction of a
new 450 seater hall, wash bay, upgrading of
existing parking area and refurbishment of
offices at Southdale Depot

R5 091 079,95

R1 580 998,47

R4 000 000,00

R848 290,50

R161 653,10

R161 653,10

Item
No

Contract Number

Project descri ption

5

PU436/2014/08

Consulting services for the upgrading and
construction of sorting facilities/buyback
centers at various Pikitup drop off centres
(Phase 1)

6
7
8

9

10

PU 035/2017
PU 034/2017
PU436/2014/01

PU 037/2017

PU427/2014

Supply, delivery and offloading of bulk bins to
various Pikitup depot and facilities

11

PU 020/2016

IT hardware and software

12

PU436/2014/10

Consulting services for waste license
application and environmental basic
assessment for various Pikitup sites

Total Expenditure

R39 128 618,48

Supply Chain Performance
For the 2018/19 Financial Year a total of 139 bids (including all the procurement of goods and services above R30k),
have been awarded to the value of R401 217 128.37. The percentages awarded to Black Owned Entities, Women
Owned Entities and SMMEs equal 98.8%, 42.9 and 92.1% respectively.
Pikitup has achieved its BBBEE targets on Black Owned Entities, Women Owned Entities and SMMEs for the 2018/19
financial year, with 98.8%, 42.9% and 92.1% respectively, as indicated on Table 1 below:
Table 1 – BEE Spend 2018/19 (including awards)
Target per
Quarter

Actual Q1

Actual Q2

Actual Q3

Actual Q4

YTD

Black Owned Entities

75%

99,5%

100,0%

96,5%

99,1%

98,8%

Women Owned Entities

25%

88,0%

98,3%

24,6%

9,0%

42,9%

SMME

25%

75.1%

100.0%

90.0%

99.3%

92.1%

Award or Spend Category
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Section 3: Performance against Service Standards
The company has committed to achieving the service standards that have been published as part of the Shareholder’s
service standards. Out of 11 service level standard targets only 3 targets were achieved. The entity has put mitigation
plans in place to address the service standards that were not achieved, going into the new financial year. A summary
of the performance on the service delivery indicators is provided in Table below:

Service Level Indicators (KPI)

66

Service Level
Standards
(Turnaround time)

Pikitup Target

Achievement

1.	
Collecting domestic waste

7 days
100%

100%

92.25%

2.	
Collecting of general business waste

7 days
100%

100%

99%

3.	
Collecting putrescible waste (wet
waste)

Daily and 6 times
per week
100%

100%

97.33%

4.	
Cleaning of illegal dumping spot

Within 7 days of
logged call

7 days of logged
call (100%)

98.50%

5.	
Removal of animal carcasses

Within 48 hours of
logged call

48 hrs of logged
call
(100%)

100%

6.	
Delivery of an ordered Skip bin by
customer

Within 24 hours of
logged calls

24 hrs of logged
call
(100%)

100%

7.	
Delivery of new or replacement
wheelie bins (240l) ordered by
customer

Within 7 days

7 days
(100%)

22%

8.	
Collecting of refuse bags on the
curbside

48 hrs.
100%

100%

97%

9.	
Households in informal settlements
including backyard shacks (bag/bin/
skip) /hostels (skips) receiving refuse
removal services

Within 7 days of
logged call, and
collection
immediately

7 days
(100%)

100%

10.	Bulky waste collection (on call)

Once a month

100%

89%

11.	Resolution of complaints

Acknowledge and
respond within 72
hours of complaint
being logged

72 Hours of
complaint being
logged
(100%)

71%

Resolution within 5
working days of
logged call

5 working days
(100%)

71%
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Variance
Comments

Section 4: P erformance against Institutional Service
Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan
(SDBIP)
The following section presents the performance of the entity during the 2018/19 financial year against the Service
Delivery Budget and Implementation Plan (SDBIP) predetermined quarterly targets as approved by the Board in the
2018/19 business plan.
The reporting is done on a quarterly basis, that is, a month after the end of a quarter. Data is collected from
programme owners in the form of quarterly report, the data is then verified by the Business Planning and
Performance Monitoring unit in consultation with the relevant programme owners. Follow up sessions are held
where supporting evidence or data is not complete or accurate, amendments were then effected were necessary.

Results
The performance of the entity is rated and assessed on achieved and not achieved performance. The entity as of the
mid-term adjustment has a total of 29 KPI’s, 4 annual targets and 25 quarterly targets. The performance during the
year under review shows the collective number of 29 key performance indicator targets reported by the entity, the
overall achievement is 42% against the expected annual target of 100% and under-achievement is 58%.
Table 3.13.1 shows the detailed performance

2018/19 PERFORMANCE
35
29

30
25

25

25
20

18

18

14

15

13

12

10

9

10
5
50%

0

Quarter 1

55%

Quarter 2
 Planned Target

56%

Quarter 3
 Achieved

52%

Quarter 4

42%

Annual Performance

 % Performance

The performance during the 2018/19 financial year in table 3.13.2 below shows the continuous poor quarterly
progress from Q1 to Q4. The entity achieved only 12 out of 29 key performance indicators in accordance with the
amended 2018/19 SDBIP.
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Table 3.13.2: depicts the quarterly Performance for 2018/19 Financial Year
Goal

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

Annual
performance

18

18

25

25

29

9

10

14

13

12

50%

55%

56%

52%

42%

Planned target
Achieved
% Performance
Good progress
Fair progress
Poor progress

Very poor progress

Non-Achieved targets
Table 3.13.2 indicates the predetermined objectives and annual targets that were not achieved in 2018/19
Quarter-1

Annual
Target

Target

Actual

Target

Actual

Target

Actual

Target

Actual

Performance
against
Annual
Target

Tones of
Builder’s rubble
diverted

50 000

10 000

2 432

12 000

0

13 000

1 392

15 000

2 154

6 154

Tons of dry
waste diverted

32 550

10 000

6 205,48

12 000

6 914,97

5 275

5 405,22

5 275

95%

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

94%

10

2

2

2

2

3

0

3

0

4

Percentage (%)
of all City
proclaimed
informal
settlements
provided with
integrated
waste
management
services

100%

100%

61,34%

100%

69,27%

100%

74,79%

100%

71,98%

69,34%

Number of
Illegal dumping
spots
eradicated

175

50

12

50

5

37

11

38

6

34

Percentage (%)
Queries
Resolved in
accordance to
Service
Standards set
targets.

90%
– 95%.

90%
– 95%.

31%

90%
– 95%.

21%

90%
– 95%.

38%

90%
– 95%.

37.25%

71%

KPI

% landfill
compliance to
GDARD
regulations and
permit
Number of
garden sites
converted
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Quarter-2

Quarter-3

Quarter 4

7 466,30 25 991,97

Quarter-1

Annual
Target

Target

Actual

Target

Actual

Target

Actual

Target

Actual

Performance
against
Annual
Target

80%
– 85%

80%
– 85%

56%

80%
– 85%

54%

80%
– 85%

79%

80%
– 85%

52%

59%

95%

10%

11%

30%

29%

30%

34%

95%

86.5%

86.5%

Percentage (%)
of departmental
operational
budget spent

100%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

75%

103%

100%

95%

95.44%

Percentage of
departmental
repairs and
maintenance
budget spent.

100%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

95%

103%

100%

88.9%

94.23%

Percentage (%)
of valid
departmental
invoices paid
within 30 days
of invoice date

90%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

90%

44%

90%

41%

44.59%

Percentage (%)
of employees
receiving
performance
coaching and
review as per
the policy

2%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

1.6

Reduction in
Disabling Injury
Frequency Rate
(DFIR)

2.5

2.5

2.9

2.5

5.1

2.5

5.1

2.5

2.6

3.9

% landfill
compliance to
GDARD
regulations and
permit
conditions

95%

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

94%

Annual
satisfaction
survey

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

Annual
target

0

100%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

100%

56%

100%

52%

42%

KPI
80% – 85%
collection rate
from Pikitup’s
commercial
customers
% Capital
Budget spent

Annual
satisfaction
survey
Percentage (%)
of departmental
performance
targets
achieved

Quarter-2

Quarter-3

Quarter 4
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Sound EnhancInternal ing Our
Controls Financial
And
SustainaGood
bility
Governance

Objectives

1

Percentage (%)
Of
Departmental
Performance
Targets
Achieved

42.3%

85%
– 100%
Of
Departmental
Performance
Targets
Achieved

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

85%
– 100%
Of
Departmental
Performance
Targets
Achieved
85%
– 100%
Of
Departmental
Performance
Targets
Achieved
56%

85%
– 100%
Of
Departmental
Performance
Targets
Achieved
52%

42%

Goal 1 Building An Efficient, Effective And Viable Waste Management Company
Not Achieved

The Entity
Experienced
Challenges
During The Year
Which Include
Resignation Of
The Md, Coo
And Also Board
Chair. There
Were A Lot Of
Gm Contracts
That Expired
During The Year.
The Impact Of
These
Resignations
Led To Poor
Performance
Monitoring Of
The Kpi’s, Hence
A Lower Than
Anticipated Kpi
Achievement.

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment

Performance against Institutional SDBIP

Original
Opex

The Entity R2 474
Is
921
Currently 420,24
In The
Process
To Fill All
Critical
Positions,
Including
The Coo
And The
Md
Position.
This Will
Assist To
Stabilise
The
Operating
Activities
Of The
Entity
And The
Implementation Of
The
Action
Plans To
Improve
The
Entity’s
Performance.

Action
Plan

Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

2

Percentage (%)
Collection
From
Pikitup’s
Commercial
Customers

60%

80%
– 85%
Collection
Rate From
Pikitup’s
Commercial
Customers

80%
– 85%
Collection
Rate From
Pikitup’s
Commercial
Customers
56%

80%
– 85%
Collection
Rate From
Pikitup’s
Commercial
Customers
54%

No
Adjustment
80%
– 85%
Collection
Rate From
Pikitup’s
Commercial
Customers
79%

80%
– 85%
Collection
Rate From
Pikitup’s
Commercial
Customers
52%

59%

Not Achieved

The Collection
Of The
Commercial
Customers Is
Done By The
Rssc At The Coj,
The Percentage
Reflects The
Actual Amount
Collected From
Customers

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Original
Opex

The City R21 702
Through 347,06
The
Mayors’
Office
Has
Established
Various
Platforms
To
Encourage
Customers To
Settle
Their
Accounts
Which
Include
Buya
Mthetho
Campaign
And Also
The
Weekly
Meetings
Chaired
By The
Mmc For
Finance
To
Improve
Collection
Rates

Action
Plan
Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

3

Percentage (%)
Of
Departmental
Operational
Budget
Spent

96%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

100%
Opex
Budget
Spent
75% Opex
Budget
Spent
93%

100%
Opex
Budget
Spent
95%

95,44%

Not Achieved

The Lower
Amount Of The
Actual Spend
On Opex Budget
Is Mainly Due To
The Savings On
Employee Costs
As A Result Of
The High
Vacancy Rate.
There Were
Resignations Of
The Coo, Md
And Gm’s
During The Year
That Let To
Savings In
Employee Costs.

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Original
Opex

The Entity R2 474
Is
921
Currently 420,24
In The
Process
To Fill Up
All
Critical
Vacancies
Within
The
Organisation That
Will
Ensure
That
Budgeted
Expenditure Is
Incurred
During
The Year.

Action
Plan
Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

Promote
Economic
Development And
Attract
Investment
Towards
Achieving
5%
Economic
Growth
That
Reduces
Unemployment
By 2021

4

Percentage (%)
Capital
Budget
Spent

99.91%

95%
Capital
Budget
Spent

10%
Capital
Budget
Spent
11%

30%
Capital
Budget
Spent
29%

No
Adjustment
70%
Capital
Budget
Spent

34%

95%
Capital
Budget
Spent
86.5%

86%

Not Achieved

The Capex Is
Lower Than
Budgeted Due
To Scm
Processes Being
Completed Late
Occasioned
Mainly By The
Late Approval
Of Pikitup’s
Acquisition Plan

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Original
Opex

The
R8 655
Acquisi- 617,84
tion Plan
For The
New
Financial
Year Has
Been
Approved
In Time
And Scm
Processes
For The
Capital
Projects
Have
Already
Been
Concluded And
Award
Letters
Issued.
This Will
Improve
The
Capital
Expenditure For
2019/20
Financial
Year.

Action
Plan
Actual

R96 217
000,00

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

Enhancing Our
Financial
Sustainability

Percentage (%)
Of
Departmental
Repairs
And
Maintenance
Budget
Spent

Percentage (%)
Bee
Spend

5

6

76%

107.4%

75% Bee
Spend

N/A

75% Bee
Spend

N/A

99.52%

N/A

75% Bee
Spend

N/A

100%

N/A

No
Adjustment

100%
R&M
Budget
Spent

75% Bee
Spend

Annual
Target

96.5%

Annual
Target

75% Bee
Spend

Annual
Target

99%

Annual
Target

98.8%

94.23%

Achieved

Not Achieved

N/A

Repairs And
Maintenance
Poor
Performance
Was Due To The
Lack Of A
Maintenance
Plan Being
Developed
During The Year.

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Original
Opex

N/A

R17 535
287,27

The Entity R22 425
Has Now 304,50
Assessed
All The
Facilities
To
Determine The
Maintenance
Required.
The Cfo
Has
Appointed The
Task
Team
That Will
Formulate
The
Maintenance
Plan And
Action
The
Required
Maintenance On
An
Urgent
Basis.

Action
Plan
Actual

R48 108
500,00

N/A

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual

PIKITUP INTEGRATED REPORT 2018/19

75

Objectives

Percent- 52% (As
age (%) At End Q1
Of Valid 2018/19)
Departmental
Invoices
Paid
Within 30
Days Of
Invoice
Date

9

0%

Percentage (%)
Smme
Procurement
Spend

8

37%

Percentage (%)
Spend
Women
Owned
Companies

7

N/A

5% Of
Smme
Procurement
Spend

N/A

5%

N/A

75.13%

N/A

5%

N/A

100%

25%
25%
88.01%
25%
98.27%
Women
Women
Women
Owned
Owned
Owned
Companies Companies
Companies

5%

25%
Women
Owned
Companies

90%
90%
DepartDepartmental
mental
Invoices
Invoices
Paid
Paid
Within 30 Within 30
Days
Days

No
Adjustment

No
Adjustment

44%

91%

25%

90%
Departmental
Invoices
Paid
Within 30
Days

5%

25%
Women
Owned
Companies

41%

5%

43%

44.94%

92.1%

42.9%

Not Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

There Was No
Dedicated/
Centralised
Recipients
Responsible For
Receiving And
Monitoring
Invoice
Payments From
The Suppliers.
Suppliers Were
Allowed To
Submit Invoices
To Anyone
Within The
Organisation,
Which Made It
Very Difficult To
Monitor The
Receipt Of The
Invoice Against
The 30 Day
Requirements.

N/A

N/A

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment

R17 535
287,27

R17 535
287,27

Original
Opex

The
R12 838
Finance 659,57
Department Has
Now
Centralised The
Receipt
Of The
Invoices.
All
Invoices
Are
Submitted To
The
Finance
Department,
Finance
Department

N/A

N/A

Action
Plan
Actual

R57 730
200,00

R9 362
500,00

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
And It
Will Then
Issue
Such
Invoice To
The
Relevant
User
Department The
Invoice.
The User
Department Are
Given 5
Days To
Process
The
Invoice
And
Submit
Back To
The
Finance
Department For
Payment.
Any NonCompliance By
The User
Department Is
Reported
To The

Action
Plan

Original
Opex
Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

10

Audit
UnqualiOpinion fied Audit
Obtained
From
Auditor
General
(Ag)

Clean
Audit
Opinion
Obtained
From
Auditor
General
(Ag)

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

No
Adjustment
Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Unquali- Not Achieved
Unqualified
fied Audit
audit opinion on
financial
statements due
to misstatements and
irregular
expenditure, and
goals 2 and 4 of
pre-determined
objectives

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Original
Opex

An
R2 474
improve921
ment
420,24
plan has
been
developed, and
consequence
management
being
effected

Accounting
Officer
For
Consequence
Management.
Finance
Department Run
Two
Payment
Runs And
One
Ad-Hoc
Payment
Within A
Month,
This To
Ensure
That
Invoices
Are
Settled
Within 30
Days.

Action
Plan
Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

Percent65%
age (%) (32/49) Of
Resolu- 2016/17
tion Of
Auditor
General
Findings

Percent74%
age (%) (102/138)
ResoluOf
tion Of 2016/17
Internal
Audit
Findings

11

12

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
70% Of
2017/18
Ag
Findings
To Be
Resolved

Resolve
60% Of
80% Of 2017/18
2017/18 Ia Findings
Ia Findings To Be
Resolved

Resolve
75% Of
2017/18
Ag
Findings

67%

78%

80% Of
2017/18
Ia Findings
To Be
Resolved

75% Of
2017/18
Ag
Findings
To Be
Resolved
74%

78%

80%

83%

Achieved

Achieved

N/A

N/A

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment

N/A

N/A

Action
Plan

R9 848
522,66

R2 474
921
420,24

Original
Opex
Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

Create A 13 PercentCity That
age (%)
Responds
Queries
To The
Resolved
Needs Of
In
Citizens,
AccordCustomance To
ers,
Service
StakeStandards
holders
Set
And
Targets.
Businesses.

64.%

90%
90%
– 95%
– 95%
Queries
Queries
Resolved Resolved
In
In
AccordAccordance To
ance To
Service
Service
Standards Standards
Set
Set
Targets.
Targets.
31%

90%
– 95%
Queries
Resolved
In
Accordance To
Service
Standards
Set
Targets.
21%

Kpi
90%
Definition – 95%
Aligned To Queries
Service
Resolved
Standards
In
Accordance To
Service
Standards
Set
Targets.
38%

90%
– 95%
Queries
Resolved
In
Accordance To
Service
Standards
Set
Targets.
37.25%

71%

Not Achieved

Majority Of
Queries Related
To Bin Requests
And There Was
No Contract In
Place For Some
Of The Months
During The Year
To Acquire Bins.
There Was Also
The Issue Of
Backlogs That
Needed To Be
Attended To
Once The Bins
Were Acquired
During The Year.
The Focus On
The Backlogs
Led New
Queries Not
Being Resolved
During The 7
Day Period As
Required.

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Original
Opex

The Entity R21 702
Has
347,06
Concluded A
Regulation 32
Contract
With
Ekurhuleni And
It Has
Been
Used To
Acquire
Required
Bins.
Process Is
Underway
To
Conclude
A
Procurement
Process
For The
Supply Of
The 24L
Bins.

Action
Plan
Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

Preserve 14
Our
Resources
For
Future
Generations.

Percent- 94.160%
95%
age (%)
Landfill
Landfill
CompliCompliance To
ance To
Gdard
Gdard
RegulaRegulations And
tions And
Permit
Permit
Conditions
CondiAs Issued
tions As
By Dea
Issued By
And Dwaf
Dea And
Dwaf,
Related
To:
Robinson
Deep
Ennerdale
Goudkoppies
Marie
Louise

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

No
Adjustment
Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

94%

Not Achieved The Operational
Landfill Site
Compliance
Status Has
Decreased By
An Average Of
0.34%. This Was
Mainly Due To
The Road And
Storm Water
Drainage
Construction
Works At
Robinson Deep
Landfill Site Not
Being
Completed. The
Construction
Works Were
Completed At
The End July
2019.
Furthermore
There Are
Sections Of The
Perimeter Wall
Which Have
Collapsed At
Marie Louise
Landfill Site Due
To Sinkhole
Development As
A Result Of
Illegal Mining
Activities. The
Evaporation
Dam At Marie
Louise Landfill
Site Is Damaged
And Requires
Repairs

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Original
Opex

The
R210 228
Comple- 527,52
tion Of
The
Storm
Water
Drainage
Upgrades
At The
Robinson
Deep
Landfill
Site Will
Improve
Compliance With
The
Waste
Management
Licence
Conditions. A
Service
Provider
Was
Appointed For
The
Repair Of
The
Evaporation Dam
At Marie
Louise
Landfill
Site.
General
Maintenance Of

Action
Plan
Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

Create A 15 Number
4
4
1
Culture
Of She Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly
Of
Audits She Audits She Audit She Audit
Enhanced
Conduct- Conducted Conducted Conducted
Service
ed
Per Site
For 16
Delivery
Quarterly
Sites
With
Per Site
Pride.
1

1
Quarterly
She Audit
Conducted
1

No
Adjustment
1
Quarterly
She Audit
Conducted
1

1
Quarterly
She Audit
Conducted
1

4

Achieved

Action
Plan

N/A

N/A

As It Incidentally
The
Discharges
Landfill
Leachate To The Facilities
Environment.
(I.e.
Perimeter
Walls,
Water
And
Sewer
Reticulation
Network)
Will Be
Undertaken
Through
The
Appointment Of
A Service
Provider.

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment

R11 739
477,93

Original
Opex
Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

N/A

N/A

Create A 17 Percent1.73%
Culture
age (%)
(107
Of
Of
EmployEnhanced
Employees)
Service
ees
Delivery
Receiving
With
PerforPride.
mance
Coaching
And
Review
As Per
The Policy

N/A

2.9

Create A 16 Reduction
2.25
2.5
2.5
Culture
In
Average Average Average
Of
Disabling Disabling Disabling Disabling
Enhanced
Injury
Injury
Injury
Injury
Service
Frequency Frequency Frequency Frequency
Delivery
Rate
Rate Ratio Rate (Difr) Rate (Difr)
With
(Difr)
(Difr)
Pride.

Mid-Year
Reviews
Measure
Individual
Performance
From July
To
December
2018. The
Deadline
For The
Finalization
Mid-Year
Reviews Is
30 January
2019.

2.5
Average
Disabling
Injury
Frequency
Rate (Difr)

N/A

5.1

2% Of
Employees
Receiving
Performance
Coaching
And
Review As
Per The
Policy

No
Adjustment

Annual
Target

2.5
Average
Disabling
Injury
Frequency
Rate (Difr)

Annual
Target

5.1

Annual
Target

2.5
Average
Disabling
Injury
Frequency
Rate (Difr)

Annual
Target

2.6

1.6

3.6

Not Achieved

High
Management
Turnover,
Delinquency In
Timeously
Preparing
Contracts Due
To Lack Of
Consequences
In Past, Failure
By Management
To Ensure
Compliance By
Subordinates
And Lack Of
Understanding
Of Pm.

Not Achieve The Performance
Was
Compromised
Due To High
Fatality Rate
Encountered
During The
Financial Year.
Former Jozi @
Work Employees
Who Were
Absorbed And
Epwp’s Were
Not Adequately
Trained
Resulting In
Increased Injury.

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
R1 286
293,16

Original
Opex

The Pm R53 261
Policy Has 156,39
Been
Revised
And
Approved
By Board.
In Future
Failure To
Submit A
Contract
And Mid/
Final
Reviews
Timeously
Will
Disqualify

In The
Next
Financial
Year
Intensive
Safety
Training
Will Be
Implemented.

Action
Plan
Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Staff
From A
Bonus.
This Will
Result In
A Higher
Participation Rate.
In
Addition
We
Intend To
Roll-Out
Training
To
Supervisors And
Their
Staff And
To Assist
Staff In
Preparing
Scorecards By
Creating
Generic
Scorecards
Wherever
Possible.
The New
E-Based
System
Being
Rolled
Out At
Coj Will
Also
Assist In
Compliance.

Action
Plan

Original
Opex
Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Goal 2:
Integrated Waste
Management,
Waste
Prevention And
Waste
Minimisation

Create A 18 Average
Culture
Number
Of
Of Days
Enhanced
Taken To
Service
Resolve
Delivery
DiscipliWith
nary
Pride.
Cases

Waste Preserv- 19 Tonnes
Diverted ing Our
Of Green
From Resources
Waste
Landfills
For
Diverted
Through Future
Reduc- Generation,
tions
Reuse,
Recycling
And
Recovery

Objectives

35 615

35 Days

50 000
Tons Of
Green
Waste
Diverted

32 Days

10 000

N/A

9 329

N/A

15 000

N/A

10 072

N/A

40 000

7 500

32 Days 32 Days In
Taken To Line With
Resolve Dc Policy
Disciplinary Cases

11645.55

30 Days

7 500

32 Days In
Line With
Dc Policy
32 Days

19911.60 50 958 35

39 Days

Achieved

Achieved

N/A

N/A

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment

N/A

N/A

Action
Plan

R105 351
454,76

R5 769
411,31

Original
Opex
Actual

N/A

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

Tonnes
Of
Builder’s
Rubble
Diverted

Tonnes
Of Dry
Waste
Diverted
Through
Pikitup
Interventions
(Paper,
Plastic,
Glass,
Cans)

20

21

29 258

29 482

50 000
Tons Of
Dry Waste
Diverted
Through
Pikitup
Interventions

50 000
Tons Of
Builder’s
Rubble
Diverted

10 000

10 000

6205,48

2 432

12 000

12 000

6914,97

0

32 550

No
Adjustment

5 275

13 000

5405,22

1 568

5 275

15 000

7466,30

4 224

25 991,97

8 224

Not Achieved

Not Achieved

Original
Opex

Procure A R75 928
Primary 685,94
Crusher

Action
Plan

Low
Assess R29 649
Participation By Current 306,57
Households In
S@
The Waste
Models
Separation
And
Programme,
Refine
Inadequate
The
Infrastructure To ImpleSupport
mentaRecycling
tion Plan
Activities.
Of The
MandatoIneffective
ry
Stakeholder
Engagement, SeparaEducation And tion At
Source;
Awareness
Work
Programme,
shop The
Mandatory
Separation At
Source
And

Refurbish
The
Existing
Five
Crusher
Plants,
Lack Of Trained Including
Operators Also A Three
Contributed.
Year
Machines Are Maintenance
Not Fit For
Contract.
Purpose.

Crusher Plant
Non-Availability
Caused The Poor
Performance.
Only 1 Out Of 6
Were
Operational
During Most Of
The Year.

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Actual

N/A

N/A

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives
Action
Plan

Lack Of
ImpleMonitoring And mentaEvaluation.
tion Plan
Lack Of S@S To Depot
Supervisors And Implementers
Education
I.e.
Officers They All
Contributed To Supervisors,
The Poor
Performance Of Team
Leaders
This Kpi.
Ops
Managers
;Intensify
The
Implementation Of
The
Communication
And
Stakeholder
Management
Strategy;
Review
Sops,
Monitoring And
Evaluation Tools
– Facilities &
Sites
Inspection

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Original
Opex
Actual

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

10 Garden
Sites
Converted

2

Number
Of
Garden
Sites
Converted To
Integrated Waste
Management
Facilities

23

5

Tonnes 1 389 121 Not To
Not To
Of Waste
Exceed The Exceed
Disposed
Baseline 329 863
At The
Of 1 389 Tons (Q1
Landfill
121
–
Sites
2017/18)

22

2

199 616
Tonnes

2

Not To
Exceed
310 003
Tons (Q2
–
2017/18)

2

235 483

No
Adjustment

No
Adjustment

3

(Q3
–
2017/18)

Not To
Exceed
292 543
Tons

0

281059,7

3

306 035
Tons (Q4
–
2017/18)

Not To
Exceed

0

245672,5

4

961 831

Not Achieved

Achieved

The
Procurement
Process Delayed,
Letters Of
Award To The
Service Providers
Were Only
Issued In May
For The
Following
Garden Sites:
Mapetla, Robert
Sham,
Panorama Phase
2, Circle
Crescent,
Philippi.

N/A

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment

Expedite
The
Handover
Of Sites
To The
Contractors As
Well As
Site
Establishment.

N/A

Templates
And Fill
In
Vacancies
Of S@S
Supervisors And
Education
Officers

Action
Plan

N/A

R210 228
527,52

Original
Opex
Actual

N/A

R37 450
000,00

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Ensure 24 Number
Pro-Poor
Of Work
That
OpportuAddressnities
es
Created
Inequality
Through
And
Expanded
Poverty
Public
And
Works
Provides
ProMeaninggrammes
ful
(Epwp).
Redress

4 053

Effective Create A 25 Percent- 864 185
And
Culture
age Or
Efficient
Of
Number
Delivery Enhanced
Of Formal
Of Waste Service
HouseManage- Delivery
holds
ment
With
Receiving
Services
Pride.
Weekly
Waste
Removal
Services

Provide
Poverty
And
Income
Relief
Through
Temporary Work
For The
Unemployed To
Carry Out
Waste
Management
Service
Delivery
Activities.

Objectives

1 000

2416

All Formal All Formal 1 182 997
HouseHouseholds In
holds In
Land
Land
Informa- Information
tion
System
System
(Lis)
(Lis)
Receiving Receiving
Weekly
Weekly
Waste
Waste
Removal Removal
Services
Services

5 000
(Epwp)
Work
Opportunities
Created
400

No
Adjustment To
Annual
Target
1 000

573

1 000

All Formal All Formal 1 182 997
HouseHouseholds In
holds In
Land
Land
Informa- Information
tion
System
System
(Lis)
(Lis)
Receiving Receiving
Weekly
Weekly
Waste
Waste
Removal Removal
Services
Services

1 613

5002

All Formal 1 182 997 1 182 997
Households In
Land
Information
System
(Lis)
Receiving
Weekly
Waste
Removal
Services

Goal 4: Effective And Efficient Waste Services
All Formal 1 182 997
Households In
Land
Information
System
(Lis)
Receiving
Weekly
Waste
Removal
Services

2 000

Goal 3: Realisation Of Value Throughout The Waste Value Chain

Achieved

Achieved

Lis Information
Was Not Forth
Coming From
The City Finance
Department We
Therefore Opted
For Gis Taking
Into Account
That We Have
Capacity To
Maintain The
Gis Data And
It’s Within Our
Control.

N/A

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment

N/A

N/A

Action
Plan

R579 235
691,33

R11 750
000,00

Original
Opex
Actual

N/A

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

26

Percentage (%)
Of All
City
Proclaimed
Informal
Settlements
Provided
With
Integrated Waste
Management
Services

164

100%

100%
61.34%

100%
69,27

100% Of
Proclaimed
Informal
Settlements
Provided
With
Integrated
Waste
Management
Services
100%
74,79%

100%
71,98%

69.34%

Not Achieved

Though The
Service Has
Been Provided
To The 157
Informal
Settlements,
Supporting Trip
Sheets Are Not
Collected And
Filed
Accordingly To
Substantiate The
Reported
Performance
Information.

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Original
Opex

The It R112 087
Unit Will 430,38
Be
Requested To
Upload
The
Informal
Settlement List
In The Bis
To Ensure
That All
Informal
Settlements
Weekly
Trip
Sheets
Are
Captured
In The Bis
And A
Report
Will Be
Generated Every
Month
For
Verifications And
Ease Of
Reporting. A
Standard
Operating
Procedure
Has Been
Developed And

Action
Plan
Actual

N/A

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

27 Improved
City
Cleanliness
Levels In
Targeted
Areas
City-Wide

Level 2
Cleanliness

Level 2
Cleanliness Level
In Targeted
Areas
City-Wide

Level 2

1

Level 2

1

No
Adjustment
Level 2

1

Level 2
1

1

Achieved

The Performance
Achievement Is
Based On
Predetermined
Streets In The
Cbd Areas That
Were Identified
And Monitored
Quarterly.

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Consequence
Management Will
Be
Instituted
To
NonComplying
Officials.

Action
Plan

R728 552
742,31

Original
Opex
Actual

R1 799
695,00

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Objectives

28

Number
Of Illegal
Dumping
Spots
Eradicated

126

207

50

12

50

5

175

37

11

38

6

34

Not Achieved

The Poor
Performance Is
Due To The
Limited
Resources
Which Didn’t
Match The
Required
Performance Of
Eradicating
Illegal Dumping
Spots.

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Original
Opex

A Panel R75 928
Of Service 685,94
Providers
Has Been
Appointed To
Support
Pikitup In
Eradicating Illegal
Dumping
Spots. A
Further
Procurement
Process
Has Also
Recently
Been
Concluded Where
An
Additional Service
Provider
Has Been
Awarded
To
Support
Pikitup In
This Kpi.

Action
Plan
Actual

R1 800
000,00

Capex

Finance Performance

Actual
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Consum- Preserv- 29 Annual Customer
er
ing Our
Satisfac- SatisfacBehav- Resources
tion
tion Levels
ioural
For
Survey (As Per Coj
Change Future
Conduct- Household
Generaed To
Survey Of
tions
Measure 2017),
Impact Of SatisfacPikitup tion Levels:
Services 1 (Poor)
And
– 10
Waste (Excellent)
Minimisa- Rcr – 6.63
tion
Landfill
Initiatives
Sites
– 4.98
Garden
Sites
– 5.99
Illegal
Dumping
– 5.00

Objectives

Annual
Satisfaction Survey
(To
Achieve
An
Average
Satisfaction Level
Of 6)

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Satisfaction Survey
(To
Achieve
An
Average
Satisfaction Level
Of 6)
Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Annual
Target

Goal 5: Partnership And Stakeholder Involvement
0

Action
Plan

Original
Opex

Not Achieved It Was Expected This Kpi R13 072
That Pikitup
Has In
511,83
Would Rely On
The
The City Of
2019/
Johannesburg
2020
2018/19
Sdbip
Customer
Been
Satisfaction
Replaced
Survey Results,
And
However The
Revised
Results Have
Not Been
Issued, And It
Appears That
The Data Pikitup
Would Need For
Purposes Of This
Kpi May Not
Have Been
Accounted For
In The Survey.

Linkage
Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter4 Actual
to
Quarter 1 Actual Quarter 2 Actual Mid-Term Quarter 3 Actual Quarter 4 Actual
Annual
StratePikitup
Annual Planned Perfor- Planned PerforAdjust- Planned Perfor- Planned PerforPerforgic
Business Baseline Target
Target
mance
Target
mance
ment
Target
mance
Target
mance
mance
Target
Political
Plan
Outcome
Reasons for
Priori- Kpi IndicaAchieved/ Non-achieveties
No. tor (Kpi) 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 N-Achieved
ment
Actual

N/A

Capex

Finance Performance

N/A

Actual

Chapter 4
Human Resources
and Organisational
Management

Section 1: Human Resource Management Performance
Pikitup acknowledges that much of its strength can be attributed to its people. We recognise that our people add
more value to our organisation As such, our vision is to ensure that the company’s employment practices and
remuneration policies motivate and retain talented employees and create an attractive environment for all employees.
The table 4 below provides a breakdown of the company’s employees:
Male

Female

Occupational
levels

A

C

I

W

A

C

I

W

Total
Employees

Top management

2

0

0

0

1

0

1

0

4

Senior
management

2

0

1

2

2

1

0

0

8

Professionally
qualified

32

3

2

8

33

3

1

1

83

Skilled technical

82

8

0

7

90

4

2

0

193

333

9

0

0

102

0

0

1

445

Unskilled

2102

12

0

0

2557

14

0

0

4685

Permanent
employees

2553

32

3

17

2785

23

3

2

5418

Total per
demographic

2553

32

3

17

2785

23

3

2

5418

Semi-skilled

Section 2: Vacancy Rate
Table 4.1; 2018/19 Vacancy rate
Number of Vacancies

No. of Posts

Filled Posts

Vacant Posts

Positions
(Personal To
Holder)

F1

7

4

3

0

43%

E1

18

7

11

1

61%

D

137

62

75

13

55%

C

387

242

145

0

37%

B

684

445

239

1

35%

A

5140

4600

481

0

9%

Total

6373

5419

954

15

15%

Job Bands

Percentages

As at 15 April 2019 when the new staff establishment was approved, there were 6373 approved positions at Pikitup.
As at date of this report 5419 positions are filled and 954 positions are vacant. This is across all occupational levels
within Pikitup. The vacancy rate is 15%.
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Vacancies per occupational level
% OF VACANCIES PER OCCUPATIONAL LEVEL
80

55

60

37

61

40

20

0

35

9

B-Level

A-Level

43

F-Level

E-Level

D-Level

C-Level

In terms of percentage of overall vacancies, Level E has the highest rate of vacancies (61% of total vacant positions)
followed by Level D with 55% of all the vacant positions. Level A and B have relatively low vacancy rates of 9% and
35% respectively. The overall vacancy rate at Pikitup is 15%.
There are currently 58 funded vacant posts (37 posts released in 2018, 19 posts released in 2019, and 2 executive
vacancies). All other vacant posts are unfunded. The 219 vacancies for the Acting appointments (1162 process) are
funded through a top-up of the internal staff member’s package i.e. they will be moving into the higher level post
with existing budget and there will be a concomitant vacancy at a lower level hence overall no impact on the
number of vacancies.
Between December 2018 and February 2019, 37 vacancies were advertised. Most of these are at an advanced stage
of recruitment. Delays were occasioned by the SCM processes to identify a service provider to complete compulsory
verification as well as changes in senior leadership resulting in delays in shortlisting and interviews for positions in
Operations.
In addition a further 19 critical vacancies on the revised organisational structure were identified by Executive
management. Funding is available and these posts will be advertised in June/July 2019.
The profile of vacant positions will not remain static over the next few months. There are 219 vacancies at B and C
level which are in the process of being filled through the Board approved Acting Appointments Regularisation
Process (1162 Process). The vacancy rate at level B and C will decrease but there will be a concomitant increase in
the number of the vacancies at A and B-level. It is also expected that the vacancy profile at A- level will change
pursuant to the outcome of the 2010/2011 insourcing appeal process. It is also envisaged that there will be
increased capacity at A-level once the part-time ex Jozi@Work staff are converted to full-time in February 2020.
Capacity at A level is enhanced through the EPWP appointments.
Finally in regard to vacancies, the posts of Managing Director and Chief Operations Officer were advertised and the
recruitment process is currently in progress.
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Section 3: Performance Management
A total number of 92 employees are currently participating in performance management. Of these 81 have
completed and signed their performance contracts and 71 have submitted their mid-year performance reviews. The
reduction in the number of performance management participants in Q4 is due to the expiry of employment
contracts. Final performance reviews will be conducted in July with final scores being submitted to HR for
moderation in September. The HR department sends out numerous reminders but regrettably affected employees do
not cooperate in getting their contracts signed and submitted within the required time-frames.
During the year under review, the performance management policy was revised and approved for full
implementation on 1 July 2019.

Skills Development
Pikitup is committed to continuously develop its employees in order to equip them with the tools to achieve strategic
goals and ensure that we have a skilled and capable workforce to improve service excellence. In compliance with the
Skills Development Act the Workplace Skills Plan for 2019/2020 was submitted to the Local Government SETA
(LGSETA). The training plan was informed by the psychometric assessments that were conducted for operations
general managers and regional managers, skills audit results, Personal Development Plans and other technical
interventions required.
Discretionary grants approved by the Local Government Seta were utilized for service providers appointed to roll out
Environmental Practice level 3 and 4 and Adult Education and Training (AET) Level 1 – 4. Classes are in progress. The
tender process for the appointment of accredited training providers to be on the panel is in the evaluation stage with
112 service providers that have responded to the tender advert.

Recognition of Prior Learning
A total of 70 general workers and supervisors participated in the RPL and received certificates of competence in the
different unit standards.

Adult Education Training (AET) and Subsidized Education.
There are hundred – fifty Nine (159) employees currently on the Adult Education Training (AET) programme as
depicted in the table below at various depots. Pikitup offers AET not only as part of its social responsibility initiate
but also to improve the skills of its employees. Employees request to attend AET classes based on their needs for
individual development.
LGSETA has appointed a service provider. The Training Professionals to deliver training employees are assessed to
determine their level and placed based on the outcome of the assessment and previous AET qualification obtained.
Pikitup offers AET from Basic foundation Phase to Level 1 to Level 4. Employees are studying numeracy, literacy
business studies and life orientation subjects. 48 AET learners deregistered.
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Table 4.3.2: AET yearly report

Registration
Quarter

Total Number
Registered

Training Level
1&2

Training Level
3&4

Number of
Employees
Abandoned
Studies

Q1

26

26

0

7

Pre/AET

Q2

19

19

0

4

17

Q3

196

Pre/AET -32
Level 1-16
Level 2 – 55

Level 3-48
Level 4-45

21

32 employees for Pre/AET
Level 1 16
Level 2 55

Q4

175

Pre/AET-29
Level 1-16
Level 2- 50

Level 3- 42
Level 4- 38

16

159

Overall Total

159

Summary

Subsidized Education
90 employees including newly appointed Jozi @work employees are enrolled at various recognized educational
institutions on a sponsored basis to purse higher education.
Pikitup employees are subsidised to further their Higher Education with Universities and Colleges on relevant courses
including Operations Management, Financial Accounting, and Public Administration etc.
Table 4.3.3: Details of employees funded for further studies in 2018-2019 Financial year
Employee Salary
Grade

No of employees

Qualification

A Band

34

Higher certificate and
Diploma

R375,063.53

B Band

7

Higher certificate

R107,718.00

C Band

26

Higher certificate and
Diploma

R537,023.36

D Band

22

Diploma and Degree

R 618,357.98

Total

90

Financial Implications

Percentage %

R 1,638.1628

The table above indicates that during the period under review more investment was made on C and D Band.

Skills Development Programme
Table 4.4 Details of employees who attended Skills Programme (less than 3 months).
Employee Salary Grade

Program

No

Cost

Various levels C and D

Recruitment and selection
workshop

46

No cost. Internal training
facilitated by Executive Manager
for HR

Various levels A,B and C

SAP training –Over view, Service
entry ,creating order and purchase
requisition

63

This training is invoiced by CoJ
Still awaiting invoice.

Committee Members

BID Committee Training

28

R119,600.00

Various level C and D

Environmental Practice Learner
ship level 4

70

SETA Funded
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Employee Salary Grade

Program

No

Cost

Various levels A, B, and C

Workplace discipline

40

R60, 000.00

Various levels A, B, and C

Environmental Practice Learner
ship level 3

103

SETA Funded

Various level C and D

Business continuity

30

R 74,000.00

Various levels A, B, and C

Fire marshal

95

R 112, 698.50

Various levels A,B and C

MS Excel intro

10

R 11,500.00

485

R 377,798.500

Total

Grade 12
A total number of 150 employees are attending grade 12 programmers with Seoposengoe Training Consultancy.
Table 4.5: Breakdown of staff currently completing Grade 12
Employee
Salary Grade

No Of
Employees

Percentage %

Qualification

A Band

146

97.33%

Grade 12

B Band

3

2%

Grade 12

C Band

1

0.66

Grade 12

150

100%

Total

Financial Implications

R 1,563,230.65 has been paid to service
provider during this quarter under review.

MFMA Training
Table 4.6: Details of employees who have attended Munici pal Financial Management Act (MFMA) Training
Categories

Numbers

Cost

Finance and SCM

7

R406,000.00

Senior Managers

3

R174,000.00

Other officials ( 2 x Operations Managers, 2 x Regional Managers,1 x HR,
1 stakeholder, 1 x Customer services )

9

R522,000.00

19

R1,102,000.00

Total

Cost per Employee is R58 000 once off and Pikitup is invoiced monthly for 9 months.

Overtime Analysis
Table 4.7.1: Overtime payment for all Depot
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Depot/Department

Q1
(2018/19)

Q2
(2018/19)

Q3
(2018/19)

Q4
(2018/19)

Customer and Commercial

R2 276,25

R83 290,14

R22 084,92

R39 073,64

Facilities Department

R4 361,98

R9 727,98

R2 296,91

-

Human Resources

R15 587,98

R56 776,46

R20 031,24

R13 657,66

Fleet Department

R172 756,04

R562 325,75

R212 667,96

R144 447,52

Central Camp Depot

R187 036,16

R1 799 068,34

R639 720,53

R498 041,49

Disposal and Landfill sites

R583 677,62

R1 593 281,79

R558 481,37

R421 085,21
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Q1
(2018/19)

Q2
(2018/19)

Q3
(2018/19)

Q4
(2018/19)

Zondi Depot

R570 490,77

R1 897 360,14

R628 034,78

R574 320,33

Avalon Depot

R636 843,23

R2 073 160,40

R813 335,96

R438 839,73

Bulk and Dailies

R715 406,53

R2 456 361,66

R869 047,63

R681 257,51

Waterval Depot

R1 068 448,57

R3 076 719,35

R1 120 248,01

R766 044,43

Roodepoort Depot

R1 159 121,84

R3 873 921,55

R1 436 355,64

R1 007 781,14

Randburg Depot

R1 340 701,26

R4 197 635,35

R1 512 935,05

R1 085 653,07

Southdale Depot

R1 366 024,28

R4 696 412,78

R1 651 853,83

R1 212 102,20

Midrand Depot

R1 421 597,72

R4 062 544,42

R1 463 439,40

R989 534,61

Norwood Depot

R2 181 083,90

R6 737 703,76

R2 387 632,15

R1 697 733,15

Marlboro Depot

R2 182 786,49

R6 790 355,66

R2 415 524,73

R1 792 527,37

Selby Depot

R5 098 820,38

R15 118 822,22

R5 115 748,91

R4 057 399,64

Total paid

R18 707 021,00

R59 085 467,75

R20 869 439,02

R15 419 498,70

Depot/Department

Figure 4.7.2: Analysis for Overtime paid in Q1, Q2, Q3 and Q4

OVERTIME PAID 2018/19
16,000,000.00
14,000,000.00
12,000,000.00

RAND

10,000,000.00
8,000,000.00
6,000,000.00
4,000,000.00

 Q1 (2018/19)

 Q2 (2018/19)

 Q3 (2018/19)

Selby Depot

Marlboro Depot

Norwood Depot

Midrand Depot

Southdale Depot

Randburg Depot

Roodepoort Depot

Waterval Depot

Bulk and Dailies

Avalon Depot

Zondi Depot

Disposal and Landfill sites

Central Camp Depot

Fleet Department

Human Resources

Facilities Department

0

Customer and Commercial

2,000,000.00

 Q4 (2018/19)

Overtime spend in Q2 was disproportionate relative to Q1, Q3 and Q4. Most of the additional spend could be
attributed to Selby depot although several depots showed increased overtime spending in this period. The new COO
will need to conduct an analysis to explain the overtime trends and find ways to reduce overtime.

PIKITUP INTEGRATED REPORT 2018/19

99

Section 4: Employee Wellness Services
The Pikitup employee wellness services is guided by the Health and Wellness Framework, aims to provide
comprehensive health and wellness programmes and services to all Pikitup employees, with a mission to build and
maintain a healthy workforce for increased productivity and excellent service delivery.
Employee Wellness Programme embarked on corporate wellness day events whereby different service providers
visited all Pikitup sites. This events took place from the 19 March 2019 to the 18 April 2019.
Pikitup Employee Wellness promotes employee well-being and in this regard, employees were invited to get free Flu
vaccines in this Quarter. Disease prevention is by far the most cost effective way to keep healthcare costs in check.
Influenza vaccination of employees in the workplace is a simple yet significant way to reduce both healthcare costs
and productivity losses associated with influenza and reduce work absenteeism. 22 employees were vaccinated
against seasonal flu in during the fourth quarter.

Corporate Wellness Day Events (2019)
Employee Wellness Programme embarked on corporate wellness day events whereby different service providers
visited all Pikitup sites. This events took place from the 19 March 2019 to the 18 April 2019 and the following
screening tests were performed:
c Blood Pressure
c Blood Sugar
c Cholesterol
c Body Mass Index

HIV,TB and STI Programme
Condoms are regularly distributed through condo – cans within strategic locations in various Pikitup sites. The
purpose is to encourage condom use and reduce the burden of STIs including HIV and to strive towards UN AIDS
90/90/90 goal. The aim of the Joint United Nations Programme on HIV/AIDS (UNAIDS) on the 90–90–90 targets are
to diagnose 90% of all HIV-positive persons, provide antiretroviral therapy (ART) for 90% of those diagnosed, and
achieve viral load suppression for 90% of those treated by year 2020.

Free HIV In-house Testing
Table 4.8.3: HIV Testing
Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Total Number of Males who Tested

10 (50%)

5 (35,7%)

6 (100%)

5 (100%)

Total Number of Females who Tested

10 (50%)

9 (64,3%)

0

0

1 (5%)

0

0

0

20

14

6

5

Total Number of Males and Females who
Tested Positive
Total number of employees Tested

In-house HIV testing is continuing and 5 employees were tested in Q4 and there were no positive cases. The number
of employees tested for Q4 has dropped because of Wellness Day events in Q4 which included large scale HIV
testing by External Service Providers (see table below).
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Table 4.8.3: HIV Testing (Wellness Day 2019)

Results
Reactive

Positive
Females
(of Positive
Results)

Positive
Males
(of Positive
Results)

209

53

39

14

92

202

38

22

16

38

29

67

6

5

1

450

116

45

161

52

48

4

Southdale

317

81

83

164

38

20

18

Selby day 1

400

157

49

206

64

60

4

Selby day 2

390

101

32

133

32

27

5

Selby night

320

94

58

152

40

31

9

Central
Camp

322

83

63

146

35

20

15

Avalon

284

99

74

173

19

15

4

Waterval

362

89

69

158

30

18

12

Midrand,
IvoryPark &
Diepsloot

337

80

78

158

37

26

11

Orange Farm

150

47

50

97

28

16

12

Roodepoort

438

126

123

249

43

27

16

Zondi

660

233

165

398

54

36

18

Total

5577

1569

1104

2673

569

410

159

59%

41%

48%

21%

72%

28%

Total No. of
Employees
per Depot

Females
Tested

Males
Tested

Total Tested
per Depot

Randburg

360

115

94

Marlboro

520

110

Head Office
& Springfield

267

Norwood

Deport

Percentages

As compared to 2017, wherein 20% tested HIV positive, 21% employees tested positive in 2019. The marginal
increase may be attributable an increase in number of employees in 2019 (absorbed employees). From a
demographic perspective, female: male ratio is circa 2.5: 1, suggesting that females are a highly vulnerable group,
with co-existing factors such as poor compliance with condoms and other preventative measure including poverty,
gender inequality in society, concomitant sexually transmitted diseases, poor bargaining position in sexual relations
and reproductive health challenges. This tallies with International data. As of mid-1996, the Joint UN Program on
AIDS estimated that more than 10 million of the 25 million adults infected with HIV since the beginning of the
epidemic are women. The proportion of HIV-positive women is growing, with almost half of the 7500 new infections
daily occurring among women (reference UN Program on AIDS).

Comparative Analysis of 2017/2019 Wellness Day Stats:
Table 4.8.4: Comparative Analysis of 2017/2019 Wellness Day Stats
2017

2019

4240

5577

2464 (58%)

2673 (48%)

Total number of females tested

1327

1569

Total number of males tested

1137

1104

494 (20%)

569 (21%)

1970 (80%)

2104 (79%)

Number of total employees at Pikitup
Total number of employees tested

Total number of employees who tested HIV positive
Total number of employees who tested and were found to be HIV negative
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Top Four Medical Conditions In 2018/19
Table 4.8.4Top Four Medical Conditions
Medical Condition

Q1%

Q2%

Q3%

Q4 %

Respiratory Problems

2.7

2.3

3.91

2.64

Muscular-skeletal

2.2

3.5

3.98

2.29

ENT (ear, nose, throat symptoms)

3.1

2

2.08

2.09

Hypertension

1.2

1.4

1.45

1.11

The overall quarterly analysis (Q1-Q4) demonstrates a fluctuating pattern of disease statistics, however the top four
medical conditions remain in status quo in all the quarters. Table above confirms high rate of Respiratory problems
and Muscular-skeletal throughout the year. Main aetiology may be association with ageing workforce, respiratory
diseases such as asthma, TB, bronchitis especially exacerbating in winter.
Muscular-skeletal diseases are second highest condition, attributable to underlying chronic degenerative disease and
obesity which strains the joints. Also, poor ergonomic work practice could be a contributory factor and safe work
practices can assist reduce risk of injuries. ENT problems are also common possibly related to environmental triggers
e.g. dust, inclement winter weather, chronic rhinitis and can result in chronic congestion and sinusitis. Hypertension
is the fourth commonly prevalent condition due to ageing workforce and susceptibility to chronic diseases and
mitigation strategies include nutritional and lifestyle interventions.

Top Four EAP Conditions In 2018/19
Table 4.8.5: Top Four EAP Conditions
EAP Conditions

Q1%

Q2%

Q3%

Q4%

Child and Family Issues

1.6

1.5

1.8

4.50

Debt Problems

1.7

2.1

1.3

1.68

Substance Abuse

0.6

1

0.53

0.54

Absenteeism

1.2

0.8

0.54

0.42

The overall quarterly analysis (Q1-Q4) of EAP conditions demonstrates a fluctuating pattern of psychosocial issues,
however the top four conditions remain in status quo in all the quarters. Family issues were the topmost EAP
problem in Q4 which entails mainly domestic challenges and related to low socio-economic circumstances that affect
the majority of employees.
Debt problems are second in the top four challenges which also impact negatively on productivity and ongoing EAP
support programs continue to address these risks. Substance abuse is also attributable to lower socio-economic
circumstances and Wellness department continues to render robust intervention strategies such as counseling,
support groups, rehabilitation, to mitigate the risk to Pikitup.
Absenteeism is a continual challenge receiving priority in the department in terms of incapacity and absenteeism
workshops and training and awareness programs among employees and Line Management.
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Section 5: Staff Movement
The HR Unit strive to meet the needs of this constantly evolving environment by ensuring that it employs the right
people for the right job at the right time. Recruitment was slowed down while the staff establishment was reviewed
which was later finalised and approved by the BoD in April 2018.
Table 4.8.6-1: 2018/19 staff movement
Q1
(2018/19)

Q2
(2018/19)

Q3
(2018/19)

Q4
(2018/19)

Total
Terminations
2018/19

1

5

1

5

12

Deceased

10

7

7

10

34

Dismissal

1

2

5

1

9

Medical Boarding

5

6

1

3

15

Resignation

4

3

12

4

23

Retirement

24

11

37

17

89

Total Number

45

34

63

40

182

Type of Termination
Contract Expiry

Based on data provided by employees, the primary reason for resignation is to pursue better prospects.
Figure 4.8.6-2: Annual terminations analysis

TERMINATIONS – 2018/19
70

NO OF TERMINATIONS

60
50
40
30
20
10
0

Contract Expiry

Deceased

Dismissal
 Q1 (2018/19)

Medical Boarding

 Q2 (2018/19)

Resignation

 Q3 (2018/19)

Retirement

Total Number

 Q4 (2018/19)
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Section 6: Employee Relations
Employment Equity
The Employment Equity Policy for Pikitup was approved by the Board on 15 April 2019. The Employment Equity Plan
for Pikitup expired in 2015. The process for compiling a new plan started in 2018 with the prescribed Analysis. The
annual Employment Equity was submitted on 31 December 2018.

Demographic Analysis
TOP MANAGEMENT BY RACE AND GENDER
2.5

2.0

2

2

2

1.5

1

1.0

1

0.5

0

0.0
African

0

0

Coloured

0

Indian
 Male

0

White

Total

 Female

SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY RACE AND GENDER
8
7

7
6
5
4
3
2

3
2

2

1

1

1

1

Coloured

Indian
 Male

104

0

0

0
African
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 Female

White

Total

PROFESSIONALLY QUALIFIED STAFF BY RACE AND GENDER
50
45

40

38
32

33

30

20

10

8
3

3

2

African

Coloured

1

1

0
Indian
 Male

White

Total

 Female

SKILLED TECHNICAL STAFF BY RACE AND GENDER
120
97

100

96

90
82

80
60

40

20
8

4

0
African

Coloured

7
2

0

Indian
 Male

0

White

Total

 Female

SEMI-SKILLED TECHNICAL STAFF BY RACE AND GENDER
400
350

345

335

300
250
200
150
100

105

104

50
10

0
African

0

Coloured

0

0

Indian
 Male

0

White

1

Total

 Female
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UNSKILLED TECHNICAL STAFF BY RACE AND GENDER
3000
2 583

2 569

2500
2 129

2 116

2000

1500

1000

500
12

0
African

14

Coloured

1

0

Indian
 Male

0

1

White

Total

 Female

Workforce Profile
Table 4.9.3: The overall percentage of the workforce profile in terms of race and gender
Gender

Percentage

African Male

47.2%

African Female

51.2%

Coloured Male

0.67%

Coloured Female

0.40%

Indian Male

0.07%

Indian Female

0.07%

White Male

0.31%

White Female

0.07%

Based on national demographics, the employment equity statistics for Pikitup reflect a disproportionately high
representation of African staff all levels except senior management where a slightly greater level of diversity is
evident. Women are also adequately represented at all levels except in the semi-skilled categories.
All future appointments at Pikitup should take cognisance of the profiles reflected above and recruitment measures
should be implemented to increase diversity at all levels whilst also reviewing barriers to appointment of women in
semi-skilled categories.

People with Disabilities (PWD’s)
The target for People with Disabilities nationally, is 2% of total staff and currently we are at 0.07%. This may
however be due to staff not declaring their disability status. Disability awareness sessions will be conducted in 2019.
The EEA1 Form (Employment Equity Declaration) will be circulated to all staff to improve our data.
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Section 7: Occupational Health and Safety Programmes
The health and safety of our people, the communities and the environment within we operate is of paramount
importance. It is disappointing to note that during 2018/2019, there were 2 employee fatalities recorded. Pikitup
failed to maintain a disabling injury frequency rate (DIFR) of 2.5. This is mainly attributable to the use of unskilled
workers due to absenteeism of skilled workers. The Pikitup Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) department focuses
on instilling a strong culture of SHE awareness within all levels of the organisation, so that all SHE policies and
procedures are strictly adhered to. The SHE department is responsible for investigating and reporting on all related
incidents to the relevant workplace committees and regulatory authorities where required. Incidents are elevated to
management, in line with the incident notification procedures, using the SHE system. The Human Resources, Social
and Ethics Committee and the Board also receive reports on the relevant incidents.
The Company’s safety and environmental record is continuously reviewed against industry and international
standards and active measures are taken to reduce the number and severity of related incidents. These measures
include regular training of employees as well as the ongoing identification, monitoring and mitigation of risks posed
by the company’s perations.

Environmental risks and opportunities
Interwaste recognises its corporate responsibility in terms of the natural environment within which it operates. The
Company accordingly ensures that our waste facilities undergo rigorous environmental authorisation processes,
including the development of Environmental Impact Assessments (EIA) and Environmental Management Plans (EMP),
prior to the commencement of operations, which are then subject to continuous monitoring and auditing for the
life-cycle of all activities. The activities of Interwaste are underpinned by its role as an environmental steward. Risks
and opportunities are quantitatively assessed using established methodologies whereby risks and opportunities are
identified, monitored and adequately addressed. Key risks and opportunities.
Health and Safety Environmental Risk and Opportunities

Risk/Opportunity addressed

Excessive consumption of natural resources
The Company could incur reputational damage arising from
cumulative impacts of excessive consumption of natural
resources.
Non-compliance to legislative requirements
The Company could incur fines, penalties and site closure due
to non-compliance to legislative requirements.

Administrative controls are in place to optimise the use of
natural resources
Programmes in place for responsible usage of natural
resources
SHE Officers are regularly trained as to changes in legislative
requirements
Internal SHE Audits are regularly conducted
Independent external Audits are conducted by various parties
on a regular basis

Unintentional pollution caused by waste management
activities
The Company could incur reputation damage, fines, penalties
and possible site closure due to unintentional pollution of the
environment.

Administrative, Operational Management and Engineering
controls are in place to reduce the probability and significance
of incidents
Environmental monitoring is in place
Internal and external environmental audits are in place
Section 30 NEMA investigation submitted to authorities when
required
Corrective action implemented

The use of off-takers that are unlicensed or that do not
conduct their activities in an environmentally friendly manner.
The Company could incur reputation damage, fines, penalties
and possible site closure due to using off-takers that are
unlicensed or do not conduct their activities in an
environmentally friendly manner.

Legal compliance verification on all off-takers are conducted
before sending the waste to them
The Company does not use unlicensed off-takers and
off-takers that do not conduct activities in an environmentally
responsible manner

Review of licenses, permits and registrations. The Company
could incur reputation damage, fines, penalties and possible
site closure due to licenses and permits becoming outdated in
terms of new legislation, or required reviews or renewals not
taking place in time.

The SHE system identifies the dates for review of all site
licenses and permits

The reduction in the usage of non-renewable resources. The
Company is focused on its environmental stewardship.

Waste-to-Energy project
Biogas digestion project
Recycling of waste
Landfill airspace extension strategies
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Section 8: Transformation
BBBEE
Pikitup is committed to complying with the Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment (B-BBEE) Codes. We strive to
create a more diverse and equitable workforce to not only mirror the diversity of the countries in which we operate,
but to enhance our competitiveness. Pikitup’s transformation practices are aligned to best practice and our
transformation policies have been developed to ensure that measurable progress is made towards genuine black
economic empowerment. Our approach is intrinsically collaborative with the business working together with all of
our stakeholders.
Pikitup’s transformation is driven by the Executive Management team, who ensures that its initiatives are
implemented across all levels within the company. The Company’s Human Resources, Remuneration, Social and
Ethics Committee actively monitor the Company’s progress to ensure that meaningful progress is made.

Enterprise and Supplier Development
Pikitup remains committed to the development of small, medium and micro enterprises (SMMEs) as a solution to
creating employment as well as growing the South African economy. With regards Enterprise Development, Pikitup
has in the year under review met its SMME spend targets. We ensure that, as far as is practically and commercially
possible, our Operations procure products and services from vendors who are located where they are situated.

Mapping a clear path towards long-term value creation
Our top priorities for 2019 entail a rigorous focus on our key controllable factors – ensuring safe and reliable
operations, maintaining service delivery standards and cost discipline. Our commitment to taking the right capital
allocation decisions for the long-term future of the business is unwavering. While recent events have created
significant short-term challenges, we are confident our business is fundamentally robust and we have a clear
pathway to resume value creation. Full implementation of separation at source, and other alternative waste disposal
projects are among our immediate and most urgent deliverables. These will be driven alongside focused efforts to
actively manage the balance sheet as we pursue a robust liquidity position.
Our promise to our stakeholders, including our employees, is that we will deliver on our commitments, continue our
journey to entrench our aspired culture. We thank our stakeholders and employees for staying the course with us
and reiterate our firm intent to secure the future of our great organisation.
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Chapter 5
Internal and External
Audit Findings

Section 1: Progress on Internal Audit Plan
Internal audit completed 22 audit projects out of 20 planned projects. This imply that Internal Audit achieved 110%
of the planned audits excluding five tender reviews completed during the year. With the considerations of tender
reviews, the achievement for the year translate to 135% which imply that internal Audit exceeded the target by
35%. Two additional projects completed during the year are adhoc audit projects. The chart below indicates number
of audit projects planned and completed during the year.
Figure 1: Number of audit projects planned and completed during the year

PLANNED VS COMPLETED
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 Completed

Year to Date Overall Audit Assessment for 2018/19 Financial Year
Table 1 and 2 below indicate audit projects planned for the year. Table 1 indicates operational, finance, compliance
and performance audits. Table 2 indicates IT audits.
Table 1: Operational,finance,compliance and performance audits plan for 2018/19 financial year
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Residual
Risk
Rating

IA
control
Rating

Nature
of Audit

Progress
Status

Separation at Source Full Audit including Follow
up Audit (CE) (operational audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

2

100% Staff Count and Verifications including
verification of IDs and proof of residents and
engaging HR to update the HR database based
on the result of the staff verifications (before
absorption process) (operational audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

3

Randburg Depot (FA) (CE) including
management and distribution of PPE
(operational audit)

FA

Completed

4

Follow up on AG and IA Audit Findings

FUA

Completed

5

2010 Absorption Project (operational audit)

FA

Completed

6

Jozi at Work In-sourcing Project (operational
audit)

FA

Completed

Quarter

Audit Ref #

Quarter 1

Quarter 1

1
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Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

7

Enterprise Risk Management Full Audit including
Follow up Audit (AE) (compliance audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

8

Health and Safety Full Audit including Follow up
Audit (AE) (compliance audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

9

Fixed Assets Management Full Audit including
Follow up Audit (AE) (finance audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

10

Audit of Pre-determined Objectives Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (AE) (performance
audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

11

Waterval Depot (FA) (CE) including management
and distribution of PPE (operational audit)

FA

Completed

12

Follow up on AG and IA Audit Findings

FA/FUA

Completed

13

Fleet Management Full Audit including Follow
up Audit (CE) including Full Maintenance Lease
(FML) (operational audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

14

Human Resource Management Full Audit
including Follow up Audit including Leave
Management and Training and Development;
and Study Grant Debtors (operational audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

15

Payroll Management Full Audit including Follow
up Audit (AE) including Overtime Management
and Payments (finance audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

16

Audit of Pre-determined Objectives Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (AE) (performance
audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

17

Midrand Depot (FA) (CE) including management
and distribution of PPE (operational audit)

FA

Completed

18

Follow up on AG and IA Audit Findings

FA/FUA

Completed

19

Supply Chain Management (SCM) Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (AE) including
procurement of PPE (compliance audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

20

Audit of Pre-determined Objectives Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (AE) (performance
audit)

FA/FUA

Completed

21

Follow up on AG and IA Audit Findings

FA/FUA

Completed

Annual
Audit
Assessment

Controls are partially adequate.

Controls are partially effective.

Information Technology Audits
Table 2: IT audit plan for 2018/19 financial year

Quarter

Audit
Ref #

Quarter 3

25

Network Security Full Audit including Follow-up
Audit (CE) (vulnerability assessment) (IT audit)

Annual
Audit
Assessment

Controls are partially adequate.

Audit Project Name

Residual
Risk
Rating

IA
control
Rating

Nature
of Audit

Progress
Status

FA/FUA

Completed

Controls are partially effective.

FA: Full Audit; FUA: Follow up Audit; CE: Consulting Engagement; AE: Assurance Engagement
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Control assessment criteria
The table below indicates control ratings used throughout this report to assess the control environment.
Table 3: Audit findings assessment ratings
Finding Rating

Descri ption of the finding Rating

Control Ratings

Minor

No material weaknesses in control environment or material instances
of non-compliance with established system of internal control
identified.

Adequate and effective.

Less significant

Isolated areas of weaknesses in control environment and/or instances
of non-compliance with established system of internal controls
identified.

Partially adequate or
effective.

Significant

Significant weaknesses in control environment and/or instances of
non-compliance with the established system of internal controls
identified.

Partially adequate and
ineffective or partially
effective and inadequate.

Critical

Pervasive weaknesses in control environment and/or instances of
non-compliance with the established system of internal controls
identified.

Inadequate and
ineffective.

Table 4: Control adequacy assessment criteria ratings
Adequacy of controls

Control Rating

Definition

Adequate

0.25

Excellent

Controls are well designed to manage risk, are largely preventative and
address the root causes. They are adequate to provide reasonable
assurance that business objectives will be achieved. Compensating
controls exist to only support preventative controls. Nothing more to
be done except review and monitor the existing controls.

Adequate but over
controlled

0.50

Good

Controls are well designed to manage risk, are largely preventative and
address the root causes. They are adequate to provide reasonable
assurance that business objectives will be achieved. Controls are
excessive and result in operational inefficiencies in the process.

Partially adequate

0.75

Fair

Controls are correctly designed but partially adequate to manage risk
and treats some of the root causes of the risk. Some work need to be
done to improve the design of the current controls.

Inadequate

1

Poor

The design of the current controls is not adequate to manage the risk
and not aligned to root causes. Very limited degree of control is being
achieved due to poor control design or its related root causes. Or
There are no controls in place to manage the risk and its related root
causes

Table 5: Control effectiveness assessment criteria descri ption
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Guide. Currently being used and these are appropriate in terms of
definition of “control effectiveness”

Adequacy of controls

Control Rating

Effective

0.25

Excellent

Controls are officially documented, in operation as intended and
reliable at all times.

Partially effective

0.5

Good

Majority controls are officially documented and operating. More work
to be done to improve its documentation or operating effectiveness/
performance

Ineffective

1

Poor

Majority of the controls are not properly documented, not operating
as intended and not reliable at all times. There may be an over-reliance
on reactive controls.
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Progress on Resolving Internal Audit Findings
Table 6: Progress on resolving IA findings

Quarter

Total
Findings

Resolved
(Management
assertions)

Verified &
Confirmed
by IA

Unresolved

% Resolved

Separation at Source

3

2

2

1

67%

Communication and Stakeholders
Engagement

1

1

1

0

100%

Quarterly Audit of Pre-determined
Objectives

6

6

6

0

100%

Region D: Depot Audit

29

28

28

1

97%

Sub-total

39

37

37

2

95%

Previous quarter sub-total

39

35

7

4

90%

Human Resource Management Full
Audit including Follow up Audit
(CE)

5

5

5

0

100%

Weighbridge Management Full
Audit including Follow up Audit
(AE)

6

4

4

2

67%

Quarterly Audit of Pre-determined
Objectives Full Audit including
Follow up Audit (CE)

6

6

6

0

100%

Region E: Marlboro Depot
(FA) (CE)
Region E: Norwood Depot (FA) (CE)

33

29

29

4

88%

Business Continuity Plan, Disaster
Recovery Plan and Back-up Review
(Full Audit including Follow-up
Audit (CE))

6

4

4

2

67%

Sub-total

56

48

48

8

86%

Previous quarter sub-total

56

43

10

13

77%

Revenue Management Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (AE)

2

1

1

1

50%

Fleet Management Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (CE)

7

3

3

4

43%

Quarterly Audit of Pre-determined
Objectives Full Audit including
Follow up Audit (CE)

8

8

8

0

100%

Region G (FA) (CE)
Audit Areas:
Avalon Depot
Orange Farm Depot

16

12

12

4

75%

Sub-total

33

24

24

9

73%

Previous quarter sub-total

33

23

6

10

70%

Audit Projects

IA findings for 2017/18 financial year
Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3
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Quarter 4

Contract Management Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (CE)

0

0

0

0

0%

Compliance Management Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (CE)

0

0

0

0

0%

Quarterly Audit of Pre-determined
Objectives Full Audit including
Follow up Audit (CE)

1

1

1

0

100%

Supply Chain Management (SCM)
Full Audit including Follow up Audit
(CE)

0

0

0

0

0%

IT General Controls Full Audit
including Follow-up Audit (CE)

3

0

0

3

0%

IT Application Controls Full Audit
including Follow-up Audit (CE)

6

0

0

6

0%

Sub-total

10

1

1

9

10%

Previous quarter sub-total

10

1

0

9

10%

Total for 2017/18 financial year

138

110

110

28

80%

Previous quarter resolution rate

138

102

23

36

74%

Separation at Source Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (CE)

0

0

0

0

0%

100% Staff Count and Verifications
including verification of IDs and
proof of residents and engaging HR
to update the HR database based
on the result of the staff
verifications (before absorption
process)

2

2

2

0

100%

Randburg Depot (FA) (CE) including
management and distribution of
PPE

16

0

0

16

0%

2010 Absorption Project

0

0

0

0

0%

Jozi at Work In-sourcing Project

0

0

0

0

0%

Sub-total

18

2

2

16

11%

Previous quarter sub-total

18

2

2

16

11%

1

0

0

1

0%

11

0

0

11

0%

Fixed Assets Management Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (AE)

1

0

0

1

0%

Audit of Pre-determined Objectives
Full Audit including Follow up Audit
(AE)

7

0

0

7

0%

12

0

0

12

0%

0

0

0

0

0%

Sub-total

32

0

0

32

0%

Previous quarter sub-total

32

0

0

32

0%

IA findings for 2018/19 financial year
Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Enterprise Risk Management Full
Audit including Follow up Audit
(AE)
Health and Safety Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (AE)

Waterval Depot (FA) (CE) including
management and distribution of
PPE (operational audit)
Tender Reviews
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Quarter 3

Fleet Management Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (CE)
including Full Maintenance Lease
(FML) (operational audit)

11

0

0

11

0%

1

0

0

1

0%

11

0

0

11

0%

5

0

0

5

0%

Midrand Depot (FA) (CE) including
management and distribution of
PPE (operational audit)

12

0

0

12

0%

Network Security Full Audit
including Follow-up Audit (CE)
(vulnerability assessment) (IT audit)

13

0

0

13

0%

Sub-total

53

0

0

53

0%

Previous quarter sub-total

53

0

0

53

0%

Supply Chain Management (SCM)
Full Audit including Follow up Audit
(AE) including procurement of PPE
(compliance audit)

6

0

0

6

0%

Sub-total

6

0

0

6

0%

Previous quarter sub-total

6

0

0

6

0%

Total number of findings for 2018-2019
financial years as at 30 June 2019

109

2

2

107

2%

Total number of findings for 2017-2018 and
2018-2019 financial years as at 30 June 2019

247

112

112

135

45%

Human Resource Management Full
Audit including Follow up Audit
including Leave Management and
Training and Development; and
Study Grant Debtors (operational
audit)
Payroll Management Full Audit
including Follow up Audit (AE)
including Overtime Management
and Payments (finance audit)
Audit of Pre-determined Objectives
Full Audit including Follow up Audit
(AE) (performance audit)

Quarter 4

Internal Audit noted 138 and 109 audit findings for 2017/18 and 2018/19 respectively. The total audit findings
noted by Internal Audit for these two financial years totalled to 247.
Table 6 and 7 indicate that the entity resolved 80% and 2% for 2017/18 and 2018/19 financial years respectively.
On aggregate for the past two financial years to date, the entity resolved 45% with 55% remaining unresolved.
Note that unresolved audit findings for the current financial year remained high because management is afforded
three months to resolve audit findings and Internal Audit require adequate time to plan and conduct follow up
audits prior updating the resolution rates. Follow up audits are planned to be conducted in the current financial year.
Upon completing these follow up audits, the resolution tracking register will be updated accordingly.
To improve the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes, 100% resolution
rate is required. The implementation of corrective actions will assist in obtaining and sustaining a clean audit. Internal
Audit will continuously engage management to ensure that 100% resolution rate is achieved for all audit findings.
An analysis of internal audit findings for two financial years was conducted in order to determine the potential
impact on service delivery and year-end audit opinion in case they remained unresolved for a longer period. Table 7
below indicates audit findings that are significant to service delivery and/or audit opinion and those that are less
significant but may become significant if they remain unresolved for a longer period as well as the resolution status.
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Table 7: Analysis of internal audit findings and rating of potential impact on service delivery and year-end
audit opinion
An analysis of internal audit findings for two financial years and rating of potential impact on service
delivery and year-end audit opinion as at 30 June 2019
Effects on audit opinion and/or service delivery

Matters that may
affect audit opinion
and/or service
delivery (significant)

Other important
matters that could
escalate to
significant if not
addressed (less
significant)

Administrative
matters (less
significant)

Total

Resolved

27

79

4

110 (80%)

Not resolved

10

14

4

28 (20%)

Sub-total

37

93

8

138 (100%)

0

0

2

2 (2%)

Not resolved

15

80

12

107 (98%)

Sub-total

15

80

14

109 (100%)

Total

52

173

22

247

21%

70%

9%

100%

Financial year
2017/18 financial year

2018/19 financial year
Resolved

Percentage
Total resolved

112 (45%)

Total Unresolved

135 (55%)

Total audit findings

247 (100%)

Progress On Resolving Agsa Audit Findings
AGSA raised 177 audit findings for the past five financial years. Figure 2 below shows trend on AGSA audit findings
for the past five financial years and related audit outcome.
Figure 2: Trend on AGSA audit findings

AGSA AUDIT OPINION AND TOTAL AUDIT FINDINGS FOR THE PAST FIVE FINANCIAL YEARS
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2014/15
Clean Audit

2015/16
Unqualified

2016/17
Unqualified

2017/18
Unqualified

Total

The trend analysis on Figure 2 above shows significant improvement in the control environment within the entity in
2013/14 and 2014/15 financial years. The trend took a negative turn in 2015/16 and 2016/17 financial years with
total number of AGSA audit findings increasing by 15 findings (79%) when compared to 2014/15 financial year.
Again, the number of audit findings increased by additional 15 audit findings (44%) in 2016/17 financial year when
comparing to 2015/16 financial year. In 2017/18 financial year, the number of audit finding raised by AGSA
decreased by 9 audit findings (18%) when compared to 2016/17 financial year. However, these audit findings remain
a concern because the nature of audit findings raised are qualitative and material and if not resolved during the
financial year may have negative impact on the year-end audit outcome.
Table 8 below indicates the nature of the audit findings raised by AGSA for the past 2 financial years, related
resolution rate and quarter on quarter comparison.
Table 8: Progress on resolving AGSA audit findings

Total
findings

Resolved
(management
assertions)

Verified &
confirmed
by IA

Unresolved

% Resolved

4

0

0

4

0%

11

9

9

2

82%

Supply Chain Management

5

5

5

0

100%

Human Resource Management

3

2

2

1

67%

16

16

16

0

100%

Information Technology (IT)

0

0

0

0

0%

Operations

1

1

1

0

100%

Total resolution rate (current quarter)

40

33

33

7

83%

Total resolution rate (previous quarter)

40

32

31

8

80%

8

6

6

2

75%

10

9

9

1

90%

Supply Chain Management

9

9

9

0

100%

Human Resource Management

3

2

2

1

67%

14

14

14

0

100%

Information Technology (IT)

3

3

3

0

100%

Operations

2

2

2

0

100%

Total resolution rate (current quarter)

49

45

45

4

92%

Total resolution rate (previous quarter)

49

39

32

10

80%

Area reviewed
AG findings for 2017/18 financial year
Revenue
Audit of Predetermined Objectives

Finance

AG findings for 2016/17 financial year
Revenue
Audit of Predetermined Objectives

Finance

Table 8 and 9 indicate that on aggregate the entity resolved 92% and 83% of audit findings noted by AGSA for
2016/17 and 2017/18 financial years respectively. On aggregate the resolution rate for the past two financial years
is 88%.
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Table 9: Trend on audit findings issued by AGSA and resolution rate
Financial Year

2016/17

2017/18

Total

Total Findings

49

40

89

Reduction

15

(9)

(9)

44%

(18%)

18%

45

33

78

92%

83%

88%

4

7

11

8%

17%

12%

% Reduction
Resolution
Resolution Rate
Unresolved Findings
% Unresolved Findings

An analysis of unresolved audit findings showed that Revenue and AOPO are major contributors to unresolved audit
findings at 55% and 27% respectively. HR contributed 18%. Note that HR audit findings are less significant because
they are administrative in nature whilst revenue and AOPO audit findings are significant and may have impact on the
audit opinion. Internal Audit will continuously engages these respective departments to ensure 100% resolutions of
audit findings. Figure 3 below indicates contributors to unresolved audit findings raised by AGSA.
Figure 3: Total AGSA unresolved audit findings per department.

TOTAL AGSA UNRESOLVED AUDIT FINDINGS PER DEPARTMENT
12
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0

0

Finance

Operations

Total
Unresolved
Findings

An analysis of AGSA audit findings for the past two financial years and potential impact on the year-end audit
opinion was conducted. The analysis shows that 56% of audit findings noted in the previous two financial years are
significant findings that may have impact on the audit opinion whilst 37% are less significant but may become
significant if remained unresolved for a longer period. Of these 83 significant audit findings 88% were resolved
whilst 12% remained unresolved as at 30 June 2019. Table 10 below indicates the number of audit findings which
affected the audit opinion in the previous two year-end audits, other important matters and administrative matters.
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Table 10: An analysis of AGSA audit findings for two financial years and potential impact rating on the
year-end audit opinion

Status of AGSA findings

Matters
affecting
audit opinion

Other
important
matters

Administrative
matters

Total

20 (83%)

11 (85%)

2 (67%)

33 (83%)

4 (17%)

2 (15%)

1 (33%)

7 (17%)

24 (100%)

13 (100%)

3 (100%)

40 (100%)

60%

33%

7%

100%

23 (88%)

19 (95%)

3 (100%)

45 (92%)

3 (12%)

1 (5%)

0 (0%)

4 (8%)

26 (100%)

20 (100%)

3 (100%)

49 (100%)

53%

41%

6%

100%

43 (86%)

30 (91%)

5 (83%)

78 (88%)

7 (14%)

3 (9%)

1 (17%)

11 (12%)

50 (100%)

33 (100%)

6 (100%)

89 (100%)

56%

37%

7%

100%

2017/18 financial year
Resolved
Not resolved
Sub-total
Percentage
2016/17 financial year
Resolved
Not resolved
Sub-total
Percentage
Total for 2016/17,and 2017/18 financial years
Resolved
Not resolved
Total Findings
Percentage

Table 11 below indicates the impact the audit finding will have on the year-end audit if it recur
Descri ptors

Ratings

Definitions

Insignificant

1

Immaterial impact on year end audit and business as a whole.

Moderate

3

Negative outcomes/observations that may have a moderate effect on the year-end audit
and business unit’s performance and objectives.

Major

4

Negative outcomes/observations with major effect on the year-end audit and business
unit’s performance & objectives

Severe

5

Negative outcomes/observations with a severe effect on the year-end audit and business
unit’s performance and objectives
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Chapter 6
Financial
Performance

Chief Financial Officer’s Report
The entity realised a surplus of R135 155 977 (2017/18: R45 277 079) for the financial year ended 30 June 2019.
The main contributor to the increased surplus has been the domestic revenue that performed well above budget due
to the updated general valuation roll. Total revenue for the financial year was R2 498 499 609, R113 019 590 over
the budgeted total revenue of R2 373 220 000 (2017/18: R2 333 720 549). Domestic revenue tariffs are linked to
property values, hence the increase in revenue. Commercial services struggled during the year due to lack of reliable
fleet to service customers. This resulted in all commercial services activities performing below the target.
The statement of financial position indicates a healthy financial position with a net asset position of R167 902 611
(2017/18: R32 746 637) as at 30 June 2019. The entity closed the financial year with a cash balance of
R215 786 903 which is managed by the City of Johannesburg on behalf of the entity.
Total expenditure for the year increased by R74 900 162 when compared to the comparative period, mainly due to
increases in general expenses and payroll costs. Payroll costs as a percentage of total costs increased from 42% to
48% in the current year, above the norm of between 25% and 40% as a result of the labour intensive nature of the
Pikitup business model. The increase in payroll costs was due to the former 2010 (third party contractor staff) and
Jozi@work employees being absorbed during the year. The doubtful debt provision increased in the current financial
year as a result of a change in estimate for the allowance of doubtful debt. During the comparative period, only
customers who did not pay any amount in the prior three financial years were provided for in the financial
statements. However during the current year, this indicator was revised so that customers who paid R5000 or less for
the prior three financial years were provided for in the financial statements. The impact of this change in estimate is
that an additional R219 647 711 was then provided as doubtful debt in the financial statements. Total allowance for
doubtful debt as at 30 June 2019 amount to R2 003 432 502 (73% of the gross debtor’s balance), however the
overall debt impairment in the statement of financial performance decreased from R279 464 589 to R235 336 033
as the other indicator of doubtful debt of the customers handed over to attorneys for collection was not used during
the year as the City did not have a contract in place with attorneys to hand over customers during the year.
Credit control measures including revenue collection are implemented centrally by the CoJ through Revenue Shared
Service Centre (RSSC). There have been various initiative implemented during the year to improve revenue collection
and some were championed by the Mayor.
During the financial year, the entity incurred additional R147 160 604 irregular expenditure, the majority of which
relates to Public protectors report, Illegal dumping contract and fleet contracts managed by the City. The irregular
expenditure was referred to internal audit during the year for further investigation. The cumulative total irregular
expenditure amount as at 30 June 2019 is R877 246 089, which is detailed in note 36 of the financial statements.
The table below summarises some of the financial ratios performance against the target
Pikitup
Ratio

2017/18 Year End

2018/19 Year End

CoJ Target

NT Target

Remuneration as % of Total Operating
Expenditure

42%

48%

25%-40%

25.0%-40.0%

Repairs and Maintenance as a % of
PPE (Carrying Value)

20%

14%

8%

8%

2%

5%

>0%

≥0%

102%

99%

Current Ratio

0.6

0.8

1.5 – 2:1

Solvency Ratio

1.0

1.1

2.1: 1

Net Operating Surplus Margin
Operating Expenditure vs Budget

95%-100%
1.5 – 2:1
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With a few exceptions the Pikitup ratios have improved during the current financial year.
c Remuneration to total operating expenditure is over the targets due to the labour intensive nature of the Pikitup
business model, the increase in the financial year as a result of the absorption of ex-third party contractor staff.
c Repairs and maintenance costs remain above the target as a result of the repairs required on the fleet which is
beyond its economic lifespan.
c The increase in the net operating margin is a direct result of the improvement in total revenue.
c Operating expenditure totalled 99% of the approved budget, an excellent result when compared to the target.
c Both the current and solvency ratios are below target, but show an improvement during the current financial year.
For the year under review (30 June 2019), the entity has a capital expenditure budget amounting to R86 217 000 of
which R74 836 000 (87%) was spent against the target of 95%. Internal control measures have been implemented
to improve the spending of capital expenditure. This led to the capex unit under Operation department being moved
to Finance department.
The entity received an unqualified audit opinion on financial statements from our independent auditors (Auditor
General South Africa) for the fourth successive year with slight improvements. The entity missed out on clean audit
on financial statements due to material adjustment processed during the audit on disclosure notes and also irregular
expenditure incurred. Majority of irregular expenditure incurred relates to contracts managed by the City on behalf of
the entity. On performance report, the Auditor General audited goal 1- Building an efficient, effective and viable
waste management company, Goal 2- Integrated waste management, waste prevention and waste minimisation,
goal 3- Realisation of value throughout the waste value chain and goal 4- Effective and efficient waste services. The
entity received an unqualified conclusion on goal 1 and goal 3, qualified conclusion on goal 2 (unchanged from
comparative period) and a disclaimer conclusion on goal 4 (regression from comparative period). Internal control
measures will be implemented through the office of the Managing Director to ensure improvement on annual
performance report.
During the year under review, 44% of supplier’s invoices were paid within 30 days against the target of 95%.
Approval of invoices by user departments were taking longer than 30 days before submission to finance department
for payment. The receipt of invoices has now been centralised to Finance department to improve tracking of
invoices. A standardised payment run dates has been established and is shared with user departments on a monthly
basis. With the introduction of this measures, I have noticed improvements on this performance ratio and I anticipate
that this will continue to improve during and towards the end of the new financial year.
There is no long outstanding municipal service debt as at 30 June 2019.
I anticipate that the financial performance will improve during the new financial year as management implements
various internal control measures identified to assist the organization to achieve its strategic goals, including the
filling of critical vacancies within the organization.

Mr Litshani Matsila CA (SA)
Chief Financial Officer
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Report of the auditor-general to the City of Johannesburg
Metropolitan Municipality and the council on Pikitup
Johannesburg SOC Ltd
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
1.

I have audited the financial statements of Pikitup Johannesburg SOC Ltd set out on pages 129 to 201, which
comprise statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, the statement of financial performance, statement
of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts
for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Pikitup
Johannesburg SOC Ltd as at 30 June 2019, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(SA Standards of GRAP), and the requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act no. 56
of 2003) (MFMA) and the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act no. 71 of 2008) (Companies Act).
Basis for opinion
3.

I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of this auditor’s report.

4.

I am independent of the municipal entity in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants, and parts 1 and 3 of the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International code of ethics for professional accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (IESBA codes), as well as the ethical requirements that are
relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA codes.

5.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matters
6.

I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Restatement of corresponding figures
7.

As disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 2018 were restated as
a result of an error in the financial statements of the municipal entity at, and for the year ended, 30 June 2019.

Material impairment
8.

As disclosed in note 4 and 5 to the financial statements, debtors balance has been significantly impaired. The
allowance for impairment of receivables from exchange transactions and receivables from non-exchange
transactions is R1 988 644 845 (2018: R1 764 039 917), which represents 73% (2018: 73%) of the total
debtors. The contribution to the provision for debt impairment was R224 604 928 (2018: R268 043 424).
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Other matter
9.

I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited disclosures
10. In terms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA, the municipal entity is required to disclose particulars of noncompliance with the MFMA in the financial statements. This disclosure requirement did not form part of the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion on it.
Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements
11. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the SA standards of GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA and the Companies Act, and for
such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
12. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing Pikitup Johannesburg’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the
municipal entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
13. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
14. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure
to this auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report
Introduction and scope
15. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act no. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice
issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance
information against predetermined objectives for selected goals presented in the annual performance report. I
performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
16. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved
performance planning documents of the municipal entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and
appropriateness of the performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not
extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of
future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings
do not extend to these matters.
17. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria
developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for
the following selected goals presented in the annual performance report of the municipal entity for the year
ended 30 June 2019:
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Pages in the annual
performance report

Goals
Goal 1 – building an efficient, effective and viable waste management company

11

Goal 2 – integrated waste management, waste prevention and waste minimisation

12

Goal 3 – realisation of value throughout the waste value chain

13

Goal 4 – effective and efficient waste services

13

18. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was consistent with the
approved performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators
and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported performance
information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete
19. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected goals are as follows:
Goal 2 – integrated waste management, waste prevention, waste minimisation
Tons of dry waste diverted through Pikitup interventions (paper, plastic. glass, cans)
20. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of 25 991,91. This
was due to documentation from third parties that was not submitted. I was unable to confirm the reported
achievement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were
required to the achievement of 25 991,91 as reported in the annual performance report.
Goal 4 – effective and efficient waste management services
Number or percentage of formal households receiving weekly waste removal services.
21. The indicator was initially approved as number and percentage (%) of formal households receiving weekly waste
removal services in the SDBIP. However, it was changed without approval and included in the annual
performance report as number or percentage of formal households receiving weekly waste removal services. The
target was initially approved as All formal households in Land Information System (LIS) receiving weekly waste
removal services in the SDBIP. However, it was changed without approval and included in the annual
performance report as 1 182 997. The method of calculation for the achievement of this indicator was not
clearly defined. As a result, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported
achievement. Limitations were placed on the scope of my work as I was unable to confirm the reported
achievement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were
required to the achievement of 1 182 997 in the annual performance report.
Improved city cleanliness levels in targeted areas city-wide
22. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of level 1 in targeted
areas city-wide. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work. I was unable to confirm the
reported achievement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments
were required to the achievement of level 1 reported in the annual performance report.
Number of illegal dumping spots eradicated
23. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of 34 illegal dumping
spots eradicated. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work. I was unable to confirm the
reported achievement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments
were required to the achievement of 34 reported in the annual performance report.
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24. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for
these goals:
c Goal 1 – building an efficient, effective and viable waste management company
c Goal 3 – realisation of value throughout the waste value chain

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction and scope
25. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report
material findings on the compliance of the municipal entity with specific matters in key legislation. I performed
procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
26. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:
Annual financial statements and annual reports
27. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the
requirements of section 122(1) of the MFMA. Material misstatements of current assets, expenditure and
disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were subsequently corrected and
the supporting records were provided subsequently, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified
audit opinion.
Expenditure management
28. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure of R78 097 261 disclosed in note 36 to the
financial statements, as required by section 95(d) of the MFMA. The majority of the irregular expenditure was
caused as the municipal entity used contracts irregularly procured by the shareholder and the use of regulation
32 without confirming compliance with all the requirements of the regulation.

Other information
29. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, which includes the directors’ report, the audit committee’s report and the
company secretary’s certificate as required by the Companies Act. The other information does not include the
financial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected goals presented in the annual performance report
that have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.
30. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance
with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
31. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected goals
presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
32. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When I do receive and read this
information, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance and request that the other information be corrected. If the other information
is not corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report.
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Internal control deficiencies
33. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information
and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on
it. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis
for the opinion, the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation
included in this report.
34. The accounting officer did not adequately oversee the preparation of the annual performance report and
compliance with the MFMA.
35. Senior management did not always implement adequate record keeping processes to ensure that all the
reported performance achievements are supported by sufficient and appropriate evidence.
36. Senior management did not implement adequate internal controls to ensure that the financial statements are
free from material misstatements and that reported targets are supported by reliable information.
37. Senior management did not always take effective steps to avoid non-compliance with the MFMA, which resulted
in material non-compliance with the MFMA.

Other reports
38. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could have, an impact
on the matters reported in the municipal entity’s financial statements, reported performance information,
compliance with applicable legislation and other related matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion
on the financial statements or my findings on the reported performance information or compliance with
legislation.
39. The Group Forensic Investigations Service (GFIS), which is structurally located in the City of Johannesburg
Metropolitan Municipality is investigating allegations of financial irregularities, financial misconduct and fraud
within the entity.

Johannesburg
30 November 2019
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit
1.

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on reported
performance information for selected goals and on the municipal entity’s compliance with respect to the
selected subject matters.

Financial statements
2.

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s report,
I also:
c identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control
c obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
municipal entity’s internal control
c evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the accounting officer
c conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Pikitup
Johannesburg’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about
the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial
statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause a municipal entity to cease continuing as a going concern
c evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance
3.

I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify
during my audit.

4.

I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a
bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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General Information
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South Africa
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Directors Responsibilities and Approval
The directors are required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003) and Companies Act of South Africa (Act
no.71 of 2008), to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial
statements and related financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the directors to ensure that the
financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The Auditor General is engaged as required by the Constitution s188 and
MFMA s92 to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial
records and related data.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.
The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these
responsibilities, the board set standards for internal control are aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout
the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business is
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the entity is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management and internal audit unit, that
the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of
the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or deficit. Pikitup has adopted a combined assurance framework that will optimise
overall assurance to the Board of directors by management , internal and external assurance providers on how risk affecting
the entity is being managed or mitigated.
The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the CJMM has neither the
intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the entity.

Ms Mkhize NP
Chairperson

Director
Acting Managing Director

Date:
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Audit Committee Report
The Audit Committee presents its report for the year ended 30 June 2019 as recommended by the King IV report and in
compliance with Section 94(7)(f) of the Companies Act of 2008 and MFMA s166. The Audit Committe has adopted formal terms
of reference that have been approved by the Board of Directors. The Committee has conducted and discharged its affairs and
its responsibilities in compliance with its terms of reference , King IV, Section 94(7)(f) of the Companies Act of 2008 and
MFMA s166. Pikitup is compliant with King IV as applicable to a wholly owned entity of the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan
Municipality.
The independent members of the Audit Committee were Mr Brenner L (Chairperson), Mr Buys R, Mr Hattingh W, Ms Malope
S, Prof Snyman J, Mr Mayne C, Mr Zwane T.The Committee held 6 meetings during the financial year to review matters
necessary to fullfil its role. The chairperson of the board attend audit committees on invitation.

Audit committee members and attendance
The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and met 6 times during the financial year to review matters
necesary to fullfill its role.
Name of member
Number of meetings attended
Mr Brenner L (Chairperson)
6
Mr Buys R
2
Mr Hattingh W
4
Ms Malope S
0 (Appointed 17 April 2019)
Mr Mayne C
6
Prof Snyman J
6
Mr Zwane T
0 (Appointed 17 April 2019)
In the conduct of its duties, the Audit Committee reviewed its terms of reference during the period under review
and perfomed the following functions:
External audit
The audit committe is satisfied that the external auditor is independent of the entity. The external auditor does not provide nonaudit sevices to the entity. The audit committe is also aware of the rotation of managers by the external auditors which metigate
the attendant risk of familiarity between the external auditor and management.

Received and reviewed reports from Auditor General concerning the fairness of the Financial Statement and
performance information (Predetermined objectives). The effectiveness of Pikitup's internal control environment,
systems and processes;

Made appropriate recommendations to the Board regarding the corrective actions to be taken as consequence of
audit findings.

Monitor the implementation of the recommendations from the varied audit findings and the resolution thereof.
Internal audit
The system of internal controls applied by the entity over financial and risk management is effective, efficient and
transparent. In line with the MFMA and the King iV Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides
the audit and risk committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This
is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested
enhancements to the controls and processes.

Considered the effectiveness of Internal Audit, which included approving the three year rolling plan and reviewed the
annual internal audit charter;

Received and reviewed reports from the internal auditor concerning the effectiveness of the company's internal
controls, systems and processes;

Reviewed the adequacy and appropriateness of management's corrective action plan as a consequence of audit
findings;

Made appropriate recommendations to the Board regarding the corrective actions to be taken as a consequence of
the audit findings.
The internal audit fuction led by the Chief Audit Executive reports fuctionally to the Audit Committee and has direct reporting
line to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The annual audit plan is reviewed regularly to ensure that it remains relevant
and responsive to the identified risk . During the year under review, the Audit Committee met with the Chief Audit Executive
and External Auditors without management being present.
4
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Audit Committee Report
Perfomance Evaluation
The Audit Committee conducted its perfomance evaluation during the year .

5
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Audit Committee Report
King IV recommendations
The assurance work conducted by assurance providers during the year included all principles of King IV. Based on the
assurance work provided,the Audit Committee is satisfied that King IV recommendations were fully complied with during the
year.
Assessment of the financial function
The Audit Committee satisfied itself that the Chief Financial Officer has appropriate financial experience to manage the
financial affairs of the organisation . The committee continues to make recommendations for enhancing the functioning and
improvement of the finance function to management where appropriate.
The Committee also considered the Annual Report for the year under review and recommended approval thereof to the Board
of Directors. The Audit Committee is satisfied that it complies with its legal, statutory and delegated responsibilities.
Internal Control Environment
The Audit Committee has overseen a process by which Internal Audit perfomed a written assessment of the effectiveness of
the company's system of internal control and risk management, including internal financial controls.
The Audit Committee noted that in certain instances the corrective actions implemented were not completely adequate and
effective. The Committee has made recommendations for ensuring that the internal control enviroment is improved and better
accountability from management is established including consequence management.
In addition to work conducted by Internal Audit, the Audit Committee rely on the work conducted by the external auditors to
determine the effectiveness and adequacy of the system of internal control within the entity. Previously, external auditors raised
audit findings in the management report and the Audit Committee is noted progress made in resolving these findings.
In the opinion of the Audit Committee, work has been done to improve internal controls and further work is still required of the
Entity in terms of:

Meeting the strategic objectives of the Entity;

Evaluating and mitigating the key risks facing the Entity;

Ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

Ensuring that the Company's assets are safeguarded; and

Ensuring that transactions undertaken are correctly recorded in accounting records.
The Audit Committee has evaluated the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 and considers that they comply,
in all material respects, with the requirements of the Companies Act, Municipal Finance Management Act, the Public Audit Act
and the South African Statements of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP).

Signed: Chairperson of the Audit Committee

Date:
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Directors Report
The directors submit their report for the year ended 30 June 2019.
1.

INCORPORATION
The entity was incorporated on 28 November 2000 and obtained its certificate to commence operating on the same day.

2.

REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES
Main business and operations
The entity is mandated through SDA concluded with City of Johannesburg in providing comprehensive waste
management services on behalf of the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality to the residents and businesses
within its geographic area.
During the year under review, there were no changes in the bussiness activities of the entity.
Net surplus of the entity is R 135 155 977 (2018: R 45 277 079).
Insourcing of cleaning and security personnel
In May 2017, the Executive Mayor made a pronouncement that the City of Johannesburg and its entities will absorp all the
cleaning and security personnel employeed by the service providers contracted to the City. Various engagement with all
entities started in February 2018 and held throughout the year .The final decision was taken on the 13 June 2019 which
mandated the entity to absorb/insource security personnel and cleaning staff. Pikitup issued letters of appointement to
172 security personnel during July 2019 to start working effective from 01 October 2019.
The pronouncement on the insourcing of the cleaning personnel was made on the 18th July 2019. The implementation
will be from the 01 September 2019. Pikitup will be appointing 4 cleaners through this process.

3.

GOING CONCERN AND UNDERTAKING OF SUPPORT
As at 30 June 2019, the entity had an accumulated surplus of R 124 899 806 (2018 -R10 256 171) and the entity's total
assets exceed its liabilities by R 167 902 614 (2018: R 32 746 636).
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement
of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

4.

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION OF PERSONAL FINANCIAL INTEREST
The directors declared that they have no interest in the contracts entered by the entity.

5.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with the Municipal
Finance Management Act (Act no. 56 of 2003).

6.

SHARE CAPITAL / CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
The company was incorporated with an authorised share capital of 1,000 ordinary shares of R1 each which were
issued at par value.
According to the company's share register at 30 June 2019, the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality held
100% of the ordinary share capital of the company.
There were no changes in the authorised or issued shares during the year under review.
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7.

BORROWING LIMITATIONS
In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation and the Delegation of Authority, the entity does not have the authority to
borrow funds. All external funding is managed by the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality.

8.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
The City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality operates a consolidated billing system for its revenue for some
of its controlled entities, which includes Pikitup. In terms of this management agreement, the City of Johannesburg
Metropolitan Municipality invoices customers on behalf of the entity, and collects the receipts thereof from the customers.
The receipts are allocated to all affected entities in terms of receipts allocation policy of the City of Johannesburg
Metropolitan Municipality. The entity pays a prescribed fee to the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality for this
service.

9.

SECRETARY

The secretary of the entity is Ms Louw C of:
Business address

Postal address

Jorissen Place
66 Jorissen Street
Braamfontein
Johannesburg
2001
Private Bag X74
Braamfontein
Johannesburg
2017

10. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
General
The directors are committed to business integrity, transparency and professionalism in all their activities. As part of this
commitment, the directors support the highest standards of corporate governance and the ongoing development of best
practice.
Board of directors
The Board as the accounting authority of the entity:

retains full control over the entity, its plans and strategies;

acknowledges its responsibilities as to strategy, compliance with internal policies, external laws and regulations,
effective risk management and performance measurement, transparency and effective communication both
internally and externally by the entity;

is of a unitary structure comprising of independent non-executive and executive directors as follows :
non-executive directors, all of whom are independent directors.
Managing Director- Executive Director
Chief Financial officer - Executive Director

The Board has various Sub-committees, which are chaired by the independent non-executive directors:
Audit and Risk Committee
-

Social, Ethics and Human Resource and Remuneration Commitee
Operations and Service Delivery Committee

Chairperson and Accounting Officer
The Chairperson of the Board is an independent non-executive director.
8
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The roles of the Chairperson and Accounting Officer are separate, with responsibilities divided between them, so that no
individual has unchecked powers of discretion.
Remuneration
The remuneration of the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer is determined by the Board in consultation with
the Shareholder.
The remuneration of the non executive directors is determined by the Shareholders as agreed through special resolution
at the Annual General Meeting.
Board meetings
The board held 11 meetings in the current financial period. These meetings were necessitated by the challenges the
entity was experiencing during this period and to monitor including the implementation of the remedial actions of the
report issued by the Public Protector.
Audit Committee
The members of the Audit Committee are Mr Brenner L (Chairperson), Mr Buys R, Mr Hattingh W,Ms Malope S,Prof
Snyman J and Mr Zwane T.
Internal audit
The internal audit function led by the Chief Audit Executive made use of a panel of internal auditors to fulfill its duties.This
is in compliance with Municipal Finance Management Act (Act no. 56 of 2003).
11. CONTROLLING ENTITY
The company is a wholly owned entity of the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality.
12. BANKERS
The company's banker is Standard Bank of South Africa.
The management of the treasury function within the company is managed under the auspices of the The City of
Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality Treasury department. Pikitup has a sweeping arrangement with The City of
Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality whereby all cash is swept on a daily basis to the City of Johannesburg
Metropolitan Municipality bank account resulting in an intercompany loan between the City of Johanneburg Metropolitan
Municipality and the entity.

9
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Company Secretary’s Certification
Declaration by the company secretary in respect of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act of 2008
In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act (Act no. 71 of 2008) (as amended) and the Municipal Finance Management
Act (Act no. 56 of 2003) I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the company has lodged and/or filed, for the
financial year ended 30 June 2019, all such returns and notices as required and that all such returns and notices are true,
correct and up to date.

Ms Louw C
Company Secretary
Pikitup Johannesburg SOC Ltd

10
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2019

2018

2
4
5
7
8

3 737 023
26 352 465
722 006 967
308 631 654
21 984

1 059 584
48 730 180
596 330 572
200 377 263
38 014

1 060 750 093

846 535 613

Assets
Current Assets
Inventories
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Receivables from exchange transactions
Inter-company receivables- COJ
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Non-current assets held for sale
Employee benefit
Inter-company receivables- COJ

9
10
11
17
12

594 880 762 558 591 604
242 548
303 914
16 240 072
137 838 708 133 864 689
1 185 644 969 1 222 762 799
1 918 606 987 1 931 763 078

Total Assets

2 979 357 080 2 778 298 691

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation
Payables from exchange transactions
Provision for perfomance bonus
Intercompany liabilities- Salaries

14
15
18
16

31 195 663
740 432 337
6 885 890
620 439 849

44 296 811
776 088 665
10 993 027
642 248 474

1 398 953 739 1 473 626 977
Non-Current Liabilities
Loans from shareholders
Finance lease obligation
Employee benefit obligation
Provisions- Landfill Rehabilitation

3
14
17
18

599 246 166
71 467 932
741 786 632

524 359 657
31 195 563
79 753 932
636 615 927

1 412 500 730 1 271 925 079
Total Liabilities

2 811 454 469 2 745 552 056

Net Assets/ (Liabilities)
Net Assets/ (Liabilities)
Share capital / contributed capital
Owners Contribution
Accumulated surplus

20

Total Net Assets /(Liabilities)

11

140

PIKITUP INTEGRATED REPORT 2018/19

167 902 611
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1 000
43 001 808
124 899 806

1 000
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(10 256 171)
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Statement of Financial Performance
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2019

2018

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges
Other revenue
Interest received
Income from equity accounted investment

21
21
41

Total revenue from exchange transactions

1 706 904 344 1 502 847 933
3 483 680
2 065 288
60 241 269
34 692 970
638 162
1 770 629 293 1 540 244 353

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies
Levies

22

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions
Total revenue

21

Expenditure
Employee related costs
Fleet
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Lease rentals on operating lease
Debt Impairment
Loss on disposal of assets
Loss on disposal of investment in associate
General Expenses

23
24
25
6

39

Total expenditure

553 932 183
173 938 133

621 834 705
171 641 491

727 870 316

793 476 196

2 498 499 609 2 333 720 549
(1 118 897 103)
(569 420 695)
(99 983 792)
(99 168 872)
(9 871 893)
(235 336 033)
(5 250 523)
(911 349)
(224 503 372)

(966 872 799)
(633 283 112)
(101 791 373)
(94 230 597)
(10 098 751)
(279 464 589)
(8 368 853)
(194 333 396)

(2 363 343 632)(2 288 443 470)

Surplus for the year

135 155 977

45 277 079

12
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

Share capital

Accumulated
surplus

1 000 43 001 808
-

(12 643 915)

(12 643 915)

Balance at 01 July 2017 as restated
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

1 000 43 001 808

(55 533 250)

(12 530 442)

-

Balance at 01 July 2018
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year
Balance at 30 June 2019

13
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113 473

-

-

45 277 079

45 277 079

-

-

45 277 079

45 277 079

(10 256 171)

32 746 637

1 000 43 001 808

Total changes

(42 889 335)

Total equity

Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments

Total changes

142

Owners
Contribution

-

-

135 155 977

135 155 977

-

-

135 155 977

135 155 977

1 000 43 001 808

124 899 806

167 902 614
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Cash Flow Statement
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2019

2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Sale of goods and services
Grants
Interest income
Other revenue
City cleaning levy

1 169 012 343 1 038 386 844
553 932 183 621 834 705
47 981 249
34 692 969
3 483 680
2 065 288
259 983 813 234 925 163
2 034 393 268 1 931 904 969

Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers
Finance costs

(1 114 164 480) (962 598 311)
(831 827 749) (867 623 883)
(60 572 000) (57 809 006)
(2 006 564 229)(1 888 031 200)
27

27 829 039

43 873 769

9
9

(35 962 312)
15 296 223
37 117 830
-

(60 109 661)
64 285 549

16 451 741

4 175 888

Finance lease Obligations
Post Retirement Benefits Paid

(44 296 811)
-

(41 774 593)
(6 260 760)

Net cash flows from financing activities

(44 296 811)

(48 035 353)

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
(Increase)/decrease in non current receivables
Loans to Shareholders
Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
8

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(16 031)
38 014

14 304
23 709

21 983

38 013
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final Budget Actual amounts Difference
on comparable between final
basis
budget and
actual

Figures in Rand

Reference

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Service charges
Other revenue
Interest received
Total revenue from exchange
transactions

1 539 894 000
6 375 000
24 942 000

83 332 000 1 623 226 000 1 706 904 344
3 840 000
(2 535 000)
3 483 680
27 457 000
2 515 000
60 241 269

1 571 211 000

83 312 000 1 654 523 000 1 770 629 293

83 678 344
(356 320)
32 784 269

A
B
C

116 106 293

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Government grants & subsidies
Levies

626 701 000
137 619 000

(74 875 000) 551 826 000
29 252 000 166 871 000

553 932 183
173 938 133

2 106 183
7 067 133

Total revenue from nonexchange transactions

764 320 000

(45 623 000) 718 697 000

727 870 316

9 173 316

37 689 000 2 373 220 000 2 498 499 609

125 279 609

Total revenue

2 335 531 000

Expenditure
Personnel
(1 224 554 000)
Fleet
(518 827 000)
Depreciation and amortisation
(111 093 000)
Finance costs
(93 197 000)
Lease rentals on operating lease (10 988 000)
Allowance for doubtful debts
(93 198 000)
Loss on sale of assets
Loss on sale of investment in
associate
General Expenses
(283 674 000)
Total expenditure

(2 335 531 000)

19 726 000 (1 204 828 000)(1 118 897 103) 85 930 897
(28 803 000) (547 630 000) (569 420 695) (21 790 695)
1 765 208
9 344 000 (101 749 000) (99 983 792)
(8 167 872)
2 196 000 (91 001 000) (99 168 872)
1 116 107
- (10 988 000)
(9 871 893)
(30 000 000) (123 198 000) (235 336 033) (112 138 033)
(5 250 523)
(5 250 523)
(911 349)
(911 349)

F
G
H
I
J
K
L
M

(10 152 000) (293 826 000) (224 503 372)

69 322 628

N

(37 689 000)(2 373 220 000)(2 363 343 632)

9 876 368

Surplus before taxation

-

-

-

135 155 977

135 155 977

Actual Amount on Comparable
Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement

-

-

-

135 155 977

135 155 977
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Figures in Rand

Final Budget Actual amounts Difference
on comparable between final
basis
budget and
actual

Reference

The difference between the approved budget and the final budget are a consequence of reallocations within the budget as well
as additional funding from the parent Municipality.The approved budget is for Pikiitup and no other entities are included.

A. Service charges- Increased due to the implementation of the general valuation roll and tariff increase of 6%
effective from 01 July 2018. The service charge tariff is linked to property values.
B. Other Revenue- This revenue stream fluctuate month to month and are ad hoc in nature.
C. Interest received as per note 40 of the financial statements comprises of:
-Interest charged to outstanding debtors - the amount received is over budget due the increase in the debtor's
book.
-Interest received on the sweeping account - The amount received is over budget as the sweeping account balance
during the year were higher than anticipated.
D. Government grants and subsidies are in line with budget and relate to the service fee received from the City for
non -billable services as well as EPWP grant. The R74.9m decrease in funding between the approved and adjusted
budgets is a result of the City-wide budget cuts mandated as part of the budget revision process.
E. City cleaning levies - The city cleaning levy is over budget due to the impementation of the new general valuation
roll and tariff increase effective 01 July 2018. City cleaning levy tariff is linked to property values.
F. Personnel cost is under the budget due to the saving that was as a results of high vacancies experienced during
the year.
G. Fleet expense- The expenditure exceeded the budget as a result of the lack of reliable City owned fleet. The
majority of which is well beyond its economic lifespan.
H. Depreciation cost is under budget due to lower than anticipated capital expenditure during the year and the
scrapping of some of the assets during the year.
I. Finance costs - The over expenditure of 7.1% mainly relates to the interest portion of landfill rehabilitation provision .
The provision amount increased from prior year amount .
J. Lease costs for the rental of buildings and printing machines are within budget for the financial year.
K. The negative variance on allowance for doubtful debts relates to lower debt collection rate from the City. The
debtor's balance continue to increase year on year resulting in increase in bad debt.
L. Loss on assets scrapped -no amount was budgeted.
M. Loss on disposal of investement in associate- no amount was budgeted.
N. General expenes was lower than budget as a result of some of the planned operating activities e.g. education
awareness campaigns, acqusition of 240L bins, planned internal audit projects that were not perfomed during the
year. This is as a result of high vacancy rate experienced through out the year.
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Accounting Policies
1.

Presentation of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal
Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South
African Rand.
A summary of the significant accounting policies, as adopted by the entity which have been consistently applied in the
preparation of these financial statements, are disclosed below.

1.1 Going concern assumption
These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as
a going concern for at least the next 12 months.
1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be material to the financial statements. Significant judgements include:
Impairment testing
The company reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows
are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have
occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows
used to determine the value in use tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time.
Provisions
Provisions are raised based on the information available. Additional disclosure of these provisions are included in note
18 - Provisions.
Taxation
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
The entity recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of
deferred income tax assets requires the entity to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable
income. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of
existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from
estimates, the ability of the entity to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the end of the reporting period
could be impacted.
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1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of assets
The entity's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for the items of
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on industry norm. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives.
Post retirement benefits
The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include
the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement obligations.
Effective interest rate
The Company used the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality Treasury borrowing rate as a point of
departure and basis for discounting financial instruments.
Allowance for doubtful debts
The company assesses its trade receivables / held to maturity investments and/or loans and receivables for
impairment at each reporting date. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of
Financial Performance, the company makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
The provision for impairment is measured as the difference between the assets' carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition
Landfill site provision
The company on an annual basis determines the best estimate of the environment obligligation to rehabilitate the
various landfill sites upon closure.
1.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be
used during more than one period.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity;
and

the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary
assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value
(the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the
asset(s) given up.
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
18
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1.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is
also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and
where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of
inventories.
Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Any increase or decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of the estimation of the restoration costs, is
credited or debited directly to landfill rehabilitation provision for landfill sites that are still in use. For closed landifill
sites the increase or decrease is credited or debited to the surplus.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their
estimated residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item

Depreciation
method

Land
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Landfill Site

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

Signage
Containers

Straight line
Straight line

Useful life
Infinite
10-20
6-10
15
3-6
6-10
6-10
Determined
annually based on
the
available
space
15
15

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each
reporting date. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in
accounting estimate.
Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate
unless expectations differ from the previous estimate.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount
of another asset.
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further
economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or
deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the
item.
19
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1.4 Intangible assets
An asset is identifiable if it either:

is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed,
rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability,
regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or

arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.
An intangible asset is recognised when:

it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the entity; and

the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist
over the useful life of the asset.
Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is
measured at its fair value as at that date.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is
incurred.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential.
Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a
straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an
indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying
amount is amortised over its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not
recognised as intangible assets.
Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item
Computer software, other

Useful life
15 years

1.5 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current asset held for sale was carried on equity basis and operating gains and losses was recognised through
surplus and deficit.
1.6 Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
The entity classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not
determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not
determinable, which are measured at cost.
For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included in the
initial measurement of the instrument.
Fair value determination
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the entity establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entityspecific inputs.
Impairment of financial assets
At each end of the reporting period the entity assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through
surplus or deficit, to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
has been impaired.
For amounts due to the entity, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.
Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.
Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit except for equity investments classified as
available-for-sale.
Impairment losses are also not subsequently reversed for available-for-sale equity investments which are held at cost
because fair value was not determinable.
Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in
surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the
relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating
expenses.
Loans to (from) economic entities
These include loans to and from controlling entities, fellow controlled entities, controlled entities, joint ventures and
associates and are recognised initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs.
On loans receivable an impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when there is objective evidence that it is
impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the investment’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the investment’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Loans to shareholders, directors, managers and employees
These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
Receivables from exchange transactions
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at cost or fair value, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts
are recognised in surplus or deficit when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the deficit is
recognised in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against operating expenses in surplus or deficit.
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year-end. Bad debts are
written off during the year in which they are identified. Amounts that are receivable within 12 months from the reporting
date are classified as current.
Payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables are initially measured at cost or fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.
These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value. Cash and cash equivalents are classified as loans and
receivable financial instruments.
Bank overdraft and borrowings
Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the entity’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs.
Other financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method. Bank overdraft and borrowings are classified as loans and payables.
Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utilised. Finance charges on bank overdrafts are expensed as
incurred.
Derivatives
Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised in surplus or deficit as they arise.
Derivatives are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit - held for trading.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of contractual agreements entered into. Trade and other
payables are stated at their nominal value. Equity instruments are recorded at the amount received, net of direct issue
costs.
Gains and losses
A gain or loss arising from a change in a financial asset or financial liability is recognised as follows:

A gain or loss on a financial asset or financial liability classified as at fair value through surplus or deficit is
recognised in surplus or deficit;

For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or
deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation
process.
Derecognition
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

the entity retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

the entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Where the entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the entity’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the entity could be required to repay. Where continuing involvement takes the form of a
written and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the
extent of the entity’s continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the entity may repurchase,
except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset
measured at fair value, the extent of the entity’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the
transferred asset and the option exercise price.
Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in surplus or deficit.
Offsetting Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when and
only when, the entity has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liabilty simultaneously
1.7 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
In the event that tax is payable it is based on taxable surplus for the year. Taxable surplus differs from surplus as
reported in the statement of financial performance because it excludes income and expenses that are taxable or tax
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or tax deductible.
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in
respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to
(recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction,
affects neither accounting surplus nor taxable profit (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable surplus will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax
asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time
of the transaction, affects neither accounting surplus nor taxable profit (tax loss).
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Tax expenses
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1.7 Tax (continued)
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in surplus or deficit for the
period, except to the extent that the tax arises from:

a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to net assets; or

a business combination.
Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to net assets if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged, in the same or a different period, to net assets.
1.8 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A
lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership.
When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element
separately.
Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in
the lease.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on
the remaining balance of the liability.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease
asset or liability.
1.9 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction,
then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;

distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or

consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and
segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.
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1.9 Inventories (continued)
The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all
inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods
are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable
value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
1.10 Impairment of cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates
a commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting
any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a
commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets.
Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and
income tax expense.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use.
Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.
Criteria developed by the entity to distinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-generating assets are as follow:
1.11 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates
a commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting
any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a
commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets.
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1.11 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)
Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and
income tax expense.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use.
Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.
1.12 Share capital / contributed capital
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into.
Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
1.13 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the
period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that
increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.
Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.
Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined
contribution plans where the entity’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan.
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
The company’s contributions to the defined contribution plans are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance
in the financial year to which they relate.
The company’s has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
Defined benefit plans
For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected credit method.
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1.13 Employee benefits (continued)
Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan.
Consideration is given to any event that could impact the funds up to end of the reporting period where the interim
valuation is performed at an earlier date.
Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and are otherwise
amortised on a straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested.
To the extent that, at the beginning of the financial period, any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds
ten percent of the greater of the present value of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets
(the corridor), that portion is recognised in surplus or deficit over the expected average remaining service lives of
participating employees. Actuarial gains or losses within the corridor are not recognised.
Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan is recognised when the entity is
demonstrably committed to curtailment or settlement.
When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value.
In all other respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a
defined benefit plan is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.
The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs, and reduces
by the fair value of plan assets.
Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs, plus the present value of available
refunds and reduction in future contributions to the plan.
The majority of the company employees are members of various defined benefit plans, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administrated funds. These retirement funds are generally funded by payments from employees, the
company and the The City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality.
For defined benefit plans, the accounting costs are assessed and charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.
The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using interest rates of government
securities that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.
Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses, plus the present value of available refunds and reduction in
future contributions to the plan.
Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance as the cost occur.
Other post retirement obligations
The entity provides post-retirement health care benefits, housing subsidies and gratuities upon retirement to some
retirees.
The entitlement to post-retirement health care benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement
age and the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment. Independent qualified actuaries carry out valuations of these obligations. The entity also
provides a gratuity and housing subsidy on retirement to certain employees. An annual charge to income is made to
cover both these liabilities.
1.14 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:

the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required
to settle the obligation; and

a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
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1.14 Provisions and contingencies (continued)
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the
entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are
reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will
be required, to settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time.
This increase is recognised as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus.
Actual costing figures were used in determining the provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites. Landfill areas are
rehabilitated over years and in accordance with the operational plans . The areas will stay the same in size for a
number of years.
Provision is made for estimated cost to be incurred on the long term enviromental obligations, comprising expenditure
on pollution control and closure over the estimated life of the landfill.
The increase in the restoration provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest in the income statements.
The cost of ongoing programmes to prevent, control pollution and rehabilitate the enviroment is recognised as an
expense when incurred.
Provision are measured at the director' best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 29.
Decommissioning, restoration and similar liability
Changes in the measurement of an existing decommissioning, restoration and similar liability that result from changes
in the estimated timing or amount of the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential
required to settle the obligation, or a change in the discount rate, is accounted for as follows:
If the related asset is measured using the cost model:

changes in the liability is added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in the current period.

the amount deducted from the cost of the asset does not exceed its carrying amount. If a decrease in the liability
exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

if the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the entity consider whether this is an indication
that the new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. If there is such an indication, the entity
test the asset for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount or recoverable service amount, and account
for any impairment loss, in accordance with the accounting policy on impairment of assets as described in
accounting policy 1.10 and 1.11.
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1.14 Provisions and contingencies (continued)
The adjusted depreciable amount of the asset is depreciated over its useful life. Therefore, once the related asset has
reached the end of its useful life, all subsequent changes in the liability is recognised in surplus or deficit as they
occur.
The periodic unwinding of the discount is recognised in surplus or deficit as a finance cost as it occurs.
1.15 Commitments
Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result
in the outflow of cash.
Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.
Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the
financial statements, if both the following criteria are met:

Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer
or building maintenance services); and

Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.
1.16 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or secrvice potential during the reporting period when those inflows
result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished,
and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other
party in exchange.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume
rebates.
Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the
reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are
satisfied:

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity;

the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised
on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better
represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition
of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage
of completion is determined by services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.
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1.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.
Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and
can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.
Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of whether or not
they pay taxes.
Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a court or other
law enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations.
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an
entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives
value to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be
used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if
not deployed as specified.
The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be subject to
taxation.
Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance with laws and
or regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed
for breaches of the law.
Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than
taxes.
Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to
the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.
As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a nonexchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and
recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
entity.
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent
to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to
recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any,
recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is
satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.
1.18 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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1.18 Borrowing costs (continued)
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.19 Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current
year.
1.20 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is applicable to the municipality and not to the municipal entities. Once the expenditure
exceed the budgeted amount per vote, it is classified as unauthorised expenditure at the municipality. The exceeding
of the budgeted amount per vote at the entity is accounted for as irregular expenditure.
1.21 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care
been exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature
of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial
performance.
1.22 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in
contravention of the economic entity’s supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as
expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as
revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.
1.23 Accumulated Surplus
Retained earnings or accumulated surplus/(deficit) being the cumulative effect of differences between revenue and
expenditure as per the statement of financial performance.
1.24 Budget information
Entity are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent),
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.
General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used
in accordance with the legally adopted budget.
The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance
outcome objectives.
The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2018/07/01 to 2019/06/30.
The financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the
budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts.
1.25 Related parties
The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South
African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in
South Africa, only entities within the local sphere of government are considered to be related parties.
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1.25 Transitional provisions (continued)
Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including
those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to
perform such functions.
Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.
1.26 Events after reporting date
Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date
and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting
date); and

those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting
date).
The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting
date once the event occurred.
The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate
cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
1.27 Expenses
Expenses are decreases in economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period in the form of outflows or
consumption of assets or incurrences of liabilities that result in decreases in net assets, other than those relating to
distributions to owners.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognised when incurred, usually when goods are received or
services are consumed. This may not be when the goods or services are actually paid for.
The point at which an expense is recognised is dependent on the nature of the transaction or other event that gives
rise to the expense.
The major components of the expenses are fleet and general expenses.
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Figures in Rand
2.

2019

2018

Inventories
Equipment stock
Bin Liners
Protective clothing
Consumable stock
240L Bins

83 752
242 725
1 134 070
480 073
1 796 403

180 049
332 985
45 136
501 414
-

3 737 023

1 059 584

17 892 259
8 785 212
5 006 172
20 269 087
47 916

9 263 783
9 369 954
812 600
15 058 069
1 227 643

52 000 646

35 732 049

2.1 Inventory recognised as expense
Protective clothing
240L bins
Equipment stock
Bin liners
Consumable stock

3.

Loans from shareholder
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality - Capex Loans (Non-Current
Liabilities)

(599 246 166) (524 359 657)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of loan mentioned above. The
entity has not provided any collateral as security.
Capex Loans
Loans at beginning of the year
Receipts
Interest Accrued
Repayments

(524 359 657) (464 294 819)
(74 886 509) (60 064 838)
(55 114 503) (48 147 824)
55 114 503
48 147 824
(599 246 166) (524 359 657)

The terms of payments between 9% to 14% interest rate per annum and the payment terms ranging between 30 and 40
quarterly instalments.These loans relates to capital expenditure incurred and in line with the actual annual capital
expenditure.
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Figures in Rand
4.

2019

2018

Receivables from non-exchange transactions
City cleaning levy
Debt Impairment

96 932 349 182 978 029
(70 579 884) (134 247 849)
26 352 465

48 730 180

4 936 390
2 703 858
2 650 874
7 500 415
79 140 813

9 318 363
5 104 040
5 004 022
14 158 444
149 393 160

This city cleaning levy is charged to non-residential and agricultural properties.

City Cleaning Levy
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

96 932 350 182 978 029
(70 579 884) (134 247 849)

Less: Allowance for impairment

26 352 466

48 730 180

City Cleaning Levy - Past due and impaired
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

(2 161 177)
(4 110 709)
(1 372 148)
(2 609 922)
(1 422 446)
(2 705 590)
(4 241 178)
(8 067 015)
(61 382 935) (116 754 613)
(70 579 884) (134 247 849)

City Cleaning Levy - past due and not impaired
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

5.

5 207 654
2 494 118
2 298 432
6 091 428
32 638 547

26 352 467

48 730 179

Receivables from exchange transactions
Gross balances
Refuse

2 655 760 250 2 226 122 640

Less: Allowance for impairment
Refuse

(1 933 753 283)(1 629 792 068)

Net balance
Refuse

722 006 967

Receivable from exchange transaction
35

164

2 775 213
1 331 710
1 228 428
3 259 238
17 757 878

PIKITUP INTEGRATED REPORT 2018/19

596 330 572

Pikitup Johannesburg SOC Limited
(Registration number 2000/029899/07)
Trading as Pikitup
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand
5.

Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61-90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

2019

2018

76 364 951
35 392 991
34 370 747
74 506 133
501 372 145

155 295 948
67 983 965
3 411 505
30 033 609
339 605 545

722 006 967

596 330 572

City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality (CJMM) invoices clients for electricity, water, refuse and rates. Revenue
and corresponding debtor is allocated to each municipal entity based on the actual amounts billed.
Management allocates the credit balance applicable to each entity using the billing trend as a basis of allocation. The
basis of allocation was determined taking into account that the credit balance are typically utilised through consumption of
services that will be provided by the City in the future. Management have applied judgement in determining the allocation
basis, this is consistent with prior financial years.

36

PIKITUP INTEGRATED REPORT 2018/19

165

Pikitup Johannesburg SOC Limited
(Registration number 2000/029899/07)
Trading as Pikitup
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand
5.

2019

2018

Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)
Summary of debtors by customer classification
Consumers
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

89 177 349 262 265 274
48 845 999
84 118 048
47 888 820
4 692 117
135 497 234
44 199 085
1 429 702 350 1 254 047 168
1 751 111 752 1 649 321 692
(1 314 528 232)(1 265 778 202)

Less: Allowance for impairment

436 583 520
Consumers - Past due and impaired
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

383 543 490

(40 251 244) (136 897 425)
(25 555 834) (16 897 524)
(26 492 602)
(2 712 512)
(78 990 607) (21 543 621)
(1 143 237 945)(1 087 727 120)
(1 314 528 232)(1 265 778 202)

Consumers - Past due and not impaired
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

Industrial/ commercial
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61-90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

48 926 105
23 290 165
21 396 218
56 506 627
286 464 405

125 367 849
67 220 524
1 979 605
22 655 464
166 320 048

436 583 520

383 543 490

41 350 039
22 649 070
22 205 242
62 827 792
662 928 974

53 170 092
13 483 264
6 328 773
15 920 543
456 331 910

811 961 117 545 234 582
(619 225 051) (364 013 867)

Less: Allowance for impairment

192 736 066
Industrial/ commercial - Past due and impaired
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

181 220 715

(18 960 854) (23 456 824)
(12 038 397) (12 972 855)
(12 479 673)
(4 900 215)
(37 209 519)
(8 774 237)
(538 536 608) (313 909 736)
(619 225 051) (364 013 867)

Industrial/ commercial - Past due and not impaired
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days

22 389 185
10 610 673
9 725 568
25 618 274
37
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Figures in Rand
5.

Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)
>121 days

National and provincial government
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

National and provincial government - Past due and not impaired
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

Total
Current (0 -30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

2019

2018

124 392 366

142 422 175

192 736 066

181 220 716

4 720 210
2 585 448
2 534 784
7 171 949
75 674 990

540 456
868 273
3 342
457 715
29 696 579

92 687 381

31 566 365

4 720 210
2 585 448
2 534 784
7 171 949
75 674 990

540 456
868 273
3 342
457 715
29 696 579

92 687 381

31 566 365

135 247 598 315 975 822
74 080 517
98 469 585
72 628 846
11 024 232
205 496 975
60 577 343
2 168 306 314 1 740 075 658
2 655 760 250 2 226 122 640
(1 933 753 283)(1 629 792 068)

Less: Allowance for impairment

722 006 967
Less: Provision for debt impairment
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

596 330 572

(59 212 098) (160 354 249)
(37 594 231) (29 870 379)
(38 972 275)
(7 612 727)
(1 797 974 679)(1 431 954 713)
(1 933 753 283)(1 629 792 068)

Total debtor past due but not impaired
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
>121 days

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment
Balance at beginning of the year
Contributions to allowance

76 035 500
36 486 286
33 656 570
89 296 850
486 531 761

155 621 572
68 599 306
3 411 505
30 259 486
338 438 803

722 006 967

596 330 672

(1 629 792 068)(1 495 996 493)
(303 961 215) (133 795 575)
(1 933 753 283)(1 629 792 068)
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Figures in Rand
6.

2019

2018

Debt impairment
Contributions to debt impairment provision
Bad debts reversal

240 293 250 279 464 589
(4 957 217)
235 336 033

7.

279 464 589

Inter-company receivables - COJ
The sweeping account represent cash that is swept on a daily basis as per the sweeping arrangement with City of
Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality.
Other receivables
Sweeping account

8.

2019
92 844 751
215 786 902

2018
5 067 979
195 309 284

308 631 653

200 377 263

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company has a sweeping arrangement with the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality whereby all
cash is swept on a daily basis to the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality's bank account. Petty cash is
reflected as being on hand. The cash owed to the company by the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality
is reflected as an amount due from the shareholder.
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand

21 984

38 014

-

-

-

The entity had the following bank accounts
`

Account number /
description
Standard Bank - Current
account - 000190586
Standard Bank - Current
account - 000190594
Standard Bank - Current
account - 000190535

Bank statement balances
30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
1
1
1

Total

1

1

1

-

-

-

1

1

1

-

-

-

3

3

3

-

-

-
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9.

Property, plant and equipment
2019
Cost

Land
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Landfill sites
Containers
Cellphones
Signage
Total

7 162 399
436 536 580
34 542 547
16 096 982
182 708 807
20 589 829
9 337 832
507 079 111
135 002 424
3 930 030

2018

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment
7 162 399
(163 917 410) 272 619 170
(27 680 736)
6 861 811
(7 859 886)
8 237 096
(150 680 598) 32 028 209
(18 454 644)
2 135 185
(2 281 116)
7 056 716
(279 841 670) 227 237 441
(104 636 654) 30 365 770
(2 753 065)
1 176 965

Cost

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

7 162 399
405 448 278
34 542 711
16 470 672
252 032 654
21 260 298
13 796 838
419 938 543
156 819 461
547 158
5 274 966

7 162 399
(154 084 128) 251 364 150
(20 608 166) 13 934 545
(7 306 425)
9 164 247
(178 619 104) 73 413 550
(18 690 730)
2 569 568
(6 425 894)
7 370 944
(258 262 187) 161 676 356
(126 303 243) 30 516 218
(547 158)
(3 855 339)
1 419 627

1 352 986 541 (758 105 779) 594 880 762 1 333 293 978 (774 702 374) 558 591 604

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019

Land
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Landfill sites
Containers
Signage

Opening
balance
7 162 399
251 364 150
13 934 545
9 164 247
73 413 550
2 569 568
7 370 944
161 676 356
30 516 218
1 419 627
558 591 604

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

48 431 620
848 291
87 140 568
4 989 259
-

(1 796 939)
(164)
(44 206)
(404 486)
(28)
(22 522)
(2 929 788)
(19)

7 162 399
(25 379 661) 272 619 170
(7 072 570)
6 861 811
(882 945)
8 237 096
(40 980 855) 32 028 209
(434 355)
2 135 185
(1 139 997)
7 056 716
(21 579 483) 227 237 441
(2 209 919) 30 365 770
(242 643)
1 176 965

141 409 738

(5 198 152)

(99 922 428) 594 880 762

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018

Land
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Landfill sites
Containers
Cellphones
Signage

Opening
balance
3 972 399
234 303 885
27 325 274
13 775 874
115 258 899
2 761 965
7 307 255
117 837 314
35 412 154
78
1 972 573
559 927 670

Additions
3 190 000
37 622 644
1 628 640
1 242
44 812
250 602
2 486 172
58 496 528
5 042 157
105 762
891 797
797
108

Disposals
(8 368 853)
-

Depreciation

Total

7 162 399
(20 562 379) 251 364 150
(15 019 369) 13 934 545
(4 612 869)
9 164 247
(41 890 161) 73 413 550
(442 999)
2 569 568
(2 422 483)
7 370 944
(14 657 486) 161 676 356
(1 569 240) 30 516 218
(78)
(552 946)
1 419 627

(8 368 853) (101 730 010) 558 591 604

Pledged as security
40
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9.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The following leased assets are included in Property, Plant and Equipment listed above
2019
Cost
Vehicles

2018

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

171 904 803 (150 680 598)

21 224 205

Cost

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

241 228 650 (178 619 104)

62 609 546

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)
Motor vehicles

(62 691 275)

(21 350 746)

Details of properties
Free hold land and buildings is carried at historical cost. The title deeds are registered in the name of the City of
Johannesburg. A process has been ongoing to transfer ownership into the name of the entity.
Property, plant and equipment in the process of being constructed or developed
Cumulative expenditure recognised in the carrying value of property, plant
and equipment
Buildings
Infrastructure

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment that is taking a significantly
longer period of time to complete than expected
Refurbishments of various depots, landfills and garden sites still underway
The constructions are still underway at the landfil

63 861 062
18 606 612

29 259 346
9 411 645

82 467 674

38 670 991

5 038 484

5 038 485

5 229 946

5 229 945

10 268 430

10 268 430

All assets that were identifies as completed in the current financial year were transferred from work-in-progress.
Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2019
Included within
Infrastructure
38 670 991
44 332 560
(535 879)

Opening balance
Additions/capital expenditure
Transferred to completed items

82 467 672

41
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9.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2018
Included within
Infrastructure
78 020 688
60 064 838
(8 368 853)
(91 045 682)

Opening balance
Additions/capital expenditure
Write off
Transferred to completed items

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment
included in Statement of Financial Performance
Contracted services
General expenses

Total
78 020 688
60 064 838
(8 368 853)
(91 045 682)

38 670 991

38 670 991

83 084 485
3 272 753

96 481 046
6 037 132

86 357 238

102 518 178

The amount relates to amongst others, electrical repairs, plumbing and grass cutting during the year.
10. Intangible assets
2019
Cost

Computer software, other

19 032 869

2018

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment
(18 790 321)

242 548

Cost

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

19 032 869

(18 728 955)

303 914
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10. Intangible assets (continued)
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2019

Computer software, other

Opening
Amortisation
balance
303 914
(61 366)

Total

Opening
Amortisation
balance
365 277
(61 363)

Total

242 548

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018

Computer software

303 914

No intangible asset was pledged as security in the current financial period.
There are no additions and disposals of intangible asset in the current financial period.
11. Non-current assets held for sale
Name of entity
Friedshelf 128 (Pty) Ltd

Listed /
Unlisted

% holding % holding
Carrying
Carrying
2019
2018
amount 2019 amount 2018
- % 50,00 %
16 240 072

The sale on investment in associate was disposed of during the 2019 Financial year .
Movements in carrying value
Opening balance
Disposal of investment in associate
Cost of acquisition
Loss on disposal of investment

16 240 072
(15 296 223)
(32 500)
(911 349)

16 240 072
-

-

16 240 072

-

36 886 910
(4 377 174)
1 228 477
(87 877)

Summary of controlled entity's interest in associate
Total assets
Total liabilities
Revenue
Surplus (deficit)

The board took a decision to dispose of the shareholding in Friedshelf (128) Pty (Ltd) during 18/19 financial year which
led to the reclassification of the Investment in associate into non-current assets held for sale. The directors of Friedshelf
(128) Pty (Ltd) resolved to discontinue the activities of the entity which led to the sale of its main asset i.e building. As at
30 June 2019, the winding down of activities were not yet concluded however 97% of the distributable reserve was
distributed to the shareholders. Pikitup's share of the distributable reserve amount to R15 296 223. The remaining 3% has
been retained to cover any unknown winding down expenses that may arise. The Pikitup's share of R15 296 223 was
accounted for against the investment of R16 240 072 which led to a loss on sale of non-current asset held for sale. This
loss is accounted for in the statement of financial perfomance .
12. Inter-company- Receivables
These amounts relates to take on balances from the CoJ.These balances are managed by City.
2019
2018
1 185 644 969 1 222 762 799

Intercompany- Receivables
43
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13. Financial assets by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:
2019
Total
308 631 654
1 185 644 969
26 352 462
722 006 967
21 984

Other receivables - Sweeping
Intercompany - Receivables
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalent

2 242 658 036
2018
Total
200 377 263
1 222 762 799
16 240 072
48 730 180
596 330 572
38 014

Other Receivables - Sweeping
Intercompany - Receivables
Non current assets held for sale
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalent

2 084 478 900
14. Finance lease obligation
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

32 737 745
-

49 754 208
32 737 745

less: future finance charges

32 737 745
(1 542 081)

82 491 953
(6 999 579)

Present value of minimum lease payments

31 195 664

75 492 374

Present value of minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

31 195 663
-

44 296 711
31 195 663

31 195 663

75 492 374

31 195 663
-

44 296 811
31 195 563

31 195 663

75 492 374

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

The entity leases motor vehicles under a finance lease arrangement with the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan
Municipality .
The lease terms vary between 1-5 years and the interest rate was 10% (2018: 10%).
The depreciation and finance charges relating to the leased assets is included as part of the total depreciation and
finance charges respectively.
There is a a prior year adjustment of R1 153 483 on the finance lease balance. The amount consist of an adjustment on
the minimum lease payments and future finance charges of R407 987 and R745 496 respectively.
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Figures in Rand

2019

2018

368 433 737
83 552 321
28 910 521
33 012 137
226 523 621

455 239 830
81 892 608
23 739 326
46 531 799
168 685 102

740 432 337

776 088 665

15. Payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables
Accrued leave pay
13th Cheque liability
Sundry payables
SARS Liability- VAT

Sundry creditors include amongst others supplier's retention on capital projects and unclaimed credits relating to debtors.
16. Inter-company Liabilities - Salaries
This relates to amounts owed to CoJ for Pikitup's employee cost. CoJ pays Pikitup employees and the entity refunds the
City for this cost.
2019
620 439 849

Intercompany -salaries
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Figures in Rand

2019

2018

17. Employee benefit obligations
Defined benefit plan
Post Retirement Medical Aid Plan
Post Retirement Gratuity Plan

3 166 000
68 302 000

3 069 000
76 684 932

71 468 000

79 753 932

Post retirement medical aid plan
Pikitup Johannesburg (SOC ) Limited has obligations to subsidies medical aid contribution in respect of certain qualifying
staff and pensioners and their surviving spouses. Only pensioners and employees who were aged 50 or older and were
members of Lamaf (previously called Jomed) and Munimed medical schemes on 01 July 2003.
The above Liability is unfunded. However,The City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality has undertaken to cover
such portion of the liability for the staff of Pikitup Johannesburg (SOC) Limited who are entitled to benefits that relate to
their service with Pikitup Johannesburg ( SOC) Limited since the company's establishment. This amount was determined
at 01 July 2003 and has been crystalised in the form of a notional loan account which earned interest of R914 849
(2018: R 881 039) and against which the company may claim benefit payments made.This loan does not constitute
an asset and in terms of GRAP 25 cannot be offset against the liability.
The City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality operates 6 accredited medical aid schemes,namely Global Health
,Hosmed, Munimed, Bonitas, Samwumed and LA Health. Pensioners continue on the option they belong to on the day of
their retirement
Amounts recognised in the Statement of financial position as a defined benefit obligation shall be the net total of the
following amounts, the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date,minus the fair value at the
reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly plus any liability that may arise
as a result of a minimum funding requirement.
This amount may be negative (asset) and the entity shall measure the resulting asset at the lower of the amount
determined above and the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan
The fair value of plan assets includes
Movements for the year
Opening balance
Interest cost
Acturial (gains) losses
Benefits paid

Net expense recognised in Statement of Financial Perfomance
Interest
Actuarial (gains) losses
Benefits paid

Notional loan account
Opening balance
Interest
Amount paid by COJ

3 069 000
265 000
150 000
(318 000)

4 619 373
(1 550 373)
-

3 166 000

3 069 000

265 000
150 000
(318 000)

411 332
(1 700 945)
-

97 000

(1 289 613)

14 009 929
914 849
(318 000)

13 389 650
881 039
(260 760)

14 606 778

14 009 929
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2019

2018

17. Employee benefit obligations (continued)
The entity has recognised acturial gains and losses in the surplus or deficit in the period they occur. The past service cost
if any are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which the plan is amended.
The
cost of the benefits is dependent on the increase in salaries and contributions to the medical aid scheme before and after
retirement. The assumptions about the medical costs takes account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical
services, resulting from both inflation and specific changes in medical costs.
Key assumption used on last valuation on 30 June 2019
Discount rate used

8.49%

`9.06%

Health care cost inflation rate

6.36%

7.30%

Salary inflation rate

6.36%

7.30%

Net discount rate -health care cost inflation

2.00%

1.64%

Post retirement gratuity plan
Pikitup Johannesburg (SOC) Limited provides gratuities on retirement or prior to death in respect of certain qualifying staff
members who had service with the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality when they were not members of one
of the retirement funds and who meet certain service requirements in terms of The City of Johannesburg Metropolitan
Municipality since the company's establishment.This amount was determined at 01 July 2003 and has been crystalised in
the form of a notional loan account which earned interest of R6 744 000
(2018: R6 880 064) and against which the
company may claim benefits payments made. This loan does not constitute a plan asset and in terms of GRAP 25 cannot
be offset against the liability.
The plan is post retirement gratuity benefit plan.
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position and statement of financial perfomance are shown below

Movement for the year
Opening balance
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Acturial (gains)/losses

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance
Interest
Actuarial (gains)/ losses
Benefits paid

Notional Loan
Opening Balance
Interest
Benefits paid

76 684 922
6 744 000
(4 449 330)
(10 677 670)

77 654 382
6 880 064
(6 000 000)
(1 849 514)

68 301 922

76 684 932

6 744 000
(10 677 670)
(4 449 330)

6 880 064
(1 849 514)
(6 000 000)

(8 383 000)

(969 450)

119 854 539 112 455 221
7 826 501
7 399 539
(4 449 330)
123 231 710

119 854 760

The entity does not pay any insurance premiums to fund a post-employment benefit plan and the entity does not have a
legal or constructive obligation to either pay the employee benefits directly when they fall due or pay further amounts if the
insurer does not pay all future employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior reporting periods.
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2019

2018

Discount rate used

8.49%

9.06%

Salary inflation rate

6.36%

7.30%

17. Employee benefit obligations (continued)
Key assumptions used on 30 June 2019

Net discount rate - salary inflation

2.00%

Average retirement age

63

1.64%
63

Sensitivity Analysis
In order to illustrate the sensitivity of our results to changes in certain key variables, we have recalculated the liabilities
using the following assumptions: • A 1% increase/decrease in the medical and salary inflation rate assumptions used, • A
20% increase/decrease in the assumed level of mortality. The effect of these assumptions are as follows
Mortality Rates
Deviations from the assumed level of mortality experience of the current employees and the continuation members will
have a large impact on the actual cost to the Municipality. If the actual rates of mortality turns out higher than the rates
assumed in the valuation basis, the cost to the Municipality in the form of subsidies will reduce and vice versa. We have
illustrated the effect of higher and lower mortality rates by increasing and decreasing the mortality rates by 20%. The
effect is as follows.
Mortality rates-Acrrued liability
Post-retirement medical aid
Retirement gratuities

-20 %
Valuation
+20 %
Mortality rate assumption Mortality rate
3 266 000
3 166 000
2 902 000
68 176 000
68 302 000
68 302 000
71 442 000

Service cost and Interest cost
Post-retirement medical aid
Retirement gratuities

Post-retirement medical aid
Retirement gratuities

Post-retirement medical aid
Retirement gratuities

5 936 000

5 931 000

-1 % Medical
Valuation +1 % Medical
/salary
assumption
/salary
inflation
inflation
3 007 000
3 166 000
3 109 000
63 780 000
68 302 000
73 257 000
66 787 000

Service cost and Interest cost

71 204 000

-20%
Valuation
+20%
Mortality rate Assumption Mortality rate
283 000
255 000
250 000
5 670 000
5 681 000
5 681 000
5 953 000

Medical and Salary inflation Accrued liability

71 468 000

71 468 000

76 366 000

-1 % Medical
Valuation +1 % Medical
/salary
assumption
/salary
inflation
inflation
259 000
255 000
269 000
5 297 000
5 681 000
6 101 000
5 556 000

Post Retirement Liability
Post retirement medical aid plan

5 936 000

6 370 000

3 166 000

3 060 000
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2019

17. Employee benefit obligations (continued)
Retirement gratuity

2018

68 302 000

76 685 000

71 468 000

79 745 000

66 370 776

54 110 757

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Carrying value
Fair value of plan assets
Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities

137 838 708 133 864 689
(71 467 932) (79 753 932)
66 370 776
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18. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2019

Performance bonus
Enviromental rehabilitation :
Closed landfill site
Enviromental rehabilitation :
Open landfill sites

Opening
Balance
10 993 027

Additions

Utilised during
Reversed
Change in
the year
during the year discount factor
6 885 890
(5 113 771)
(5 879 256)
-

176 650 369

-

459 965 558

66 573 834

647 608 954

73 459 724

(5 113 771)

(3 292 457)
(9 171 713)

Total
6 885 890

11 623 594

184 981 506

30 265 734

556 805 126

41 889 328

748 672 522

Reconciliation of provisions - 2018

Performance bonus
Enviromental rehabilitation :
Closed landfill site
Enviromental rehabilitation :
Open landfill sites

Opening
Balance
11 818 503

Additions

Utilised during
Reversed
Change in
the year
during the year discount factor
5 097 768
(5 923 244)
-

167 674 624

-

-

382 877 394

48 653 137

-

562 370 521

53 750 905

Non-current liabilities (Landfill rehabilitation)
Current liabilities

(5 923 244)

(3 476 891)
(3 476 891)

Total
10 993 027

12 452 636

176 650 369

28 435 027

459 965 558

40 887 663

647 608 954

741 786 632
6 885 890

636 615 927
10 993 027

748 672 522

647 608 954

On an annual basis,management has to determine the best estimate of the enviromental obligation to rehabilitate the
various landfill sites upon closure. During this process management placed reliance upon the final Landfill Airspace
Estimation Report as compiled by an independent consulting engineer for the technical data utilised in the provision and
lifespan estimates.
Key Assumptions used






The final side slopes for each landfills are 1:3;
The cover to waste ratio is 1:5 for each site;
The growth rates for each site are based on zero growth;
The final landfill footprint extends over the entire landfill property size (excluding infrastructure and a 20m buffer
zone between the site boundary and the toe of the landfill; and
The density of the waste is calculated using both the survey and weighbridge data.

Perfomance bonus provision
The provision for bonus relates to perfomance bonuses for employees to whom the perfomance contracts applies for the
period ended 30 June 2019. The provision is based on a mid point percentage of prior year's provision and actual
payment .The perfomance bonus will be paid in the next financial year .
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19. Financial liabilities by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:
2019
Total
599 246 166
620 439 849
513 908 716
31 195 663

Loans from shareholder
Intercompany Liability - Salaries
Payables from exchange transactions
Finance lease obligation

1 764 790 394
2018
Total
524 359 657
642 248 474
607 403 563
75 492 374

Loans from shareholder
Inercompany Liability - Salaries
Payables from exchange transactions
Finance lease obligation

1 849 504 068
20. Share capital
Authorised
1000 Ordinary Shares of R1 each

1 000

1 000

Issued
1000 Ordinary share of R1 each

1 000

1 000

21. Revenue
Service charges
Sundry revenue
Interest received - Sweeping
Grants & subsidies
Levies

1 706 904 344 1 502 847 933
3 483 680
2 065 288
60 241 269
34 692 970
553 932 183 621 834 705
173 938 133 171 641 491
2 498 499 609 2 333 082 387

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or
services are as follows:
Service charges
Sundry revenue
Interest received - investment

1 706 904 344 1 502 847 933
3 483 680
2 065 288
60 241 269
34 692 970
1 770 629 293 1 539 606 191

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is
as follows:
Transfer revenue
Grants and subsidies
City cleaning levy
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Figures in Rand

2019

2018

11 750 000
540 075 992
2 106 191

2 399 966
617 166 000
2 268 739

553 932 183

621 834 705

22. Grants and subsidies
EPWP Grant
Operating Grants from COJ
Skills and development grant

The grants received is from CoJ to fund operating activities with no conditions attached.
Conditional and Unconditional

23. Employee related costs
Basic salaries
Hostel charges
Provident fund contributions
Housing benefits and allowances
Overtime payments
Bonus
UIF
WCA
SDL
Leave pay provision charge
Other allowances
Bargaining council levies
Gratuities
Pension funds adjustment
Defined contribution plans
Acting allowances
Public holiday allowance
Car allowance
Casual services

765 953 579 652 211 319
5 489 072
5 645 972
1 887
2 185
1 596 571
1 592 451
84 825 613
75 818 473
48 261 616
47 528 001
7 912 091
6 795 747
7 267 148
8 037 105
9 095 626
8 004 264
24 477 670
16 568 732
5 221 661
4 872 276
548 597
401 338
5 028 303
7 141 501
(4 767 330)
(9 550 459)
112 807 655
97 213 862
1 358 032
884 748
22 760 819
16 963 107
21 058 493
22 167 660
4 574 517
1 118 897 103

966 872 799

99 922 426
61 366

101 730 010
61 363

99 983 792

101 791 373

24. Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

25. Finance costs
Interest on shareholders loan
Interest on post retirement benefits
Finance leases
Interest unwinding on rehabilitation of landfill
Net landfill rehabilitation adjustment and other interest reversals

55 114 503
5 457 498
41 889 329
(3 292 458)

48 147 824
(989 182)
9 661 182
40 887 664
(3 476 891)

99 168 872

94 230 597
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2019

2018

3 204 786
3 280 812

2 528 890
3 177 225

6 485 598

5 706 115

135 155 977

45 277 079

26. Auditors' remuneration
Internal
External

27. Cash generated from operations
Surplus
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on sale of assets and liabilities
Pension adjustments
Finance costs
Grants income
Debt impairment
Movements in retirement benefit-Acturial Interest
leave provision
Other non-cash items
Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions
Provision
Other Receivables-sweeping
Payables from exchange transactions
Loan
Intercompany liabilities- Salaries
Finance lease

99 983 792 101 791 373
6 161 872
8 368 853
(4 767 330)
(9 550 459)
99 168 872
94 230 597
235 336 033 279 464 589
(12 260 019)
24 477 670
16 568 732
7 616
68 914
(2 677 439)
4 297 327
(424 680 393) (540 065 243)
86 045 680
63 283 672
(4 107 137)
(825 476)
(108 254 391) (46 183 833)
(35 656 328) 129 823 939
- (60 064 838)
(21 808 625)
(1 990 447)
(44 296 811) (40 621 010)
27 829 039
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2019

2018

28. Commitments
Commitments in respect of capital expenditure:
Authorised and contracted for

Property, plant and equipment

151 035 966

49 562 800

Total capital commitments
Authorised and contracted for

151 035 966

49 562 800

151 035 966

49 562 800

9 178 963
1 624 328

8 593 537
10 803 292

10 803 291

19 396 829

Total commitments
Total commitments
Authorised capital expenditure

Operating leases – as lessee
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for Pikitup head office, Midrand Depot and printing
machines.
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2019

2018

29. Contingent Liability
The entity has the following contingent liabilities:
The plaintiff is claiming for damages for injuries allegedly sustained at or near Orange farm garden site. The plaintiff is
claiming compensation for pain suffered .The total amount claimed is R400 000(2018:400 000). The entity is defending
the matter. The pleadings in the matter are closed and the trial is anticipated late in 2019 or the beginning of 2020.
The plaintiff is claiming monies for services rendered which it is alledged Pikitup has not paid . The total amount claimed
is R333 790 (2018:333 790). The trial date has been applied for and it is expected that it will be set for the latter part of
2019 or early 2020.The likelihood of recovering legal costs should the entity succeed are remote.
The plaintiff is claiming that his former company contracted with the entity and alleges that the entity is in breach of the
contract by failing to pay for the equipment purchased by the plaintiff in fulfilment of the contract . The said company is
liquidated . The paintiff in this matter is not acting and therefore the matter has remained domant. The amount claimed is
R10 000 000 (2018:10 000 000). The likelihood of recovering costs should the entity succeed are remote.
The entity is reviewing the arbitration award in favour of an employee where CCMA ruled that the employee was unfairly
dismissed. The amount to be paid in terms of the arbitration award should the review fail is R2 838 333 (2018:2 838 333).
The matter was finalized with the ruling in favour of the employer. The employee has however lodged an appeal with the
Labour Appeals Court.The likelihood of recovering the costs from the applicants are remote.
The employee took the entity to SALGBC for unfair dismissal after termination of the employee's services. The amount to
be paid should the matter be ruled in favour of the employee is R2 824 452 (2018:2 824 452). The opposing papers have
been lodged and awaiting the employee to set the matter down.The likelihood of recovering the costs from the applicants
are remote.
The service provider sued the entity an amount of R327 750 (2018:0) for services rendered and not paid for. The
intention to defend was served and filed. The likelihood of the entity succeeding in defending the matter are high.
The aggregate amount for claims are as follows:
- Claims for damages R400 000
- Claims for unpaid services R661 540
- Breach of contract R10 000 000
-Labour related R5 662 785

55

184

PIKITUP INTEGRATED REPORT 2018/19

Pikitup Johannesburg SOC Limited
(Registration number 2000/029899/07)
Trading as Pikitup
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand
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30. Related parties
`

Relationships
Directors
Controlling entity
Other members of the group

Refer to directors' report note
The City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality
City of Joburg Property Company SOC Ltd
City Power Johannesburg SOC Ltd
Johannesburg City Parks NPC
Johannesburg Development Agency SOC Ltd
Johannesburg Metropolitan Bus Services SOC Ltd
Johannesburg Roads Agency SOC Ltd
The Johannesburg Tourism Company NPC
Johannesburg Water SOC Ltd
The Metropolitan Trading Company SOC Ltd
Roodepoort City Theatre NPC
Joburg Theatre SOC Ltd
The Johannesburg Fresh Produce Market SOC Ltd
The Johannesburg Zoo NPC
Johannesburg Social Housing Company SOC Ltd
Refer to note 11

Associates
Related party balances

Amounts included in trade and other payables regarding related parties
Johannesburg City Parks NPC
Loans accounts owing by related parties
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality

490 542

91 331

1 632 115 111 1 099 378 602

Loan account owing to related parties
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality- (included in Payables from
exchange transactions )
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality- Fleet Lease

1 219 686 015
67 330 595

883 163 456
42 988 879

31 195 663

74 338 891

1 318 212 273 1 000 491 226
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2019

2018

591 399 038
993 365
138 357
761 695
2 551 769
250 680
2 529 792
841 337
16 355 027

659 775 396
1 001 735
147 944
1 086 684
1 237 428
225 021
2 976 372
1 224 023
18 397 481

615 821 060

686 072 084

89 347 592
3 235
6 171 965
12 283 399
426 558
-

84 425 672
4 627 290
4 129 171
290 000
6 960 762
114 943
27 870

108 232 749

100 575 708

(13 608 931)

(11 758 219)

30. Related parties (continued)
Related party transactions
Income with related parties
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality
Johannesburg Social Housing Company SOC Ltd
Johannesburg Metropolitan Bus Services SOC Ltd
City Power Johannesburg SOC Ltd
Johannesburg Water SOC Ltd
Joburg Theatre SOC Ltd
Johannesburg City Parks NPC and Zoo
Johannesburg Roads Agency SOC Ltd
The Johannesburg Fresh Produce Market SOC Ltd

Expenditure with related parties
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality
Johannesburg Social Housing Company SOC Ltd
City Power Johannesburg SOC Ltd
City of Johannesburg Property Company SOC Ltd
Johannesburg Water SOC Ltd
Johannesburg City Parks NPC
The Johannesburg Fresh Produce Market SOC Ltd

Other expenses paid to (received from) related parties
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality - sweeping account interest
received
The amounts above are exclusive of Value Added Tax.
This disclosure is for information purposes only as the entity has not yet adopted GRAP 20.
31. Change in estimate
Property, plant and equipment

On an annual basis, management has to determine the best estimate of the enviromental obligations to rehabilitate the
various landfill sites upon closure. During this process management place reliance upon the final landfill airspace
estimation report as compiled by an independant consulting engineer for the technical data utilised in the provision and
lifespan estimates.
Robinson deep landfill site useful life is 4 years.
Ennerdale landfill site useful life changed from 7 to 10 years.
Marie louise landfill site changed from 1 to 2 year.
Goudkoppies landfill sites useful life changed from 10 to 7 years.
The impact of the change in estimate is the increase in the annual depreciation charge by R 1 856 336.
Perfomance bonus
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31. Change in estimate (continued)
The perfomance bonus for 2017/18 financial year was estimated at 10% of the annual package of qualifying employees.
Taking into account actual payments the estimate rate was revised to 7.5% in the current financial year . The impact is a
reduction of R2 295 297 of the perfomance bonus provision.
Allowance for doubtful debts
During the previous financial year, payments history was used to calculate the amount to be provided for in the financial
statements. Customers who never paid their accounts in the last three years were considered doubtful. During the current
year, this assumption was revised to customers who paid an amount equal or below R5 000 in the last three years were
considered doubtful. The impact is that R 219 647 711 has been provided for in the current financial year in the
statements of financial perfomance.
32. Prior-year adjustments and Reclassifications
Presented below are those items contained in the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance and
cash flow statement that have been affected by prior-year adjustments and reclassifications.
The adjustment on provisions relates to the correction of the calculation of the provision for rehabilitation of landfills.
The adjustment in property, plant and equipment amounting to R 9 128 355 relates to the recalculation of the landfill
asset. There was also a write off of underground bins as they can not be used hence the loss on disposal of assets
amounting to R 8 368 853. The adjustment on payables relates to an amount of R168 361 248 that was accounted for
incorrectly (wrong journal proposed) and also VAT which was not recorded. The prior year adjustment on the finance
lease amounting to R 1 153 483 is due to an error in calculation of the finance cost and the minimum lease payments.
Revenue has increased by an amount of 1 672 754 due to revenue on bulk containers which was not recorded in the
correct financial year. This also led to receivables from exchange being adjusted by an amount of R 4 737 763 which is a
result of revenue from 2018 and 2017 which was not captured and paid. The debt impairment was increased by R 127
559 105 due to reversal of impairment on national and provincial government debt amounting R 15 688 322 of which R 6
688 745 reduced the debt impairment and R 8 999 578 reduced the retained income as this was provided for in error and
an amount of R 134 247 849 relating to city cleaning levy debt which was not provided for in the prior years. This also
resulted in the adjustment on receivables from non-exchange amounting R 134 247 849 and receivables from exchange
transations amounting to R 15 688 322.
Statement of financial position
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32. Prior-year adjustments and Reclassifications (continued)
2018
Note
Inventories
Inter-company receivables -COJ
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents
Loan to Shareholder
Property,plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Non-Current assets held for sale
Employee benefit -National loan
Inter-company Receivables - COJ ( Non- current
Asset)
Payables from exchange transaction
Intercompany Liabilities-salaries
Provision for performance bonus
Finance lease obligation
Loans from Shareholder
Loans from Shareholders
Finance lease obligation
Employee benefit obligation
Provisions- Landfill Rehabilitation
Opening Accumulated Surplus

As previously Correction of Reclassificatio Restated
reported
error
n
1 059 584
1 059 584
- 200 377 264 200 377 264
182 978 029 (134 247 849)
48 730 180
575 904 487
20 426 085
- 596 330 572
38 014
38 014
1 255 375 319
- (1 255 375 319)
549 463 249
9 128 355
- 558 591 604
303 914
303 914
16 240 072
16 240 072
133 864 689
- 133 864 689
- 167 764 744 1 054 998 055 1 222 762 799
(607 727 418) (168 361 247)
- (776 088 665)
- (642 248 474) (642 248 474)
(10 993 027)
- (10 993 027)
(53 860 534)
(1 153 483) 10 717 206 (44 296 811)
(642 248 474)
- 642 248 474
(524 359 657)
- (524 359 657)
(20 478 357)
- (10 717 206) (31 195 563)
(79 753 932)
- (79 753 932)
(619 213 001) (17 402 926)
- (636 615 927)
(113 590 147) 123 846 318
10 256 171
43 002 810

Statement of financial performance
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32. Prior-year adjustments and Reclassifications (continued)
2018
Note
Service Charges
Other revenue
Interest received
Income from equity accounted Investment
Goverment Grants & Subsidies
Levies
Discount received
Finance Costs
Employee related costs
Consumables
Fleet
Insurance
General expenses
Consulting and professional fees
Legal fees
Long service awards
Recruitment costs
Hire
Funeral assistance
Book and publications
Education and awareness
Depreciation and amortisation
Lease rentals on operating lease
Debt Impairment
Loss on Disposal
Waste disposal fees
Surplus for the year

As previously Correction of Reclassificatio Restated
reported
error
n
(1 501 175 179)
(1 672 754)
- (1 502 847 933)
(4 334 027)
2 268 739
(2 065 288)
(34 692 970)
- (34 692 970)
(638 162)
(638 162)
(619 565 966)
(2 268 739) (621 834 705)
(171 641 491)
- (171 641 491)
(683 546)
683 546
94 230 597
94 230 597
976 136 582
(9 263 783) 966 872 799
26 468 267
9 263 783
35 732 050
644 002 728
- (10 719 616) 633 283 112
22 507 843
- (11 788 227) 10 719 616
22 507 843
22 507 843
2 957 366
3 603 742
6 561 108
3 603 742
(3 603 742)
832 259
832 259
832 178
(832 259)
(81)
297 501
297 501
297 501
(297 501)
3 071 395
3 071 395
3 071 395
(3 071 395)
101 791 373
- 101 791 373
10 098 751
10 098 751
151 905 484 127 559 105
- 279 464 589
8 368 853
8 368 853
31 061 996
(683 546) 30 378 450
(263 765 538) 134 255 204

- (129 510 334)

Cash flow statement
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32. Prior-year adjustments and Reclassifications (continued)
2018
Note
Cash flow from operating activities
Sale of goods and services
Grants
Interest income
Other revenue
City Cleaning levy
Employee costs
Suppliers
Finance costs

(1 020 308 824)
(619 565 966)
(34 692 969)
(4 334 027)
(171 641 491)
981 696 290
829 219 497
-

(18 078 020)
(2 268 739)
2 268 739
(63 283 672)
(19 097 979)
38 404 386
-

- (1 038 386 844)
- (621 834 705)
- (34 692 969)
(2 065 288)
- (234 925 163)
- 962 598 311
- 867 623 883
57 809 006
57 809 006

(39 627 490)

(62 055 285)

57 809 006

(43 873 769)

(60 109 661)
64 285 549

(60 109 661)
64 285 549

4 175 888

4 175 888

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Loans to Shareholders

Cash flow from financing activities
Loans from shareholders
Finance lease Obligations
Finance costs
Post retirement Benefits paid
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As previously
reported

62 055 285
(41 774 593)
(57 809 006)
(6 260 760)

(62 055 285)
-

57 809 006
-

(41 774 593)
(6 260 760)

(43 789 074)

(62 055 285)

57 809 006

(48 035 353)
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(Registration number 2000/029899/07)
Trading as Pikitup
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand

32. Prior-year adjustments and Reclassifications (continued)
Reclassifications
Some of the intercompany loans to/from shareholder were renamed either to short-term asset/liability (inter-company)
or to long-term asset/liability (inter-company). The rand value of each loan remained classified within the same asset
or liability category as in the prior year. The amounts disclosed as loan from shareholder relates to capital expenditure
loan of which an agreement between the parties exist.
The loans to shareholders previously classified as current assets has been reclassified under non-current assets as
intercompany- COJ excluding the sweeping account balance. There was also reclassifications amounting to R 10 717
206 between the current and non current finance lease obligation.This was due to the non-current liabilities being
understated and the current liabilities being overstated.
There were also reclassifications of expenditure balance to ensure that the expenditure is showing its correct
description. The accounts affected by these reclassifications are as follow
The employee related costs were reduced by an amount of R 9 263 783 which was relating to consumables hence an
increase in consumable by the same amount. There was a reclassification of intercompany receivables amounting to
R 1 054 998 055 and Other receivables-sweeping COJ amounting to R 200 377 264 all these were disclosed as loans
to shareholder in the prior year.
Fleet was reduced by R 10 719 616 and Insurance was reduced by an amount of R 11 788 227 and these amounts
were reclassified to general expenses as they were incorrectly accounted for as fleet and insurance instead of general
expenses.
The legal fees of R 3 603 742 has been reclassified to consulting and professional fees. This is because the legal
expertise are outsourced hence its part of the consulting and professional fees. The recruitment fees of R832 259 was
reclassified to long service awards as this is the correct description of the account as well as the reclassification of the
funeral assistance amounting to R 297 501 to hire and the reclassifiation of education and awareness of R 3 071 395
to books and publications. This was the renaming of the account to give a better explanation of the use of the account.
The loans to shareholders of R 642 248 474 was reclassified to intercompany liabilities-salaries as this account is
specifically for salaries paid by CoJ on behalf of the entity. Other revenue amounting to R 2 268 739 was reclassified
to government grants and subsidies as this amounting was a subsidy. The discount received was reclassified to waste
disposal fees as the discount received was reducing the invoice for the waste disposal fees. The discount recieved of
R 683 546 has been reclassifed to waste disposal fees as this was a reduction of an invoice of waste disposal fees.
The reclassifications adjustment are shown on the prior year adjustments and reclassifications note above:
33. Risk management
Financial risk management
The entity has an integrated risk management framework. The entity's approach to risk management is based on risk
governance structures, risk management policies, risk identification, measurement and reporting. Three types of risks are
reported as part of the risk profile, namely operational, strategic and business continuity risks. Operational risks are
events, hazards, variances or opportunities which could influence the achievement of the entity's compliance and
operational objectives. A strategic risk is a significant unexpected or unpredictable change or outcome beyond what was
factored into the organisation's strategy and business model which could have an impact on the entity's performance.
Business continuity risks are those events, hazards, variances and opportunities which could influence the continuity of
the entity.
One of the risk for entity identified both under the operational and strategic risk categories, is the financial sustainability of
the entity. The financial risks and the management thereof, form part of this key risk area. The types of financial risks
which are considered to form the major part of the risk profile of the entity are liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk.
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33. Risk management (continued)
The Board of directors have delegated the oversight management of enterprise-wide risk to the audit committee. One of
the committee's objectives is to ensure that Pikitup is not unduly exposed to financial and market risks. Treasury Risk
management is carried out by a central treasury department under policies managed by the City of Johannesburg
Metropolitan Municipality.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that Pikitup will not have sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations when they fall due, or
will have to do so at excessive cost. This risk can arise from mismatches in the timing of cash flows from revenue, capital
and operational outflows. Funding risk arises when the necessary liquidity to fund liquid asset positions cannot be
obtained at the expected terms and when required.
The entity manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. Cash flow
forecasts are prepared and managed against available funds. The entity's funding is managed by the City of
Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality. The City borrows money in the open market through the issue of bonds as and
when required.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash.
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33. Risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk
The entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, apart from the sweeping balance and capital expenditure loan
balance with the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality. There are no external borrowings by the entity.
Cash flow interest rate risk for 2019

Financial Instrument

Current Interest rate

Current

Receivables from exchange transactions

722 006 967

Receivables from non exchange transactions

26 352 465

Payables from exchange transactions

(740 432 337)

Other receivables- Receivables

1 185 644 969

Other Receivables - Sweeping
Loans from shareholders
Finance leases
Cash flow interest rate risk for 2018

Non Current

308 631 654
10.56%

(599 246 166)

10%

(31 195 663)

Receivables from exchange transactions

596 330 572

Receivables from non-exchange

48 730 180

Payables from exchange transactions

(776 088 665)

Inter-company Receivables

(1 222 762 799).

Other receivables-Sweeping

200 377 264

Loan from Shareholder

(524 359 657)

Finance leases

(75 492 374)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the entity if a customer fails to meet its contractual obligations. This arises
primarily from the entity's receivables from exchange transactions.
Receivables from exchange transactions comprise a widespread customer base. The entity's exposure to credit risk is
influenced by the individual characteristics of each customer. In monitoring credit risk, customers are grouped according
to their credit characteristics, including whether they are large or small users, geographic location, ageing profile and
payment history.
Management evaluates credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. CoJ credit control department assess the
credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. The carrying
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposures to credit risk at the
reporting date are as follows.
2019

2018
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33. Risk management (continued)
Receivables from exchange transactions

722 006 967

596 330 572

Receivables from non-exchange transactions

26 352 465

48 730 180

Intercompany - Receivables

1 185 644 969

1 222 762 799

308 631 654

200 377 263

Other receivables- Sweeping
Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash-flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments and factors affecting
similar financial instruments in the market. The entity is not exposed to price risk as the external borrowing is done by the
shareholder on behalf of the entity.
34. Going concern
As at 30 June 2019, the entity had accumulated surplus of R 124 899 806 (2018: -R10 256 171) and that the entity's total
assets exceed its liabilities by R 167 902 614 ( 2018: R32 746 636).
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement
of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
35. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure prior year

16 393 696
34 270
-

16 046 750
346 946

16 427 966

16 393 696

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred in the current financial period relates to interests and penalties on PAYE
short payments of settlements and abitrations, retrospective payments of employee settlements,death benefits and
gratuity payments.
The fruitless and wasteful expenditure has been investigated and the report has been submitted to Council sub-committee
for condonement processes.
36. Irregular expenditure
Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Opening balance
Irregular expenditure current year
Irregular expenditure discovered in current year for prior period

730 085 485
78 097 261
69 063 343

580 845 668
124 198 824
25 040 993

877 246 089

730 085 485

The irregular expenditure amount is a cummulative amount over a period of time. This amounts have been investigated
and submitted to the Council sub-committe for condonement processes.
Details of irregular expenditure – current year
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36. Irregular expenditure (continued)
Landfill operations and maintanance
Cleaning of illegal dumping areas
Fleet charges
Licensing
Supply of security services
Recruitment
Fuel
Public protectors findings
Procurement of fleet
Catering
Security contract

720 000
2 706 653
28 480 639
59 011
2 739 038
217 500
906 578
69 063 343
32 592 004
20 700
9 655 138
147 160 604

37. Procurement in terms of paragraph 36 of Supply Chain Management regulations
Paragraph 12(1)(d)(i) of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management
policy must provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process.
There were supply chain management deviations during the year under review resulting from various services procured
within the entity amounting to R83 782 349 included in the total amount is an amount of R1 031 064 (incl VAT) relating to
Regulation 36(a)(i) - emergency procument.
Deviations approved by the Accounting Officer (sole source)
Office lease
Venue hire
Office cleaning
Supply of litter picker
Staff vouchers
License fees
Security services
Landfill airspace

Total
3 996 648
11 720
199 096
349 600
1 341 875
271 451
1 236 616
76 375 343
83 782 349
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BasicBasic
Salary
Salary
Medical
Medical
Aid Pension
Aid Pension
Travel Travel
Cellphone
Cellphone
Bonus Bonus
Leave Leave
Total
Contribution
Contribution
Fund Fund
Allowance
Allowance
allowance
allowance
Contribution
Contribution
1 0181 672
018 672 25 309
25 309
132 138
132 138
179 142
179 142
178-895 178
1 355
8952621
1 4391 741
439 741
112
- 690
112 690
216 666
216 666
85- 461 85 461 - 1 854 -5591
738 090
738 09029 527
29 52764 41664 416
49 226 49 2263 750 3 750
242-699 242881
699260
263 308
263 308
- 263 -308
25 401
25 401
- 25 -401
1 1991 048
199 048
-69 46569 465
240 000
240 000
- - 1 542 -3981
1 0881 367
088 367
117
- 579
117 579
- - 1 205 -9471

355
854
881
263
25
542
205

262
559
260
308
401
398
947

Total

1 800 2751 800 275

Emoluments
Emoluments
12 000 12 000
274 000 274 000
255 275 255 275
223 000 223 000
24 000 24 000
24 000 24 000
267 000 267 000
227 000 227 000
222 000 222 000
194 000 194 000
24 000 24 000
24 000 24 000
20 000 20 000
10 000 10 000
-
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39. General expenses
Advertising
Assessment rates & municipal charges
Auditors remuneration
Bank charges
Cleaning
Consulting and professional fees
Consumables
Safety equipment
Pollution Monitoring
Entertainment
Hire
Insurance
Conferences and seminars
IT expenses
Books and publications
Printing and stationery
Security (Guarding of municipal property)
Staff welfare
Subscriptions and membership fees
Telephone and fax
Customer service management fee
Training
Travelling
Contractors
Sundries
Waste disposal fees
Recruitment costs
Payroll processing
Long service awards

186 031
23 543 917
6 485 598
8 250
801 851
1 347 154
52 000 646
97 528
484 241
556 119
463 109
14 371 451
21 317 156
2 050 912
522 983
40 364 302
3 067 063
85 087
3 081 900
3 373 930
3 393 196
58 535
3 274 528
113 959
36 532 699
5 090 759
1 499 442
331 026
224 503 372

273 086
14 929 288
5 706 115
11 085
404 532
6 561 108
35 732 050
624 129
222 729
1 678 634
297 501
10 719 616
98 270
22 507 843
3 071 395
572 632
37 826 859
3 117 531
44 759
3 553 691
3 198 040
4 226 215
501 803
6 041 225
82 055
30 378 449
(81)
1 120 578
832 259
194 333 396

40. New standards and interpretations
40.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective
The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory
for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2019 or later periods:
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40. New standards and interpretations (continued)
GRAP NUMBER
GRAP 20
GRAP 32

GRAP 34
GRAP 36
GRAP 37
GRAP 38
GRAP 104
GRAP 108
GRAP 109
GRAP 110

GRAP NAME EFFECTIVE
IMPACT
DATE
Related parties 01 April 2019 The impact is
not expected to
be material
Service
01 April 2019
Concessions
Arrangements:
Grantor
Separate
01 April 2020
Financial
statements
Investments in 01 April 2020
associates and
joint ventures
Joint
01 April 2020
arrangements
Disclosure of 01 April 2020
interests in
other entities
Financial
1 April 2020 The impact is
Instruments
not expected to
be material
Statutory
01 April 2019
Receivables
Accounting by 01 April 2019
Principals and
Agents
Living and
01 April 2020
Non-Living
Resources

41. Interest received
Interest revenue
Interest charged on trade and other receivables
Actuarial Interest and gains
Interest received - other

34 372 319
12 260 019
13 608 931

22 934 750
11 758 220

60 241 269

34 692 970

42. Taxation
The company is in a tax loss situation with a tax loss of R144 071 093 (2018:R198 568 581). The assesed loss and
temporary difference results in a deffered tax asset. In terms of IAS 12 deferred tax asset is recognised for deductible
temporary differences,unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extend that taxable profit will be available against
which temporary differences will be utilised. Management is of the view that no future taxable profit will be realised,hence
no deferred tax asset is recognised.
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43. Taxation
Major components of the tax expense
Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate.
Applicable tax rate
Tax loss used

28,00 %

28,00 %

(28,00)%

(28,00)%

-%

-%

The income tax rate is 28%
No provision has been made for 2019 tax as the entity has no taxable income. The tax loss % has been limited to
28% as the entity has a tax loss amounting to R 144 071 093 (2018: 198 568 581).
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